
MEETING AGENDA 
Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 

a. CALL TO ORDER
b. INVOCATION
c. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
d. ROLL CALL
e. AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS

1 – CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION 

1-1 Donations from People’s Farming (Olson)

2 – STUDY SESSION 

2-1 Potential Zoning Ordinance Changes to Encourage Housing Development (Brandt)

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public comment will be in accordance with the attached policy. This time is reserved for members of the audience to address 
the City Council on items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  It is 
recommended that speakers limit their comments to three (3) minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during 
this period on items on the Agenda. The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the 
Agenda.  Prior to addressing the Council, any handouts for Council will be provided to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council 
and appropriate staff. The public will have an opportunity to comment on items on the agenda once the item has been called and the 
Mayor opens the item to the public.

3 – DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS 

3-1 Department & City Manager Reports

4 – CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items considered routine in nature are placed on the Consent Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as 

one item unless a Council member or member of the public requests individual consideration. 

4-1 Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – June 19, 2023
4-2 Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – June 27, 2023
4-3 Approval – Fire Purchases of Ford F150, 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper, 2024 Ferrara

Type 6 Quick Attack, Dewalt 18” Ventilation Fans, Forcible Entry Training Door, Hurst 
Tools (Cutter-Spreader-Ram Tools) with SB 179 

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 C STREET 
July 18, 2023 

5:30 P.M. 

1



5 – PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 

 
5-1 Public Hearing – Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal 

Year 2023-2024 for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District Number 1 (LLMD) 
Zones 1 through 13 - Resolution 2023-22 - and Public Facilities Maintenance District 
Number 1 (PFMD) Zones 1 through 10 - Resolution 2023-23 (Reeder) This item is 
being continued to the August 1, 2023 meeting.  

5-2 Public Hearing – Introduction – Ordinance 2023-03 – Amending Chapter 6, Title 3, 
Section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Pertaining to Speed Limits (Reeder) 

5-3 Public Hearing – Introduction – Ordinance 2023-04 – Amending Chapter 7, Title 10, 
Section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Pertaining to City Maintenance Districts 
(Reeder) 

 
6 – NEW BUSINESS 

Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 
 
No New Business. 
 

7 – BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS  
 
7-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 

8 – CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. Government Code Section 54957 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation – City Manager 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upcoming Council Meetings 
 

• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 1, 2023 
• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 15, 2023 
• City Council Special Meeting, Tuesday, August 29, 2023 

 
 

Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Council Chamber, 429 C Street 
and the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive. Written communications from the public for the agenda must be 
received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore complies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically disabled. Should you need 
special assistance, please call (559) 924-6744, at least 4 business days prior to the meeting. 
 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
 

I, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above Regular City Council Agenda for the meeting of July 18, 2023 at Council Chamber, 429 C Street 
and Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, CA on July 14, 2023. 
 
 
 

          //s//     
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 

2



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 18, 2023 @ 5:30 p.m.  

The City Council will hold its public meetings in person, with a virtual option for public 
participation based on availability. The City of Lemoore utilizes Zoom teleconferencing 
technology for virtual public participation; however, the City makes no representation or warranty 
of any kind, regarding the adequacy, reliability, or availability of the use of this platform in this 
manner. Participation by members of the public through this means is at their own risk.  (Zoom 
teleconferencing/attendance may not be available at all meetings.)  
The meeting may be viewed through the following Zoom Meeting: 
• Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
• https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81113247059?pwd=TnlGa3dnZEFrUFBpMmNLV3ovR1FlUT09 
• Meeting ID: 811 1324 7059 
• Passcode: 557993 
• Phone: +1 669 900 6833 
 
If you wish to make a general public comment or public comment on a particular item on the 
agenda, participants may do so via Zoom during the meeting or by submitting public 
comments by e-mail to: cityclerk@lemoore.com.  In the subject line of the e-mail, please state 
your name and the item you are commenting on.  If you wish to submit a public comment on more 
than one agenda item, please send a separate e-email for each item you are commenting on.  Please 
be aware that written public comments, including your name, may become public information. 
Additional requirements for submitting public comments by e-mail are provided below.  
 
General Public Comments & Comments on City Council Business Items 
For general public comments and comments regarding specific City Council Business Items, 
public comments can be made via Zoom during the meeting or all public comments must be 
received by e-mail no later than 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments received by this time 
will be read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such 
comments may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion 
of your comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions.  
If a general public comment or comment on a business item is received after 5:00 p.m., efforts will 
be made to read your comment into the record.  However, staff cannot guarantee that written 
comments received after 5:00 p.m. will be read.  All written comments that are not read into the 
record will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comments are received prior 
to the end of the City Council meeting. 
 
Public Hearings 
For public comment on a public hearing, all public comments must be received by the close of the 
public hearing period.  All comments received by the close of the public hearing period will be 
read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such comments 
may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion of your 
comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions.  If a 
comment on a public hearing item is received after the close of the public hearing, such comment 
will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comment is received prior to the end 
of the meeting. 
*PLEASE BE AWARE THAT ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED THAT DO NOT SPECIFY A PARTICULAR 
AGENDA ITEM WILL BE READ ALOUD DURING THE GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT PORTION OF THE AGENDA.* 

3

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81113247059?pwd=TnlGa3dnZEFrUFBpMmNLV3ovR1FlUT09


                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 2-1 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From Steve Brandt, City Planner 
Date: July 7, 2023    Meeting Date:    July 18, 2023 
Subject: Discussion of Potential Ordinance Changes to Encourage Housing 

Development 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
No motion needed. This is an informational item for discussion. All proposed changes to 
the General Plan and to the text and map of the Zoning Ordinance will be formally 
proposed at a noticed public hearing planned for September 5, 2023. The Planning 
Commission reviewed these proposed changes on July 10, 2023, and will be holding a 
public hearing to make a formal recommendation on August 14, 2023. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City received a grant from the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) to update or modify City ordinances and procedures in a way that 
would encourage more housing development in Lemoore. Previous review sessions were 
held at Planning Commission meetings on March 13, April 24, and July 10. A discussion 
of minimum single-family lot size was held at the City Council meeting on February 7. 
Other proposed text changes were discussed at the Council meeting on May 16, 2023. 
 
Proposed Changes: 
The following list describes our main scope of changes Staff is planning to recommend. 
At this time, Staff requests a discussion to see if the City Council has any questions, 
comments, changes, direction, or suggestions for Staff before the public hearing before 
the Planning Commission on August 14. 

 

4



General Plan and Zoning Map changes – The Mixed Use General Plan designation and 
related MU zone has not worked out as was intended by the General Plan when it was 
adopted in 2008. Developers have shied away from the sites zoned MU and there has 
been no development on them. Staff is proposing elimination of the Mixed Use 
designation (except in the downtown) and the MU zoning from the General Plan Map and 
the Zoning Map. The chapter on Mixed Use (Zoning Ordinance Chapter 7) will remain in 
the Zoning Ordinance just in case there is ever a desire to bring the zone back. The sites 
will be proposed for rezone to either High Density Residential, Medium Density 
Residential, Neighborhood Commercial, or Professional Office. Since the goal of the grant 
is to encourage more housing, preference is being given to change to residential zones 
except where commercial or office zoning is more appropriate due to existing or 
surrounding uses. City staff has met with some property owners with vacant parcels 
zoned MU that has been trying to develop for several years. The property owners Staff 
talked with were fully supportive of this effort to change the zoning.  
 
The existing and proposed General Plan and Zoning for the Mixed Use areas are shown 
in the attached maps. There are basically four areas, which the maps call Bush and D 
Streets, North of College, Lemoore Avenue & Cinnamon Drive, and Hanford-Armona 
Road east of Lemoore Avenue. For each area there is a general plan amendment map 
and a zoning amendment map. The map on the top-right of each page shows which 
parcels are 
affected. The 
map on the 
bottom-left 
shows the 
existing map 
while the map 
on the bottom-
right shows the 
proposed 
changes. 

  

Lemoore Zoning Map 
showing the location of 
the four areas proposed 
for amendments. 

5



  

6



  

7



8



  

9



 

 
 

10



 
  

11



  

12



 
 

13



One of the purposes of changing the designations and zoning is to plan for more housing. 
The table below shows the vacant acres in each of the four areas, and how the change will 
affect the number of potential housing units that could be constructed after the change. The 
density of each zone is based on the realistic density assumed in the Housing Element. The 
tables only show the acreages of vacant land being proposed to be changed. 

Zone Zone Name 

Vacant 
Acres to be 
Added or 

Subtracted 

Housing 
Element 
Realistic 
Density 

HE 
Lower 

Income 

HE 
Moderate 

Income 

HE Above 
Moderate 

Income 

Total 
Potential 
Housing 

Units 
Added or 

Subtracted 

Hanford-Armona Road east of Lemoore Ave.    
MU Mixed Use -0.27 9.00 -1 -1 0 -2 
PO Professional Office 0.07 0.00 0 0 0 0 

RMD Medium Density Residential 0.20 14.00 3 0 0 3 

 Subtotal 0.00  2 -1 0 1 

Lemoore Avenue and Cinnamon Drive       
MU Mixed Use -27.43 9.00 -123 -124 0 -247 
NC Neighborhood Commercial 5.87 0.00 0 0 0 0 

RHD High Density Residential 21.57 18.00 388 0 0 388 

 Subtotal 0.00  265 -124 0 141 
North of College       

MU Mixed Use -6.56 9.00 -29 -30 0 -59 
RLD Low Density Residential 6.19 4.50 0 14 15 28 
PR Greenway -0.70 0.00 0 0 0 0 
CF Community Facilities -3.57 0.00 0 0 0 0 

RMD Medium Density Residential 4.64 18.00 34 0 0 84 

 Subtotal 0.00  5 -16 15 53 
Bush and D Streets       

MU Mixed Use -11.96 9.00 -56 -57 0 -108 
RHD High Density Residential 6.34 18.00 114 0 0 114 
RMD Medium Density Residential -2.12 14.00 -30 0 0 -30 
RMD Medium Density Residential 4.37 14.00 61 0 0 61 
NC Neighborhood Commercial 3.37 0.00 0 0 0 0 

 Subtotal 0.00  89 -57 0 37 

        
 OVERALL TOTAL CHANGE IN POTENTIAL HOUSING UNITS 361 -198 15 232 

 
 
The table shows that, overall, the changes being considered could increase the capacity to 
approve housing units by a total of 232 units, with almost all of that being in the lower income 
range. The State considers lower income to be less than 80% of the median income of a 
community. 
 

14



Residential development standards – Using comments heard at the Council study session 
about lot size that was held on February, Staff is proposing to reduce the by-right minimum 
lot size from the current 7,000 sq.ft. to 5,000 sq.ft. This should streamline the approval 
process because subdivision proposals that meet the new minimum lot size will not be 
required to obtain approval of a Planned Unit Development (PUD). Other cities in the Valley 
have changed their minimum lots sizes to either 4,000, 4,500, 5,000, or 6,000 sq.ft.  Staff is 
recommending changing the minimum lot size standard in Lemoore to 5,000 sq.ft. because 
that appears to be the new industry standard, meaning that just about every homebuilder is 
designing homes that fit on a 5,000 sq.ft. lot. This would mean that new subdivisions where 
all the proposed lots are 5,000 sq.ft. or greater would not be required to apply for the PUD. 
The following tables shows that four out of eight subdivisions approved in the last seven 
years would not have needed a PUD if these changes had been in place previously. 

Tentative Subdivision Maps Approved in Last 7 Years 

 PUD Required Before                 
Text Amendment 

PUD Required After  
Text Amendment 

Brisbane East (Nunley) Yes No 
Tract 908 (Wathen) Yes No 
Tract 920 (Lennar) Yes No 
Lacey Ranch (Granville Homes) Yes Yes 
Tract 848 (Lennar) Yes Yes 
Revised Tract 820 (GJ Gardner) Yes Yes 
Tract 935 (Lennar) Yes No 
Silva 11 (Daley) No No 

 

The proposed changes are shown in Table 9-5A-4A on Text Amendment Pages 15 and 16. 
The proposed changes show a minimum single-family lot size of 5,000 square feet. 
Developers that desire to have lots less than 5,000 square feet in size would be required to 
obtain a PUD. Lot size maximums would be removed as a requirement. The minimum front 
yard setback would be reduced to 15 feet, while retaining the requirement for a 2-foot stagger 
in the front. Side yards would be a minimum of 5 feet and no longer require an additional 5 
feet for the second story. There would be no change to the rear yard setback. 

 

Site Plan and Architectural Review – Staff will be working on text changes that would make 
Site Plan Review a ministerial process that is always approved by the City staff. This would 
mean that projects that only need Site Plan Review approval would no longer go to the 
Planning Commission for review. Staff will also be proposing a new preliminary site plan 
process that is consistent with SB330, a 2019 law that limits what Cities can ask of 
developers that want to utilize a preliminary stie plan review process. The process would also 
be completely managed by Staff. The following table shows site plans that were reviewed in 
the last seven years, whether they were approved by Staff or the Planning Commission, and 
whether or not they would still go to Planning Commission if these text changes had been in 
place at that time. 

15



Site Plans approved in last 7 years 
(except Subdivision and Parcel Maps) 

 Site Plan Review Approving 
Authority Before                 
Text Amendment 

Site Plan Review Approving 
Authority After  

Text Amendment 

Cinnamon Villas II Planning Commission Staff 

Granville Multi-family project Planning Commission Staff 

Jack in the Box redesign Staff Staff 

Beard industrial buildings Planning Commission Staff 

Hwy 41/Hanford-Armona Rd apartments 
and commercial 

Planning Commission Planning Commission 

Dollar General Planning Commission Staff 

Grocery Outlet Planning Commission Planning Commission 

Wimpy’s Staff Staff 

Dutch Brothers Staff Staff 

Champion/Larish duplexes Staff Staff 

Tacos Los Juanes Staff Staff 

Helena Chemical industrial project Planning Commission Staff 

Leprino solar project Staff Staff 

New Industrial building Planning Commission Staff 

Master Storage expansion Planning Commission Staff 

Johnny Quik Planning Commission Planning Commission 

Panda Express Staff Staff 

19th/Bush Car wash and convenience store Planning Commission Planning Commission 

Venture Place industrial development Planning Commission Staff 

Last Day Ministries expansion Planning Commission Planning Commission 

Smith Avenue Apartments Planning Commission Staff 

Ice Kiosk Staff Staff 

Salas Harvesting office buildings Staff Staff 

Plain Insane Graphics commercial building Staff Staff 

Maverik mini-mart and fueling station Planning Commission Planning Commission 

 

16



Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Ordinance – Staff is updating the ADU Ordinance to 
ensure compliance with State law, which was changed in 2019 and again in 2020. The goal 
will be to make the process more understandable so as to encourage more ADUs. The 
changes are on Text Amendment Pages 10 through 14 and affect Section 9-4D-12, as well 
as on page 8 where the accessory dwelling units are changed from requiring an 
administrative use permit to be a permitted use. As per State law, a site could have both an 
accessory dwelling unit and a junior accessory dwelling unit (JADU). The new code is 
consistent with the standards allowed to be implemented by State law. 

Cottage home ordinance – Staff is looking at adding a cottage home ordinance to the 
Zoning Ordinance. In the new ordinance text, a cottage would be considered a special type 
of accessory dwelling unit where the City provides the homeowner with preapproved building 
plans so that the homeowner does not have the expense of having an architect draw up 
building plans. It would have to meet both the ADU and the cottage home standards. The 
specific text can be found on Text Amendment Pages 13 and 14. 

Tiny house ordinance – Staff is looking at adding a tiny house ordinance to the Zoning 
Ordinance. In the new ordinance text, a tiny house would be considered a special type of 
accessory dwelling unit. It would have to meet both the ADU and the tiny house standards. 
The specific text can be found on Text Amendment Page 14. 

The text of the ordinance has been modified from the version shown at the April study 
session. Much of the text has been converted into a table to make it easier for Staff and the 
public to interpret. 

SB9 Compliance – SB9 was a new 2021 State law that allows existing property owners (not 
developers) to add a second main home on their lot or to split their lot to accommodate a 
second home even if the lot split does not meet the minimum zoning requirements. At the 
time of adoption, this law was described in the press as “the end of single-family zoning in 
California.”  While that may not be exactly true, the law does contain certain overrides of local 
zoning that Cities must allow. No one in Lemoore has tried to take advantage of this law yet.  

This new law is being acknowledged with new text in the Allowed Uses Table 9-4B-2, which 
is found on Text Amendment Page 8. It is listed as “Dwelling, additional, meeting provisions 
of Government Code Section 66852.21.” 

Other Definition Changes – On Text Amendment Page 7, there are revised definitions for 
large and small family day care. This is to bring the City’s definition more in line with the 
State’s definition. There is also a new definition for Short-term Rental Unit, more commonly 
known as an Airbnb or Vrbo rental. This use is being added to the zoning ordinance to 
distinguish it from a bed and breakfast or a hotel.  

Subdivision Ordinance Update – the Subdivision Ordinance was last updated in  2012. 
Antonio Westerlund, the City surveyor, and his surveyor team are reviewing the Ordinance 
with the intent on recommending updates to the text of the Ordinance. The Subdivision 
Ordinance describes the specific requirements for subdivision and parcel maps. The review 
team found ways to streamline the preparation and review process. Changes include: 

• A clear, updated list of what is required on subdivision maps and parcel maps. 

17



• A new chapter that simplifies the submittal requirements for lot mergers (combining 
two adjacent lots into one lot). 

• A new chapter implementing the urban lot split that is now required by the State. 
• A new requirement for developers to submit their maps and improvement plans in 

AutoCAD to make it easier to update the City’s GIS data. 
• Movement of the specific language and signature blocks needed on maps out of the 

ordinance and into a standards document to be placed on the City website, so that the 
language can be updated more quickly by City staff when changes occur. 

• An update to recognize all of the State-approved time extension opportunities for map. 

Financial Consideration(s): 
None. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
No final decisions are being made at this time. The Council may recommend to Staff to 
modify, delete, or add to the proposed zoning ordinance text changes. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission discussed potential zoning ordinance text changes at their 
meetings on March 10, April 24, and July 10.  A public hearing to make a formal 
recommendation is planned for August 14, 2023. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Council discuss the proposed zoning text changes and then 
provide any direction to Staff regarding modifications to the proposal, additional changes, 
or removal of certain changes from the proposal. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 7/14/2023 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 7/14/2023 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 7/12/2023 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments (Redlined Version and Clean Version) 

18



July 18 City Council Version 
 

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

New text is underlined.  Text to be removed is in strikeout format. 
 
 

 

TABLE 9-2A-7-1 
PLANNING PERMIT AND ENTITLEMENTS AND REVIEW AND APPEAL AUTHORITY1 

Planning Permit Or 
Entitlement 

Notice/Hearing 
Requirement 

Authority 
Planning 
Director 

Planning 
Commission 

City 
Council 

Administrative permits: 
 

      
Zoning clearance (e.g., 
building permit, signs, 
business license) 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Temporary use permit None Final Appeal- Appeal 
Tree permit for trees on 
private property 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Reasonable 
accommodation 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Similar use 
determination 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Official zoning 
interpretation 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Minor home occupation 
permit 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Highway oriented sign 
permit 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Administrative use 
permit 

None Final Appeal- Appeal 

Minor deviation None Final Appeal- Appeal 
Minor site plan and 
architectural review 

None Final - Appeal 

Sign program None Final Appeal- Appeal 

19



Site plan and 
architectural review 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Quasi-judicial permits 
and entitlements: 

        

Conditional use permit Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 
Major home occupation 
permit 

Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 

Major site plan and 
architectural review 

Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 

Planned unit 
development 

Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 

Variance Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 
Public convenience or 
necessity 

Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 

Legislative approvals:         
Specific plan Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
Development agreement Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
Planned Unit 
Development 

Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 

Zoning amendment Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
Prezoning Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
General plan amendment Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final      

 

  

20



9-2B-12: MINOR SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW: 

   A.   Purpose: The purpose of minor site plan and architectural review is for the review of the 
design and layout of new development in the City to ensure that it is consistent with the 
regulations of this title, other relevant titles in the Lemoore Municipal Code, and all relevant City 
policies, requirements, and development standards that would apply to the project prior to the 
issuance of subsequent permits, such as discretionary actions required by the City Zoning 
Ordinance or City Subdivision Ordinance, improvement plans, and building permits. It is the 
intent that site plan and architectural review be a ministerial action limited to review of the 
project development project for conformance with City of Lemoore ordinances, policies, 
requirements, and development standards. (Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014) 

   B.   Applicability: Minor siteSite plan and architectural review shall be required prior to the 
issuance of any ministerial building permits or site improvement plans and prior to or in 
conjunction withany discretionary action of corresponding development applications (e.g., 
conditional use permit, variance). Site plan and architectural review may serve as the 
preliminary application for housing development projects seeking vesting rights pursuant to SB 
330, the Housing Crisis Act of 2019. 

      1.   Review Required: Minor siteSite plan and architectural review is required for all of the 
following activities: 

         a.   New nonresidential or mixed-use developments of less than twenty thousand (20,000) 
gross square feet; 

         b.   Additions Nonresidential building additions greater than 1,000 square feet; of less than 
twenty thousand (20,000) square feet to existing commercial, office, and industrial buildings; 

         c.   Conceptual plan for a mixed-use center as required by chapter 7, "Mixed Use 
Development Standards", of this title. 

         d.   New multi-family residential developments of more than two units (e.g., apartments, 
condominiums, townhomes) of less than thirty (30) units on a single site. (Ord. 2018-03, 5-15-
2018) 

         e.   The design and layout of new residential subdivisions as part of the tentative 
subdivision map process as provided in title 8, chapter 7, "Land Division", of the Municipal 
Code; 

         f.   Demolition or exterior alterations and additions to nonresidential buildings that are 
more than seventy five (75) years old. 

      2.   Exemptions: The following activities are specifically exempt from minor site plan and 
architectural review: 

         a.   Single-family residential custom homes and duplexes on an existing lot; 

         b.   Additions to or the exterior remodels of single-family residential homes within normal 
setbacks; 

         c.   Accessory structures consistent with the provisions of section 9-4D-18, "Residential 
Accessory Structures", of this title; 

21



         d.   Changes to the exterior facade of existing buildings; 

         e.   Painting existing buildings in the DMX zoning districts with historic color palettes as 
described in subsection 9-6-4C, "Colors And Painting", of this title; 

         f.   Repairs and maintenance to the site or structure that do not add to, enlarge, or expand 
the area occupied by the land use, or the floor area of the structure and that employ the same 
materials and design as the original construction; 

         g.   Interior alterations that do not increase the gross floor area within the structure, or 
change/expand the permitted use of the structure (including solar collectors); and 

         h.   Construction, alteration, or maintenance by a public utility or public agency of 
underground or overhead utilities intended to service existing or nearby approved 
developments. 

i. Nonresidential building additions of 1,000 square feet of gross floor area or less. 

   C.   Approval Authority: The designated approval authority for minor site plan and architectural 
design review shall be the Planning Community Development Director. 

   D.   Process: The applicant shall provide a completed application on a form preparedovided 
by the City, a site plan and, if new non-residential buildings or multi-family dwellings are 
proposed, an elevation plan. No public hearing or notice is required for a minor site plan and 
architectural review. Site plan and architectural review is a ministerial process conducted by City 
staff to determine compliance with existing City of Lemoore ordinances, policies, requirements, 
and development standards and is therefore exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per State CEQA Guidelines Section 15268.  

   E.   Approval Findings: A minor site plan and architectural review permit, or any modification 
thereto, shall be granted only when the designated approving authority makes a findingfinds that 
the proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies with 
applicable zoning regulations, specific plan provisions, and policies and improvement standards 
adopted by the City, or that a general plan amendment or zoning amendment is going to be 
subsequently applied for by the developer. If the site plan submitted requires major changes 
before this finding can be made, the developer may be required to make changes and submit 
the site plan again. 

   F.   Post approval Implementation: A minor site plan and architectural design review permit is 
ministerial in nature. As such, the Planning Director may not impose discretionary conditions on 
the issuance of the permit. If the proposed development project requires approval of a 
discretionary action after completion of the site and architectural design review process, 
conditions of approval can be placed on the discretionary approval (Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014) 

   G.   Appeals. If the applicant disagrees with the interpretation or application of a City 
ordinance, policy, requirement, or development standard, they may appeal the interpretation per 
procedures in Section 9-2A-7 and 9-2A-8. 

   H.   Expiration. A site plan and architectural design review permit shall expire one (1) year 
after issuance unless an application for a related discretionary approval or a building permit is 
submitted. Upon written request by the applicant prior to expiration, the Community 
Development Director may extend the expiration  for an additional one (1) year. 

22



9-2B-15: MAJOR SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW: 

   A.   Purpose: The purpose of major site plan and architectural review is for the review of the 
design and layout of new development in the City to ensure that it is consistent with the 
regulations of this title and will not result in a detriment to the City or the environment. The City 
desires to maintain and enhance Lemoore's sense of place; design commercial and mixed use 
centers to be of pedestrian scale so people can feel comfortable and congregate in these areas; 
promote visually appealing architecture and high quality developments that promote a small 
town atmosphere; and protect and accentuate Lemoore's environmental assets, its surrounding 
natural landscape, agricultural farmland, open canals, and wetlands. (Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014) 

   B.   Applicability: Major site plan and architectural review shall be required prior to the 
issuance of any ministerial building permits or site improvement plans and prior to or in 
conjunction with discretionary action of corresponding development applications (e.g., 
conditional use permit, variance). 

      1.   Review Required: A major site plan and architectural review is required for the following 
items: 

         a.   New nonresidential or mixed-use developments of twenty thousand (20,000) gross 
square feet or more; 

         b.   Additions of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet or more to existing commercial, 
office, and industrial buildings; 

         c.   New multi-family residential developments (e.g., apartments, condominiums, 
townhomes) except where there are less than thirty (30) units on a single site; 

         d.   The design and layout of new residential subdivisions as part of the tentative 
subdivision map process as provided in title 8, chapter 7, "Land Division", of the Municipal 
Code; 

         e.   Demolition or exterior alterations and additions to nonresidential buildings that are 
more than seventy five (75) years old. (Ord. 2018-03, 5-15-2018) 

      2.   Exemptions: Those activities exempt from minor site plan and architectural design 
review as provided in subsection 9-2B-12 B2 of this article shall also be exempt from major site 
plan and architectural design review. 

   C.   Approval Authority: The designated approval authority for major site plan and architectural 
design review shall be the Planning Commission. 

   D.   Public Hearing And Notice: Public hearing and notice are required for a major site plan 
and architectural review pursuant to section 9-2A-6, "Public Notice, Hearings, And Decisions", 
of this chapter. 

   E.   Approval Findings: A major site plan and architectural review permit, or any modification 
thereto, shall be granted only when the designated approving authority makes all of the 
following findings: 

      1.   The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies 
with applicable zoning regulations, specific plan provisions, and improvement standards 
adopted by the City; 

      2.   The proposed architecture, site design, and landscape are suitable for the purposes of 
the building and the site and will enhance the character of the neighborhood and community; 

23



      3.   The architecture, character, and scale of the building and the site are compatible with 
the character of buildings on adjoining and nearby properties; 

      4.   The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation; and 

      5.   In the case of proposed alterations, additions, or demolitions to nonresidential buildings 
that are more than seventy five (75) years old: 

         a.   Alterations And Additions: The alteration or addition is compatible with the downtown 
revitalization plan. 

         b.   Demolitions: The applicant has demonstrated that the existing use cannot generate a 
reasonable rate of return; the existing building constitutes a hazard to public safety and is 
economically infeasible to rehabilitate, the design quality of the replacement building will be 
superior to the existing building and will be compatible with adjacent buildings and the character 
of downtown Lemoore, or the proposed demolition or removal is necessary to allow a project 
that will have public benefits outweighing the public benefits of retaining the existing building. 

   F.   Conditions Of Approval: The designated approving authority may impose conditions 
and/or require guarantees in order to ensure compliance with this title and to prevent adverse or 
detrimental impact to the surrounding neighborhood. (Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014) 

  

24



9-4A-5: DESCRIPTION OF LAND USES: 

CHILD DAYCARE FACILITY: Facility that provides nonmedical care and supervision of minor 
children for periods of less than twenty four (24) hours for an individual child. These facilities 
include the following, all of which are required to be licensed by the State: 

      1.   Child Daycare Center: Commercial or nonprofit child daycare facility operated outside of 
a home, typically able to accommodate fifteen (15) or more children, including infant centers, 
preschools, sick child centers, daycare centers, and school age daycare facilities. These may 
be operated in conjunction with a school or church facility, apartment complex, or as an 
independent land use. Also includes employer sponsored childcare centers. 

      2.   Family Daycare Home, Large: A single-family residencehome that regularly provides 
daycare care, protection, and supervision while the parents or guardians are away for seven (7) 
to fourteen (14) children, inclusive, including children under the age of ten (10) years who reside 
at the home. This description is consistent with section 1596.78 of the Health and Safety Code. 

      3.   Family Daycare Home, Small: A single-family residencehome that regularly provides 
daycare care, protection, and supervision while the parents or guardians are away for six (6) 
eight (8) or fewer children, including children under the age of ten (10) years who reside at the 
home, or up to eight (8) children if the conditions of section 1597.44 of the Health and Safety 
Code are met. Per State law, these small family daycare uses may not be regulated differently 
than single-family dwellings. This description is consistent with section 1596.78 of the Health 
and Safety Code. 

DWELLING, ACCESSORY UNIT: An attached or detached dwelling unit which provides 
complete independent living facilities for one or more persons, with permanent provisions for 
living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation sited on the same parcel as the primary dwelling 
unit. This definition includes granny flats. 

DWELLING, ACCESSORY UNIT (ADU): An attached or a detached residential dwelling unit 
that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons with permanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation. An accessory dwelling unit may 
be an efficiency unit, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 17958.1, and a 
manufactured home, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 18007. 

DWELLING, JUNIOR ACCESSORY UNIT (JADU): A dwelling unit that is no more than five 
hundred (500) square feet in size and contained entirely within a single-family residence that 
includes a separate entrance from the main entrance to the single-family residence, separate 
sanitation facilities, and an efficiency kitchen consisting of a cooking facility with appliances, a 
food preparation counter, and storage cabinets of reasonable size in relation to the size of the 
unit. 

SHORT-TERM RENTAL UNIT: Residential structure where all or a portion of the structure is 
rented for overnight lodging for a period of less than 30 days.  A short-term rental unit or site 
that provides a meal as part of its service is considered a bed and breakfast inn and is included 
under the definition of “bed and breakfast inn”.  

25

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=17958.1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=18007


 

TABLE 9-4B-2 
ALLOWED USES AND REQUIRED ENTITLEMENTS FOR BASE ZONING DISTRICTS 

  

P = Permitted by right   N = Not permitted 
A = Administrative use permit required   C = Conditional use permit required 

  

Land Use/Zoning District Residential Zoning Districts Special Purpose Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use Zoning Districts Office, Commercial, And Industrial 
Zoning Districts 

AR RVLD RLD RN RLMD RMD RHD W AG PR CF DMX-
1 

DMX-
2 

DMX-
3 

MU NC RC PO ML MH 

Residential uses: 

Caretaker housing C P P P P P P C N C C P P P P C C P P P 

Child daycare facility - family daycare home, 
large 1 

N A A A A A A N N N N A A A A N N N N N 

Child daycare facility - family daycare home, 
small 

N P P P P P P N N N N P P P P N N N N N 

Dwelling, multi-family N N N N P P P N N N N P 2 P P P P 27 N C N N 

Dwelling, second unitaccessory unit 3 A P A P A P A P A P A P A P N N N N N A P A P N N N N N N 

Dwelling, single-family P P P P P P N N N N N N A P N N N N N N 

Dwelling, two-family N N A P P P N N N N N N P P N N N N N N 

Dwelling, additional, meeting provisions of 
Government Code Section 66852.21 

P P P P P N N N N N N N N P N N N N N N 

Emergency shelter N N N N N N N N N N P N N N N N N N C N 

Employee housing, large P C N N N N N N P N N N N N N N N N N N 

Employee housing, small P P P P P P N N P N N N P P N N N N N N 

Gated residential community C C C C C C C N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

Group residential N N N N N P P N N N C P P P P N N N N N 

Guesthouse P P P P P P N N N N N N P P N N N N N N 

Live-work facility 5 N N N N N N A N N N N A A A A A N N N N 

26



Marijuana personal cultivation - personal 
recreational and medicinal use 28 

P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

Mobilehome park 6 N C C C C A A N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

Recreational vehicle park 24 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N C N C N 

Residential care facility 25 P P P P P P P N N N N N A P C C N N N N 

Residential care home N P P P P P P N N N N C P P P N N N N N 

Single room occupancy (SRO) facility N N N N N N P N N N N C C C N N N N N N 

Supportive housing P P P P P P P N N N N P P P P N N N N N 

Transitional housing P P P P P P P N N N N P P P P N N N N N 

Retail, service, and office uses:                     

Short-term rental unit P P P P P P P N N N N N P P N N N N N N 

Notes: 
   1

.   See additional regulations for large family daycare homes in section 9-4D-7 of this chapter. 

   2.   Only permitted on the first floor when located along an alley or side street; otherwise must be on an upper floor. 

   3.   See additional regulations for second accessory dwelling units in section 9-4D-12 of this chapter. 

   4.   Reserved. 

   5.   See additional regulations for live-work facilities in section 9-4D-8 of this chapter. 

   6.   See additional regulations for mobilehome parks in section 9-4D-10 of this chapter. 

   7.   Minimum lot size shall be 20,000 square feet. 

   8.   All activities and storage shall be located within an enclosed structure(s). 

   9.   See additional regulations for community gardens in section 9-4D-3 of this chapter. 

   10.   See special permit requirements in title 3, chapter 4, article C of the Municipal Code. 

   11.   Maximum tenant space shall be 10,000 square feet. 

   12.   See additional regulations for wireless telecommunication facilities in section 9-4D-15 of this chapter. 

   13.   Facilities less than 75 feet tall are permitted by right, except that major site plan and architectural review is still required. Otherwise, a 
conditional use permit is required in addition to major site plan and architectural review. 

   14.   See additional regulations for alcoholic beverage sales in section 9-4D-2 of this chapter. 

   15.   Use is permitted by right when located on the ground floor. Otherwise, a conditional use permit is required. 

   16.   See additional regulations for drive-in and drive-through facilities in section 9-4D-4 of this chapter. 

   17.   See additional regulations for massage therapy in section 9-4D-9 of this chapter. Additionally, see additional permit requirements in title 4, 
chapter 7 of the Municipal Code. 

   18.   Maximum tenant space shall be 30,000 square feet; however, store size may be larger upon approval of an administrative use permit. 

   19.   See additional regulations for semipermanent mobile food vendors in section 9-4D-13 of this chapter. 

   20.   See additional regulations for sexually oriented businesses in section 9-4D-14 of this chapter. 

   21.   See additional regulations for thrift stores in section 9-4D-16 of this chapter. 

   22.   See additional regulations for fueling stations in section 9-4D-6 of this chapter. 

   23.   Use is permitted by right when located more than 500 feet from a residential use or district. 

   24.   See additional regulations for recreational vehicle parks in section 9-4D-11 of this chapter. 

   25.   This "sensitive receptor" use shall not be located within: 

      a.   500 feet of a freeway, urban roads carrying 100,000 vehicles per day, or rural roads carrying 50,000 vehicles per day. 

      b.   1,000 feet of a distribution center (that accommodates more than 100 trucks a day, more than 40 trucks with operating transport 
refrigeration units [TRUs] a day, or where TRU operation exceeds 300 hours per week). 

      c.   300 feet of any dry cleaning operation that uses toxic chemicals. For operations with 2 or more machines, a minimum 500 feet shall be 
provided. For operations with 3 or more machines, a larger distance may be required based upon consultation with the Kings County Air District. 

      d.   300 feet of a "large gas station", defined as a facility with a throughput of 3.6 million gallons or more per year. 

   26.   If developed incidental to an existing charitable operation, this use is allowed subject to approval of an administrative use permit. 

   27.   Permitted on second floors above retail and neighborhood serving office when ancillary in size and does not interfere with primary retail use. 

   28.   Use is permitted as allowed by State law and as authorized in title 4, chapter 8 of the Municipal Code.

27

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8412#JD_9-4D-7
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8501#JD_9-4D-12
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8420#JD_9-4D-8
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8442#JD_9-4D-10
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8326#JD_9-4D-3
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8624#JD_9-4D-15
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8310#JD_9-4D-2
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8336#JD_9-4D-4
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8438#JD_9-4D-9
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8513#JD_9-4D-13
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8541#JD_9-4D-14
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8661#JD_9-4D-16
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8406#JD_9-4D-6
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8488#JD_9-4D-11


 

9-4D-12: ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND JUNIOR ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS: 

   A.   Purpose And Applicability: This section applies to accessory dwelling units within the City. 
Accessory dwelling units are permitted upon issuance of an administrative use permit in the 
agricultural and residential zoning districts subject to the standards of this section. The purpose 
of this section is to regulate accessory dwelling units in residential zoning districts and on 
residential property consistent with State law. Implementation of this section is intended to 
expand housing opportunities for low income and moderate income or elderly households by 
increasing the number of rental units available within existing neighborhoods while maintaining 
the primarily single-family residential character of the area. 

   B.   Development Standards: Pursuant to Government Code section 65852.2, accessory 
dwelling units shall be permitted on agricultural and residential parcels when the following 
conditions are met: 

      1.   The parcel contains an existing single-family dwelling. 

      2.   No more than one (1) accessory dwelling unit shall be allowed per parcel. 

      3.   The property owner shall occupy either the primary unit or accessory dwelling unit. The 
property owner shall record a declaration acknowledging owner occupancy, recorded with the 
property as a condition of the administrative permit. 

      4.   An accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed: 

         a.   Fifty percent (50%) of the existing living area of the primary dwelling when attached to 
the primary dwelling. For purpose of this standard, "living area" shall mean the interior habitable 
area of a dwelling unit, including basements, attics, bedrooms, kitchens, living room, etc. It does 
not include a garage or any accessory structure; or 

         b.   One thousand two hundred (1,200) square feet when detached from the primary 
dwelling. 

      5.   Building setbacks for attached accessory dwelling units shall comply with all required 
building setbacks for the primary dwelling unit. 

      6.   The maximum height of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed the height 
of the primary dwelling unit. 

      7.   No accessory dwelling unit may be sold separately from the primary dwelling unit. (Ord. 
2017-06, 5-16-2017) 

A.    Purpose and intent. This section is intended to meet the requirements of State law in 
providing for accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs) as 
required by and in compliance with Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22, as 
either may be amended from time to time. The standards established by this section shall be 
interpreted and applied consistent with the standards set forth in Government Code 
Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22. To the extent there is a conflict between the provisions of this 
section and the provisions of either Government Code Section 65852.2 or 65852.22, including 
as either may be amended, the applicable provision(s) of Government Code 
Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 shall apply. The requirements and exceptions specified in 
Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 shall apply to the construction of ADUs and 

28

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22


JADUs pursuant to this section. This section is not intended to regulate multigenerational 
dwelling units, which are dwelling units that do not include a kitchen, contained entirely within 
the walls of a proposed or existing single-family residence where access is not restricted 
between areas of the residence. 

B.    Determinations. ADUs and JADUs are residential uses. ADUs and JADUs that comply with 
this section are considered accessory uses and accessory buildings and therefore do not 
exceed the allowable density for the lots upon which ADUs and JADUs are located. ADUs and 
JADUs that comply with this section are considered to be consistent with the general plan and 
zoning designations for the lot. ADUs and JADUs, and the availability to construct ADUs and 
JADUs, will be counted for purposes of identifying adequate sites for housing in the City’s 
housing element, as provided in Government Code Section 65583.1(a), and to reduce the City’s 
share of the regional housing need, as provided in Government Code Section 65583.1(d). 

C.    Unless otherwise stated in this section, the requirements and standards of this Title that 
apply to the lot and the primary dwelling shall apply to any ADU and/or JADU, including height, 
setback, and landscaping. All Fire and Building Code requirements that apply to detached 
dwellings and accessory structures generally shall apply to ADUs and JADUs. 

D.    Development Standards. ADUs, JADUs, tiny homes, and multi-generational housing units 
shall meet that applicable standards in Table 9-4D-12-A.  

TABLE 9-4D-12-A 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR ADUs, JADUs, TINY HOMES, AND MULTI-
GENERATIONAL HOUSING UNITS 

Requirement ADU (including 
Cottage Home) JADU Tiny Home 

(type of ADU 

Multi-
generational 
housing unit 

(not an ADU or 
JADU 

Zone districts 
where allowed: 

All residential and mixed 
use zone districts 

All residential 
and mixed use 
zone districts 

All residential 
and mixed 
use zone 
districts 

All residential 
and mixed use 
zone districts 

Lot types where 
allowed: 

 Lots with either single-
family or multi-family 
dwelling (existing or 
proposed) 

 Lots with a 
single-family 
dwelling 
(existing or 
proposed) 

 Lots with a 
single-family 
dwelling 
(existing or 
proposed) 

Lots with a 
single-family 
dwelling (existing 
or proposed) 

Number allowed 
on a single-
family lot: 

One (1)   One (1) in 
addition to one 
(1) ADU 

See ADU One (1) 

Attached to or 
detached from 
main dwelling: 

Either attached or 
detached.  Attached 
must have separate 
exterior entry. 

 Attached. 
Must have 
separate 
exterior entry. 

Detached Attached 

Number allowed 
on a multi-family 
lot: 

Up to two (2) detached.  
If attached, up to 25% of 

  None   None   None 

29

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65583.1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65583.1


the existing multi-family 
dwelling units 

Owner 
occupancy: 

No requirements Property must 
reside in either 
the main 
dwelling or the 
JADU 

No 
requirements 

No requirements 

Unit size: At least 220 sq.ft. If 
detached, up to 1,200 
sq.ft.  If attached, up to 
50% of the existing 
primary dwelling, or 
1,200 sq.ft., whichever 
is greater. 

At least 220 
sq.ft. and not 
more than 500 
sq.ft. 

The first floor 
shall be at 
least 100 
sq.ft. 

No size 
requirement 

Building 
setbacks: 

For attached ADUs, 
following main dwelling 
setbacks.  For detached 
ADUs, 15 feet minimum 
setback from front 
property line and four 
(4) feet minimum 
setback from side and 
rear property lines. 

Per main 
dwelling 
setback 
requirements. 

15 feet 
minimum 
setback from 
front property 
line and four 
(4) feet 
minimum 
setback from 
side and rear 
property lines. 

Per main 
dwelling setback 
requirements 

Maximum 
height: 

For detached ADUs, 16 
feet.  For attached 
ADUs, per main 
dwelling height 
requirements 

Per main 
dwelling height 
requirements 

14 feet Per main 
dwelling height 
requirements 

Separate kitchen 
required: 

Yes Yes Yes No 

Separate 
bathroom 
required: 

 Yes No, but if no 
bathroom, 
there must be 
an interior 
entryway to the 
main dwelling 

 Yes Yes 

Connection to 
water and sewer 
required: 

 Yes. May be shared 
with main dwelling, but 
not required. 

 Yes. May be 
shared with 
main dwelling, 
but not 
required. 

 Yes, if 
occupancy is 
intended to be 
for more than 
72 hours 

Yes 

Additional on-
site parking 
required: 

One (1) space unless 
an exception is made 
per Government Code 
65852.2. The additional 
parking space may be 
tandem and within a 

 No No No 

30



building setback area if 
it is paved with a non-
permeable surface. 

Fire sprinklers 
required: 

Yes, if required for the 
main dwelling unit 

Yes, if required 
for the main 
dwelling unit 

No Yes, if required 
for the main 
dwelling unit     
 

 

E.    Building standards. 

1.    ADUs and JADUs must be architecturally compatible with the primary dwelling, having 
similar materials, colors, and style of construction. The design and size of ADUs and JADUs 
shall conform to all applicable standards of the building, health, and other codes adopted by the 
City. 

2.    Attached ADUs and JADUs shall be compatible with and made structurally a part of the 
primary dwelling (e.g., share a common wall with the primary dwelling, rely partially on the 
primary dwelling for structural support, or be attached to the primary dwelling). 

3.    Adequate provisions shall be made for the water and sewer service and drainage 
generated by the occupancy of the accessory dwelling unit as determined by the City Engineer. 
The ADU/JADU can either have shared or separate services for electric, gas, sewer, and water. 

F.    Connection, impact, and other fees. 

1.    Except as provided in Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22, ADUs and 
JADUs are subject to fees and assessments required by the Lemoore Municipal Code for new 
residential construction, including connection fees, and capacity charges.  However, 
development impact fees shall not be assessed on ADUs or JADUs. 

2.    An inspection fee shall be assessed for any inspection to determine if an ADU or 
JADU complies with applicable building standards. 

G.    Permit approval. A permit must be obtained for the construction or installation of an ADU or 
JADU. An application, together with the required fee in compliance with the City’s fee schedule, 
shall be filed with the Department and accompanied by detailed and fully dimensioned plans, 
architectural drawings/sketches, elevations, floor plans, landscape plans, and/or any other 
data/materials identified in the Department handout for ADU/JADU applications. Following 
receipt of a completed application, the Director shall make an investigation of the facts bearing 
on the case to determine compliance with this section and ministerially approve a compliant 
application in accordance with (Gov. Code, 35852.2 subd. (a)(3) and (b).. 

If the permit application to create an ADU or a JADU is submitted with a permit application to 
construct a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the City may delay acting on the permit 
application for the ADU or the JADU until the City acts on the permit application to create the 
new single-family dwelling. The applicant may request a delay in the time available for the City 
to act on the application, as provided by State law. 

H.    Cottage home program standards. This subsection provides locational and general 
standards for the cottage home program which is allowed in the applicable residential areas, 
subject to the following criteria and standards. This subsection does not supplant the remainder 
of this section for ADU and JADU construction. 

31

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22


1.    Cottage home. A cottage home is a type of ADU where pre-approved building plans 
are made available by the City and the ADU is constructed in compliance with the provided 
plans and this subsection. A cottage home shall count towards the limit on the number of ADUs 
permitted on a single lot. 

2.    Zone districts. A cottage home is allowed in zones that allow an ADU. 

3.    Application procedures. Applications for the cottage home program shall be filed with 
the Community Development Department. 

4.    Developmental standards. A cottage home shall be constructed in compliance with 
the following developmental standards: 

a.    Only one cottage home unit shall be created on a single-family parcel. 

b.    The cottage home shall be built using plans provided by the City. 

c.    Adequate provisions shall be made for the water and sewer service and drainage 
generated by the occupancy of the cottage home unit as determined by the City 
Engineer. The cottage home can have either shared or separate services for electric, 
gas, sewer, and water. 

J. Tiny house standards. A tiny home is a A tiny house may be approved for use as an 
accessory dwelling unit if the following requirements are met: 

1. The tiny house meets all the requirements for an accessory dwelling unit. 

2. The tiny house has at least 100 square feet of first floor interior living space and 
includes basic functional areas that support normal daily routines such as cooking, sleeping, 
and toiletry. 

3. The tiny house is designed and built to look like a conventional building structure. 

4. The tiny house is licensed and registered with the California Department of Motor 
Vehicles and meets ANSI 119.2 or 119.5 requirements. 

5. The tiny house Is towable by a bumper hitch, frame-towing hitch, or fifth-wheel 
connection and cannot (nor is it designed to) move under its own power. 

6. The tiny house is no larger than allowed by California State Law for movement on 
public highways. 

7. No mechanical equipment is located on the roof of the movable tiny house. 

8. When sited on a lot for more than 72 hours at a location visible from the public 
street, the tiny house shall have skirting that covers the wheels and undercarriage and that 
extends to ground level. 

9. When sited on a lot for more than 72 hours, water and sewer connections shall be 
made permanent prior to occupancy. Shut-off valves, meters, and regulators shall not be 
located beneath the tiny house. 

  

32



 

TABLE 9-5A-4A 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Measurement/Zoning 
District 

Residential Zoning Districts 
AR RVLD RLD RN RLMD RMD RHD 

Site area per dwelling 
unit, minimum (square 
feet)1 

No 
minimum 

15,000 6,000 
5,000 

3,000 3,000 2,500 1,700 

Lot dimensions:               
Lot size, minimum 
(square feet) 

40,000 15,000 
10,000 

7,000 
5,000 

3,000 3,000 2,000 2,000 

Lot size, maximum 
(square feet) 

No 
maximum 

40,000   15,00
0 

7,000 7,000 5,000 1 No 
maximum 

Lot width, minimum 10 150' 150' 
100’ 

60'50’ 50' 60' 60' 60' 

Lot depth, minimum 200' 150' 100' 90' 90' 80' 80' 
Setbacks, minimum:               
Front yard:               

Generally 2,12 60' 40' 25’ 18' 15’ 15' 20'15’ 20'15’ 20'15’ 
To garage, front 
facing 

- - 20' 20' 20' 20' 20' 

To garage, side load - - 15' - - - - 
To porch - - 12' 12' 12' 12' - 

Side yard:               
Interior side 15' 10' 5' 4 5' 4 5' 10' 10' 
Street side 12 25' 15' 15'10’ 15'10’ 15'10’ 15' 15' 
Combined both sides - - 10' 10' 10' - - 

Rear yard:               
Generally 10' 4 10' 4 10' 4 10' 4 10' 10' 10' 
To detached alley 
loaded garage 

5' 5' 5' 0' 0' 0' 0' 

Abutting a street 11 20' 20' 20' 20' 20' - - 
Separation between 
buildings, minimum 7 

10' 10' 10' 10' 10' 10' 10' 

Height, maximum 40' 40' 35' 35' 35' 45' 60'         
Notes: 

   1.   Accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units are not counted when calculating site area per 
dwelling unit. Larger lot sizes may be permitted through site plan and architectural review for condominiums, 
townhomes, and similar attached developments. 

33



   2.   Reserved. For single-family residential subdivisions, the front yard setback of adjacent homes shall have a 
minimum 2 foot stagger between adjacent lots. Reduced setbacks may be approved as part of a planned unit 
development overlay zoning district or master home plan approval as a way to provide varied setbacks. 

   3.   For every 1 foot in additional height, an additional 1 foot in setback is required. 

   4.   Additional 5 feet is required for each additional story. 

   5.   Required setback is 10 feet when adjacent to any residential zoning district. 

   6.   Required setback is 15 feet when adjacent to any residential or mixed use zoning district. 

   7.   Separation requirements apply to buildings on the same site as well as separation between buildings on 
adjacent parcels. 

   8.   Also see subsection 9-5D1-2E, "Special Landscape Requirements", of this chapter for corresponding minimum 
landscaping and pervious surface requirements. 

   9.   Additional building height may be allowed through site plan and architectural review when additional height is 
necessary for mechanical equipment as part of an industrial operation. 

   10.   For flag lots, the minimum width for the access corridor shall be 10 feet. The lot width shall be measured from 
the front property line as described in section 9-5A-3, "Setback Determination And Requirements", of this article. 

   11.   See section 9-5B-7, "Urban-Rural Edge", of this chapter. 

   12.   15 foot landscape buffer required along arterial and collector streets in addition to minimum setback. These 2 
standards are not cumulative and may overlap. See subsection 9-5D1-2E2, "Landscape Buffers Required Along 
Arterial And Collector Streets", of this chapter. 

(Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014; amd. Ord. 2015-08, 1-5-2016) 

  

9-5C-3: DESIGN STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS: 
The standards contained in this section shall apply to new residential development, including 
single-family residential subdivisions, master home plans, and multi-family residential 
developments. These standards are intended to implement the design concepts described 
above. 

      2.   Building Placement And Orientation: Create diverse residential streetscapes that 
facilitate interaction between residents and include homes and residential structures that orient 
to the street. 

         a.   For single-family residential subdivisions, the front yard setback of adjacent homes 
shall have a minimum two foot (2') stagger between adjacent lots. 

         ba.   Multi-unit residential buildings (e.g., townhomes, condominiums, apartments) shall be 
designed with different building setbacks and facade variations when multiple buildings are 
provided. 

         cb.   Orient home and building sites to take advantage of solar heating and opportunities 
for solar energy generation. 

         dc.   Residential development adjacent to open space/parks and other public spaces shall 
maintain visual access from residential units and common buildings to provide "eyes on the 
street" surveillance opportunities. 

         ed.   Buildings shall be designed with structural and spatial variety along the front facades 
to avoid monotonous appearance. 

34

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-9188#JD_9-5D1-2


July 18 City Council Version 
 

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

Clean Version  
 
 

 

TABLE 9-2A-7-1 
PLANNING PERMIT AND ENTITLEMENTS AND REVIEW AND APPEAL AUTHORITY1 

Planning Permit Or 
Entitlement 

Notice/Hearing 
Requirement 

Authority 
Planning 
Director 

Planning 
Commission 

City 
Council 

Administrative permits: 
 

      
Zoning clearance (e.g., 
building permit, signs, 
business license) 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Temporary use permit None Final Appeal Appeal 
Tree permit for trees on 
private property 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Reasonable 
accommodation 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Similar use 
determination 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Official zoning 
interpretation 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Minor home occupation 
permit 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Highway oriented sign 
permit 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Administrative use 
permit 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Minor deviation None Final Appeal Appeal    
 

 

Sign program None Final Appeal Appeal 

35



Site plan and 
architectural review 

None Final Appeal Appeal 

Quasi-judicial permits 
and entitlements: 

        

Conditional use permit Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 
Major home occupation 
permit 

Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 

       
 

  

Variance Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 
Public convenience or 
necessity 

Public hearing Recommending Final Appeal 2 

Legislative approvals:         
Specific plan Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
Development agreement Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
Planned Unit 
Development 

Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 

Zoning amendment Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
Prezoning Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final 
General plan amendment Public hearing 3 Recommending Recommending Final      

 

  

36



9-2B-12: SITE PLAN AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW: 

   A.   Purpose: The purpose of site plan and architectural review is for the review of the design 
and layout of new development in the City to ensure that it is consistent with the regulations of 
this title, other relevant titles in the Lemoore Municipal Code, and all relevant City policies, 
requirements, and development standards that would apply to the project prior to the issuance 
of subsequent permits, such as discretionary actions required by the City Zoning Ordinance or 
City Subdivision Ordinance, improvement plans, and building permits. It is the intent that site 
plan and architectural review be a ministerial action limited to review of the project development 
project for conformance with City of Lemoore ordinances, policies, requirements, and 
development standards. (Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014) 

   B.   Applicability: Site plan and architectural review shall be required prior to the issuance of 
any ministerial building permits or site improvement plans and prior to any discretionary action 
of corresponding development applications (e.g., conditional use permit, variance). Site plan 
and architectural review may serve as the preliminary application for housing development 
projects seeking vesting rights pursuant to SB 330, the Housing Crisis Act of 2019. 

      1.   Review Required: Site plan and architectural review is required for all of the following 
activities: 

         a.   New nonresidential or mixed-use developments; 

         b.   Nonresidential building additions greater than 1,000 square feet;  

         c.   Conceptual plan for a mixed-use center as required by chapter 7, "Mixed Use 
Development Standards", of this title. 

         d.   New multi-family residential developments of more than two units (e.g., apartments, 
condominiums, townhomes) (Ord. 2018-03, 5-15-2018) 

         e.   The design and layout of new residential subdivisions as part of the tentative 
subdivision map process as provided in title 8, chapter 7, "Land Division", of the Municipal 
Code; 

         f.   Demolition or exterior alterations and additions to nonresidential buildings that are 
more than seventy five (75) years old. 

      2.   Exemptions: The following activities are specifically exempt from site plan and 
architectural review: 

         a.   Single-family residential homes and duplexes on an existing lot; 

         b.   Additions to or the exterior remodels of single-family residential homes within normal 
setbacks; 

         c.   Accessory structures consistent with the provisions of section 9-4D-18, "Residential 
Accessory Structures", of this title; 

         d.   Changes to the exterior facade of existing buildings; 

         e.   Painting existing buildings in the DMX zoning districts with historic color palettes as 
described in subsection 9-6-4C, "Colors And Painting", of this title; 

37



         f.   Repairs and maintenance to the site or structure that do not add to, enlarge, or expand 
the area occupied by the land use, or the floor area of the structure and that employ the same 
materials and design as the original construction; 

         g.   Interior alterations that do not increase the gross floor area within the structure, or 
change/expand the permitted use of the structure (including solar collectors); and 

         h.   Construction, alteration, or maintenance by a public utility or public agency of 
underground or overhead utilities intended to service existing or nearby approved 
developments. 

i. Nonresidential building additions of 1,000 square feet of gross floor area or less. 

   C.   Approval Authority: The designated approval authority for site plan and architectural 
design review shall be the Community Development Director. 

   D.   Process: The applicant shall provide a completed application on a form provided by the 
City, a site plan and, if new non-residential buildings or multi-family dwellings are proposed, an 
elevation plan. No public hearing or notice is required for a site plan and architectural review. 
Site plan and architectural review is a ministerial process conducted by City staff to determine 
compliance with existing City of Lemoore ordinances, policies, requirements, and development 
standards and is therefore exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) per State CEQA Guidelines Section 15268.  

   E.   Approval: A site plan and architectural review permit, or any modification thereto, shall be 
granted only when the designated approving authority finds that the proposed project is 
consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies with applicable zoning 
regulations, specific plan provisions, and policies and improvement standards adopted by the 
City, or that a general plan amendment or zoning amendment is going to be subsequently 
applied for by the developer. If the site plan submitted requires major changes before this 
finding can be made, the developer may be required to make changes and submit the site plan 
again. 

   F.   Post approval Implementation: A site plan and architectural design review permit is 
ministerial in nature. As such, the Planning Director may not impose discretionary conditions on 
the issuance of the permit. If the proposed development project requires approval of a 
discretionary action after completion of the site and architectural design review process, 
conditions of approval can be placed on the discretionary approval (Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014) 

   G.   Appeals. If the applicant disagrees with the interpretation or application of a City 
ordinance, policy, requirement, or development standard, they may appeal the interpretation per 
procedures in Section 9-2A-7 and 9-2A-8. 

   H.   Expiration. A site plan and architectural design review permit shall expire one (1) year 
after issuance unless an application for a related discretionary approval or a building permit is 
submitted. Upon written request by the applicant prior to expiration, the Community 
Development Director may extend the expiration  for an additional one (1) year. 

  

38



9-4A-5: DESCRIPTION OF LAND USES: 

CHILD DAYCARE FACILITY: Facility that provides nonmedical care and supervision of minor 
children for periods of less than twenty four (24) hours for an individual child. These facilities 
include the following, all of which are required to be licensed by the State: 

      1.   Child Daycare Center: Commercial or nonprofit child daycare facility operated outside of 
a home, typically able to accommodate fifteen (15) or more children, including infant centers, 
preschools, sick child centers, daycare centers, and school age daycare facilities. These may 
be operated in conjunction with a school or church facility, apartment complex, or as an 
independent land use. Also includes employer sponsored childcare centers. 

      2.   Family Daycare Home, Large: A home that regularly provides care, protection, and 
supervision while the parents or guardians are away for seven (7) to fourteen (14) children, 
inclusive, including children under the age of ten (10) years who reside at the home. This 
description is consistent with section 1596.78 of the Health and Safety Code. 

      3.   Family Daycare Home, Small: A home that regularly provides care, protection, and 
supervision while the parents or guardians are away for six (6) or fewer children, including 
children under the age of ten (10) years who reside at the home, or up to eight (8) children if the 
conditions of section 1597.44 of the Health and Safety Code are met. Per State law, small 
family daycare uses may not be regulated differently than single-family dwellings. This 
description is consistent with section 1596.78 of the Health and Safety Code. 

DWELLING, ACCESSORY UNIT (ADU): An attached or a detached residential dwelling unit 
that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons with permanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation. An accessory dwelling unit may 
be an efficiency unit, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 17958.1, and a 
manufactured home, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 18007. 

DWELLING, JUNIOR ACCESSORY UNIT (JADU): A dwelling unit that is no more than five 
hundred (500) square feet in size and contained entirely within a single-family residence that 
includes a separate entrance from the main entrance to the single-family residence, separate 
sanitation facilities, and an efficiency kitchen consisting of a cooking facility with appliances, a 
food preparation counter, and storage cabinets of reasonable size in relation to the size of the 
unit. 

SHORT-TERM RENTAL UNIT: Residential structure where all or a portion of the structure is 
rented for overnight lodging for a period of less than 30 days.  A short-term rental unit or site 
that provides a meal as part of its service is considered a bed and breakfast inn and is included 
under the definition of “bed and breakfast inn”.  

39

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=17958.1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=18007


 

TABLE 9-4B-2 
ALLOWED USES AND REQUIRED ENTITLEMENTS FOR BASE ZONING DISTRICTS 

  

P = Permitted by right   N = Not permitted 
A = Administrative use permit required   C = Conditional use permit required 

  

Land Use/Zoning District Residential Zoning Districts Special Purpose Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use Zoning Districts Office, Commercial, And Industrial 
Zoning Districts 

AR RVLD RLD RN RLMD RMD RHD W AG PR CF DMX-
1 

DMX-
2 

DMX-
3 

MU NC RC PO ML MH 

Residential uses: 

Caretaker housing C P P P P P P C N C C P P P P C C P P P 

Child daycare facility - family daycare home, 
large 1 

N A A A A A A N N N N A A A A N N N N N 

Child daycare facility - family daycare home, 
small 

N P P P P P P N N N N P P P P N N N N N 

Dwelling, multi-family N N N N P P P N N N N P 2 P P P P 27 N C N N 

Dwelling, accessory unit 3  P A P A P A P A P A P A P N N N N N A P A P N N N N N N 

Dwelling, single-family P P P P P P N N N N N N A P N N N N N N 

Dwelling, two-family N N A P P P N N N N N N P P N N N N N N 

Dwelling, additional, meeting provisions of 
Government Code Section 66852.21 

P P P P P N N N N N N N N P N N N N N N 

Emergency shelter N N N N N N N N N N P N N N N N N N C N 

Employee housing, large P C N N N N N N P N N N N N N N N N N N 

Employee housing, small P P P P P P N N P N N N P P N N N N N N 

Gated residential community C C C C C C C N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

Group residential N N N N N P P N N N C P P P P N N N N N 

Guesthouse P P P P P P N N N N N N P P N N N N N N 

Live-work facility 5 N N N N N N A N N N N A A A A A N N N N 

40



Marijuana personal cultivation - personal 
recreational and medicinal use 28 

P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 P 28 N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

Mobilehome park 6 N C C C C A A N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

Recreational vehicle park 24 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N C N C N 

Residential care facility 25 P P P P P P P N N N N N A P C C N N N N 

Residential care home N P P P P P P N N N N C P P P N N N N N 

Single room occupancy (SRO) facility N N N N N N P N N N N C C C N N N N N N 

Supportive housing P P P P P P P N N N N P P P P N N N N N 

Transitional housing P P P P P P P N N N N P P P P N N N N N 

Retail, service, and office uses:                     

Short-term rental unit P P P P P P P N N N N N P P N N N N N N 

Notes: 
   1

.   See additional regulations for large family daycare homes in section 9-4D-7 of this chapter. 

   2.   Only permitted on the first floor when located along an alley or side street; otherwise must be on an upper floor. 

   3.   See additional regulations for accessory dwelling units in section 9-4D-12 of this chapter. 

   4.   Reserved. 

   5.   See additional regulations for live-work facilities in section 9-4D-8 of this chapter. 

   6.   See additional regulations for mobilehome parks in section 9-4D-10 of this chapter. 

   7.   Minimum lot size shall be 20,000 square feet. 

   8.   All activities and storage shall be located within an enclosed structure(s). 

   9.   See additional regulations for community gardens in section 9-4D-3 of this chapter. 

   10.   See special permit requirements in title 3, chapter 4, article C of the Municipal Code. 

   11.   Maximum tenant space shall be 10,000 square feet. 

   12.   See additional regulations for wireless telecommunication facilities in section 9-4D-15 of this chapter. 

   13.   Facilities less than 75 feet tall are permitted by right, except that major site plan and architectural review is still required. Otherwise, a 
conditional use permit is required in addition to major site plan and architectural review. 

   14.   See additional regulations for alcoholic beverage sales in section 9-4D-2 of this chapter. 

   15.   Use is permitted by right when located on the ground floor. Otherwise, a conditional use permit is required. 

   16.   See additional regulations for drive-in and drive-through facilities in section 9-4D-4 of this chapter. 

   17.   See additional regulations for massage therapy in section 9-4D-9 of this chapter. Additionally, see additional permit requirements in title 4, 
chapter 7 of the Municipal Code. 

   18.   Maximum tenant space shall be 30,000 square feet; however, store size may be larger upon approval of an administrative use permit. 

   19.   See additional regulations for semipermanent mobile food vendors in section 9-4D-13 of this chapter. 

   20.   See additional regulations for sexually oriented businesses in section 9-4D-14 of this chapter. 

   21.   See additional regulations for thrift stores in section 9-4D-16 of this chapter. 

   22.   See additional regulations for fueling stations in section 9-4D-6 of this chapter. 

   23.   Use is permitted by right when located more than 500 feet from a residential use or district. 

   24.   See additional regulations for recreational vehicle parks in section 9-4D-11 of this chapter. 

   25.   This "sensitive receptor" use shall not be located within: 

      a.   500 feet of a freeway, urban roads carrying 100,000 vehicles per day, or rural roads carrying 50,000 vehicles per day. 

      b.   1,000 feet of a distribution center (that accommodates more than 100 trucks a day, more than 40 trucks with operating transport 
refrigeration units [TRUs] a day, or where TRU operation exceeds 300 hours per week). 

      c.   300 feet of any dry cleaning operation that uses toxic chemicals. For operations with 2 or more machines, a minimum 500 feet shall be 
provided. For operations with 3 or more machines, a larger distance may be required based upon consultation with the Kings County Air District. 

      d.   300 feet of a "large gas station", defined as a facility with a throughput of 3.6 million gallons or more per year. 

   26.   If developed incidental to an existing charitable operation, this use is allowed subject to approval of an administrative use permit. 

   27.   Permitted on second floors above retail and neighborhood serving office when ancillary in size and does not interfere with primary retail use. 

   28.   Use is permitted as allowed by State law and as authorized in title 4, chapter 8 of the Municipal Code.

41

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8412#JD_9-4D-7
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8501#JD_9-4D-12
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8420#JD_9-4D-8
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8442#JD_9-4D-10
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8326#JD_9-4D-3
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8624#JD_9-4D-15
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8310#JD_9-4D-2
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8336#JD_9-4D-4
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8438#JD_9-4D-9
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8513#JD_9-4D-13
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8541#JD_9-4D-14
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8661#JD_9-4D-16
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8406#JD_9-4D-6
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-8488#JD_9-4D-11


 

9-4D-12: ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND JUNIOR ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS: 

    

A.    Purpose and intent. This section is intended to meet the requirements of State law in 
providing for accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs) as 
required by and in compliance with Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22, as 
either may be amended from time to time. The standards established by this section shall be 
interpreted and applied consistent with the standards set forth in Government Code 
Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22. To the extent there is a conflict between the provisions of this 
section and the provisions of either Government Code Section 65852.2 or 65852.22, including 
as either may be amended, the applicable provision(s) of Government Code 
Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 shall apply. The requirements and exceptions specified in 
Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 shall apply to the construction of ADUs and 
JADUs pursuant to this section. This section is not intended to regulate multigenerational 
dwelling units, which are dwelling units that do not include a kitchen, contained entirely within 
the walls of a proposed or existing single-family residence where access is not restricted 
between areas of the residence. 

B.    Determinations. ADUs and JADUs are residential uses. ADUs and JADUs that comply with 
this section are considered accessory uses and accessory buildings and therefore do not 
exceed the allowable density for the lots upon which ADUs and JADUs are located. ADUs and 
JADUs that comply with this section are considered to be consistent with the general plan and 
zoning designations for the lot. ADUs and JADUs, and the availability to construct ADUs and 
JADUs, will be counted for purposes of identifying adequate sites for housing in the City’s 
housing element, as provided in Government Code Section 65583.1(a), and to reduce the City’s 
share of the regional housing need, as provided in Government Code Section 65583.1(d). 

C.    Unless otherwise stated in this section, the requirements and standards of this Title that 
apply to the lot and the primary dwelling shall apply to any ADU and/or JADU, including height, 
setback, and landscaping. All Fire and Building Code requirements that apply to detached 
dwellings and accessory structures generally shall apply to ADUs and JADUs. 

D.    Development Standards. ADUs, JADUs, tiny homes, and multi-generational housing units 
shall meet that applicable standards in Table 9-4D-12-A.  

TABLE 9-4D-12-A 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR ADUs, JADUs, TINY HOMES, AND MULTI-
GENERATIONAL HOUSING UNITS 

Requirement ADU (including 
Cottage Home) JADU Tiny Home 

(type of ADU 

Multi-
generational 
housing unit 

(not an ADU or 
JADU 

Zone districts 
where allowed: 

All residential and mixed 
use zone districts 

All residential 
and mixed use 
zone districts 

All residential 
and mixed 
use zone 
districts 

All residential 
and mixed use 
zone districts 

42

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65583.1
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65583.1


Lot types where 
allowed: 

 Lots with either single-
family or multi-family 
dwelling (existing or 
proposed) 

 Lots with a 
single-family 
dwelling 
(existing or 
proposed) 

 Lots with a 
single-family 
dwelling 
(existing or 
proposed) 

Lots with a 
single-family 
dwelling (existing 
or proposed) 

Number allowed 
on a single-
family lot: 

One (1)   One (1) in 
addition to one 
(1) ADU 

See ADU One (1) 

Attached to or 
detached from 
main dwelling: 

Either attached or 
detached.  Attached 
must have separate 
exterior entry. 

 Attached. 
Must have 
separate 
exterior entry. 

Detached Attached 

Number allowed 
on a multi-family 
lot: 

Up to two (2) detached.  
If attached, up to 25% of 
the existing multi-family 
dwelling units 

  None   None   None 

Owner 
occupancy: 

No requirements Property must 
reside in either 
the main 
dwelling or the 
JADU 

No 
requirements 

No requirements 

Unit size: At least 220 sq.ft. If 
detached, up to 1,200 
sq.ft.  If attached, up to 
50% of the existing 
primary dwelling, or 
1,200 sq.ft., whichever 
is greater. 

At least 220 
sq.ft. and not 
more than 500 
sq.ft. 

The first floor 
shall be at 
least 100 
sq.ft. 

No size 
requirement 

Building 
setbacks: 

For attached ADUs, 
following main dwelling 
setbacks.  For detached 
ADUs, 15 feet minimum 
setback from front 
property line and four 
(4) feet minimum 
setback from side and 
rear property lines. 

Per main 
dwelling 
setback 
requirements. 

15 feet 
minimum 
setback from 
front property 
line and four 
(4) feet 
minimum 
setback from 
side and rear 
property lines. 

Per main 
dwelling setback 
requirements 

Maximum 
height: 

For detached ADUs, 16 
feet.  For attached 
ADUs, per main 
dwelling height 
requirements 

Per main 
dwelling height 
requirements 

14 feet Per main 
dwelling height 
requirements 

Separate kitchen 
required: 

Yes Yes Yes No 

43



Separate 
bathroom 
required: 

 Yes No, but if no 
bathroom, 
there must be 
an interior 
entryway to the 
main dwelling 

 Yes Yes 

Connection to 
water and sewer 
required: 

 Yes. May be shared 
with main dwelling, but 
not required. 

 Yes. May be 
shared with 
main dwelling, 
but not 
required. 

 Yes, if 
occupancy is 
intended to be 
for more than 
72 hours 

Yes 

Additional on-
site parking 
required: 

One (1) space unless 
an exception is made 
per Government Code 
65852.2. The additional 
parking space may be 
tandem and within a 
building setback area if 
it is paved with a non-
permeable surface. 

 No No No 

Fire sprinklers 
required: 

Yes, if required for the 
main dwelling unit 

Yes, if required 
for the main 
dwelling unit 

No Yes, if required 
for the main 
dwelling unit     
 

 

E.    Building standards. 

1.    ADUs and JADUs must be architecturally compatible with the primary dwelling, having 
similar materials, colors, and style of construction. The design and size of ADUs and JADUs 
shall conform to all applicable standards of the building, health, and other codes adopted by the 
City. 

2.    Attached ADUs and JADUs shall be compatible with and made structurally a part of the 
primary dwelling (e.g., share a common wall with the primary dwelling, rely partially on the 
primary dwelling for structural support, or be attached to the primary dwelling). 

3.    Adequate provisions shall be made for the water and sewer service and drainage 
generated by the occupancy of the accessory dwelling unit as determined by the City Engineer. 
The ADU/JADU can either have shared or separate services for electric, gas, sewer, and water. 

F.    Connection, impact, and other fees. 

1.    Except as provided in Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22, ADUs and 
JADUs are subject to fees and assessments required by the Lemoore Municipal Code for new 
residential construction, including connection fees, and capacity charges.  However, 
development impact fees shall not be assessed on ADUs or JADUs. 

2.    An inspection fee shall be assessed for any inspection to determine if an ADU or 
JADU complies with applicable building standards. 

44

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.2
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=65852.22


G.    Permit approval. A permit must be obtained for the construction or installation of an ADU or 
JADU. An application, together with the required fee in compliance with the City’s fee schedule, 
shall be filed with the Department and accompanied by detailed and fully dimensioned plans, 
architectural drawings/sketches, elevations, floor plans, landscape plans, and/or any other 
data/materials identified in the Department handout for ADU/JADU applications. Following 
receipt of a completed application, the Director shall make an investigation of the facts bearing 
on the case to determine compliance with this section and ministerially approve a compliant 
application in accordance with (Gov. Code, 35852.2 subd. (a)(3) and (b). 

If the permit application to create an ADU or a JADU is submitted with a permit application to 
construct a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the City may delay acting on the permit 
application for the ADU or the JADU until the City acts on the permit application to create the 
new single-family dwelling. The applicant may request a delay in the time available for the City 
to act on the application, as provided by State law. 

H.    Cottage home program standards. This subsection provides locational and general 
standards for the cottage home program which is allowed in the applicable residential areas, 
subject to the following criteria and standards. This subsection does not supplant the remainder 
of this section for ADU and JADU construction. 

1.    Cottage home. A cottage home is a type of ADU where pre-approved building plans 
are made available by the City and the ADU is constructed in compliance with the provided 
plans and this subsection. A cottage home shall count towards the limit on the number of ADUs 
permitted on a single lot. 

2.    Zone districts. A cottage home is allowed in zones that allow an ADU. 

3.    Application procedures. Applications for the cottage home program shall be filed with 
the Community Development Department. 

4.    Developmental standards. A cottage home shall be constructed in compliance with 
the following developmental standards: 

a.    Only one cottage home unit shall be created on a single-family parcel. 

b.    The cottage home shall be built using plans provided by the City. 

c.    Adequate provisions shall be made for the water and sewer service and drainage 
generated by the occupancy of the cottage home unit as determined by the City 
Engineer. The cottage home can have either shared or separate services for electric, 
gas, sewer, and water. 

J. Tiny house standards. A tiny home is a A tiny house may be approved for use as an 
accessory dwelling unit if the following requirements are met: 

1. The tiny house meets all the requirements for an accessory dwelling unit. 

2. The tiny house has at least 100 square feet of first floor interior living space and 
includes basic functional areas that support normal daily routines such as cooking, sleeping, 
and toiletry. 

3. The tiny house is designed and built to look like a conventional building structure. 

4. The tiny house is licensed and registered with the California Department of Motor 
Vehicles and meets ANSI 119.2 or 119.5 requirements. 

45



5. The tiny house Is towable by a bumper hitch, frame-towing hitch, or fifth-wheel 
connection and cannot (nor is it designed to) move under its own power. 

6. The tiny house is no larger than allowed by California State Law for movement on 
public highways. 

7. No mechanical equipment is located on the roof of the movable tiny house. 

8. When sited on a lot for more than 72 hours at a location visible from the public 
street, the tiny house shall have skirting that covers the wheels and undercarriage and that 
extends to ground level. 

9. When sited on a lot for more than 72 hours, water and sewer connections shall be 
made permanent prior to occupancy. Shut-off valves, meters, and regulators shall not be 
located beneath the tiny house. 

  

46



 

TABLE 9-5A-4A 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

Measurement/Zoning 
District 

Residential Zoning Districts 
AR RVLD RLD RN RLMD RMD RHD 

Site area per dwelling 
unit, minimum (square 
feet)1 

No 
minimum 

15,000  5,000 3,000 3,000 2,500 1,700 

Lot dimensions:               
Lot size, minimum 
(square feet) 

40,000  
10,000 

 5,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 2,000 

          
Lot width, minimum 10 150'  100’ 50’ 50' 60' 60' 60' 
Lot depth, minimum 200' 150' 100' 90' 90' 80' 80' 

Setbacks, minimum:               
Front yard:               

Generally 2,12 60'  25’  15’ 15' 15’ 15’ 15’ 
To garage, front 
facing 

- - 20' 20' 20' 20' 20' 

To garage, side load - - 15' - - - - 
To porch - - 12' 12' 12' 12' - 

Side yard:               
Interior side 15' 10' 5'  5'  5' 10' 10' 
Street side 12 25' 15' 10’ 10’ 10’ 15' 15' 
Combined both sides - - 10' 10' 10' - - 

Rear yard:               
Generally 10' 4 10' 4 10' 4 10' 4 10' 10' 10' 
To detached alley 
loaded garage 

5' 5' 5' 0' 0' 0' 0' 

Abutting a street 11 20' 20' 20' 20' 20' - - 
Separation between 
buildings, minimum 7 

10' 10' 10' 10' 10' 10' 10' 

Height, maximum 40' 40' 35' 35' 35' 45' 60'         
Notes: 

   1.   Accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units are not counted when calculating site area per 
dwelling unit.  

   2.   Reserved.  

   3.   For every 1 foot in additional height, an additional 1 foot in setback is required. 

   4.   Additional 5 feet is required for each additional story. 

47



   5.   Required setback is 10 feet when adjacent to any residential zoning district. 

   6.   Required setback is 15 feet when adjacent to any residential or mixed use zoning district. 

   7.   Separation requirements apply to buildings on the same site as well as separation between buildings on 
adjacent parcels. 

   8.   Also see subsection 9-5D1-2E, "Special Landscape Requirements", of this chapter for corresponding minimum 
landscaping and pervious surface requirements. 

   9.   Additional building height may be allowed through site plan and architectural review when additional height is 
necessary for mechanical equipment as part of an industrial operation. 

   10.   For flag lots, the minimum width for the access corridor shall be 10 feet. The lot width shall be measured from 
the front property line as described in section 9-5A-3, "Setback Determination And Requirements", of this article. 

   11.   See section 9-5B-7, "Urban-Rural Edge", of this chapter. 

   12.   15 foot landscape buffer required along arterial and collector streets in addition to minimum setback. These 2 
standards are not cumulative and may overlap. See subsection 9-5D1-2E2, "Landscape Buffers Required Along 
Arterial And Collector Streets", of this chapter. 

(Ord. 2013-05, 2-6-2014; amd. Ord. 2015-08, 1-5-2016) 

  

9-5C-3: DESIGN STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS: 
The standards contained in this section shall apply to new residential development, including 
single-family residential subdivisions, master home plans, and multi-family residential 
developments. These standards are intended to implement the design concepts described 
above. 

      2.   Building Placement And Orientation: Create diverse residential streetscapes that 
facilitate interaction between residents and include homes and residential structures that orient 
to the street. 

         a.   Multi-unit residential buildings (e.g., townhomes, condominiums, apartments) shall be 
designed with different building setbacks and facade variations when multiple buildings are 
provided. 

         b.   Orient home and building sites to take advantage of solar heating and opportunities for 
solar energy generation. 

        c.   Residential development adjacent to open space/parks and other public spaces shall 
maintain visual access from residential units and common buildings to provide "eyes on the 
street" surveillance opportunities. 

         d.   Buildings shall be designed with structural and spatial variety along the front facades 
to avoid monotonous appearance. 

48

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-9188#JD_9-5D1-2


Item 4-1 
June 19, 2023 Minutes 

Lemoore City Council Special Meeting 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 5:30 p.m., the meeting was called to order. 

 
ROLL CALL: Mayor:  MATTHEWS 
 Mayor Pro Tem:  GORNICK  
 Council Members: GARZA, LYONS (arrived at 7:10 p.m.), ORTH  
  
City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; Assistant City Manager Speer; 
City Attorney Lerner; Public Works Director Rivera; Police Chief Kendall; Management Analyst 
Champion; Management Analyst Baley; City Planner Brandt; City Clerk Avalos. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS 
 
No Agenda Additions and/or Deletions.  
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. Government Code Section 54956.9 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (4) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
One Case 

1 – STUDY SESSION 
 
SS-1 Review of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Draft Proposed Budget (Speer) 
 
Assistant City Manager Speer provided an overview of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 draft 
proposed budget which included: 
 New ClearGov software was used this year. 
 Introduction tab includes 

o Budget Resolution 
o Demographics – Software pulls all of the most recent census information for the 

City of Lemoore. 
o Organization chart  
o Strategic Plan 
o Cost Allocation Plan 
o Glossary 

 Summary schedules 
o Comprehensive Fund Summary 
o Position Allocation – No new positions requested this year. 

 Fund Summaries 
o General Fund 

 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: $8,552,274 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Revenues: $16,694,508 
 Total Expenditures: $17,146,563 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: -$452,055 
 Ending Fund Balance: $8,100,219  

o Water Fund 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: $9,890,386 

49



 FY 2024 Budgeted Revenues: $10,392,750 
 Total Expenditures: $14,268,167 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: -$3,875,417 
 Ending Fund Balance: $6,014,969 

o Wastewater Fund 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: $9,203,690 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Revenues: $3,852,500 
 Total Expenditures: $9,948,200 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: -$6,095,700 
 Ending Fund Balance: $3,107,990 

o Refuse Fund 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: $2,530,319 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Revenues: $4,714,104 
 Total Expenditures: $5,085,332 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: -$371,228 
 Ending Fund Balance: $2,159,091 

o Golf Fund 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: -$433,604 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Revenues: $23,930 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: $23,930 
 Ending Fund Balance: $409,674 

o Fleet Fund 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: -$589,952 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Revenues: $1,231,134 
 Total Expenditures: $1,235,511 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: -$4,377 
 Ending Fund Balance: -$594,329 

o ARPA Fund 
 FY 2024 Budgeted Fund Balance: $3,895,221 
 Total Expenditures: $3,895,221 
 Total Revenues less Expenditures: -$3,895,221 
 Ending Fund Balance: $0 

o Capital Improvements 
 Total Capital requested: $15,651,375 

 
Consensus was received to bring back the budget approval resolution and also a second item 
continuing budget resolution if the proposed budget is not approved.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 Alex Walker emphasized the effort and care of everyone in the City. Extended his appreciation 
for Council and City staff. He stated that all of his interactions with City staff they are very 
communicative. He advocated for the future to include an executive summary in the budget. He 
thinks it would be helpful to have an additional budget workshop for the community. He expressed 
his appreciation for everyone.  
 

2 – CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION  
 
No Ceremonies / Presentations. 
 

3 – DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS  
 

50



City Manager Olson stated that Well 11 pH dosing is complete. Will be starting the process to 
getting it back up and running. Well 13 failed last week. Construction is underway. Well 4 has 
some electrical issues. Cimmaron Lift Station coating has been completed. The river is currently 
down. The City hasn’t seen any additional damage from the flooding. Met with CalOES and FEMA 
last week in regards to potential reimbursement for flood damage. Mosquito Abatement is looking 
for additional funding. The pesticide cost this year will be increased due to the water. Submitted 
DCIP, SEDS, and ELA grants. 3 grants that are active right now. He asked for consensus to place 
his evaluation on closed session at the meeting in July.  
 

4 – CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
4-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – May 16, 2023 
4-2 Approval – Second Reading – Ordinance 2023-02 – Adopting Zoning Map Amendment 

No. 2023-01, Changing a Portion of the Zoning Map from Mixed-Use (MU) to Regional 
Commercial (RC) and Light Industrial (ML) Located at the Northeast Corner of 19th Avenue 
and Iona Avenue in the City of Lemoore 

4-3 Approval – Appointment of Lemoore Parks and Recreation Commissioner 
4-4 Approval – Facility Rental Fee Reduction for the Kings County Elections Office for the 

2024 Election Cycle 
 
Items 3-4 and 3-8 were pulled for separate consideration.  
 
Motion by Council Member Lyons, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, to approve the Consent 
Calendar, as presented.  
 
Ayes: Lyons, Gornick, Garza, Orth, Matthews 
 

5 – PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
5-1 Public Hearing – Resolution 2023-16 – Ordering Annexation and Inclusion of Additional 

Territories (Tract 820) in Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of 
Lemoore and Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 
2023-2024 for an Additional Territory Annexed to and Included to Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1 (Reeder) 

 
Public Hearing Opened: 8:39 p.m. 
 
No one spoke. 
 
Public Hearing Closed: 8:40 p.m. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, seconded by Council Member Orth, to approve Resolution 
2023-16 – Ordering Annexation and Inclusion of Additional Territories (Tract 820) in Public 
Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of Lemoore and Confirming the Diagram and 
Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for an Additional Territory Annexed to and 
Included to Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1. 
 
Ayes: Gornick, Orth, Garza, Lyons, Matthews 
 
5-2 Public Hearing – Resolution 2023-17 – Ordering Annexation and Inclusion of Additional 

Territories (Tract 848) in Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of 
Lemoore and Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 

51



2023-2024 for an Additional Territory Annexed to and Included to Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1 (Reeder) 

 
Public Hearing Opened: 8:42 p.m. 
 
No one spoke. 
 
Public Hearing Closed: 8:43 p.m. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, seconded by Council Member Orth, to approve Resolution 
2023-17 – Ordering Annexation and Inclusion of Additional Territories (Tract 848) in Public 
Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of Lemoore and Confirming the Diagram and 
Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for an Additional Territory Annexed to and 
Included to Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1. 
 
Ayes: Gornick, Orth, Garza, Lyons, Matthews 
 

6 – NEW BUSINESS 
 
6-1 Approval – Resolution 2023-18 – Establishing Thresholds and Implementation Guidelines 

for Evaluating Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) in the Preparation of California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Documents for when the City of Lemoore Acts as Lead Agency 
(Brandt) 

 
Motion by Mayor Matthews, seconded by Mayor Council Member Orth, to approve Resolution 
2023-18 – Establishing Thresholds and Implementation Guidelines for Evaluating Vehicle Miles 
Traveled (VMT) in the Preparation of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Documents 
for when the City of Lemoore Acts as Lead Agency.  
 
Ayes: Matthews, Orth, Garza, Lyons, Gornick 
 
 

7 – BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 
Council Member Lyons apologized for being late to the meeting. He tried to get here on time. He 
loves this town and cares about the City. He appreciates that they do not all agree and appreciated 
City staff. It’s important that we get to a resolution in a just way. He appreciates Nathan’s office, 
and all City staff. 
 
Council Member Orth appreciates all the hard work city staff does. He thinks we have a good City 
and management team. At the last meeting a Notice of Completion was approved for a 
subdivision. A lot of the neighbors are not happy with the way woodside homes finished the road. 
He reached out the City Manager and Public Works Director. He promised his neighbors to get a 
resolution. Budgets are hard to do. It was a long night. A lot of people put hard work, sweat, and 
tears into it.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gornick enjoyed the meeting. He thinks everyone is doing a great job. The best 
days of Lemoore are ahead.  
 
Mayor Matthews attended Fleet week in San Pedro, LAFCO meeting, Memorial Day Ceremony, 
KWRA, Kings Lions Brewfest, and Board of Supervisor meetings. She met with a representative 

52



of Mathis’ office and McCartney’s office. She attended a press conference for the Kings Fair. She 
also attended the water town hall meeting. Herself and Nathan will be attending CalCities Policy 
meetings this week in Pomona.  

ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 9:13 p.m., Council adjourned. 
 
Approved the 18th day of July 2023. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       Patricia Matthews, Mayor   
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk    

53



Item 4-2 
June 27, 2023 Minutes 

Joint Lemoore City Council and Lemoore Redevelopment Successor Agency  
Meeting 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 5:30 p.m., the meeting was called to order. 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor:  MATTHEWS 
 Mayor Pro Tem:  GORNICK  
 Council Members: GARZA, LYONS, ORTH  
  
City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; City Attorney Lerner; Public 
Works Director Rivera; Police Chief Kendall; Management Analyst Reeder; Management Analyst 
Champion; Management Analyst Baley; City Clerk Avalos.  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS 
 
Consensus was received to move Closed Session to the July 18, 2023 meeting.  
 

1 – STUDY SESSION 
 
No Study Session. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No Public Comment. 
 

2 – CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION  
 
No Ceremonies / Presentations. 
 

3 – DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS  
 
City Manager Olson stated that there is issues with City wells 4,11 and 13. Getting wells back up 
and running. He attended the CalCities meeting in Pomona last week with Mayor Matthews. The 
leagues position has been that the full 1% sales tax should go to the cities when items are 
purchased online. It could potentially be $400,000 for the City of Lemoore. He attended the Kings 
Mosquito Abatement meeting. They have started flying crop dusters. It has been a rough year for 
mosquitos.  
 

4 – CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
4-1 Approval – Authorized Agents for California OES 
4-2 Approval – Contract for Financial Consulting Services with Price Paige and Company for 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
4-3 Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the General Association of 

Service Employees (GASE) Bargaining Unity for MOU 2022 
4-4  Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the Lemoore Police Sergeants 

Unit (LPSU) for MOU 2022 
4-5 Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the Lemoore Police Officers 

Association (LPOA) Bargaining Unity for MOU 2022 

54



4-6 Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the Lemoore Police 
Professional Services Bargaining Unity (PPSBU) for MOU 2022 

4-7 Approval – Potential Sale of Property located on the Northwest corner of Heinlen and D 
Streets, APN 020-0574-025 – 309 Heinlen Street (Antler Hotel) 

 
Items 4-2, 4-3, 4-4, 4-5, 4-6 and 4-7 were pulled for separate consideration.  
 
Motion by Council Member Orth seconded by Council Member Lyons, to approve the Consent 
Calendar, except items 4-2, 4-3, 4-4, 4-5, 4-6 and 4-7.  
 
Ayes: Orth, Lyons, Garza, Gornick, Matthews 
 
4-2 Approval – Contract for Financial Consulting Services with Price Paige and Company for 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
 
Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, to approve the side letters 
between all bargaining units.  
 
Ayes: Orth, Gornick, Garza, Lyons, Matthews 
 
4-3 Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the General Association of 

Service Employees (GASE) Bargaining Unit for MOU 2022 
4-4  Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the Lemoore Police Sergeants 

Unit (LPSU) for MOU 2022 
4-5 Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the Lemoore Police Officers 

Association (LPOA) Bargaining Unit for MOU 2022 
4-6 Approval – Side Letter #2 between the City of Lemoore and the Lemoore Police 

Professional Services Bargaining Unit (PPSBU) for MOU 2022 
 
Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, to approve the side letters 
between all bargaining units.  
 
Ayes: Orth, Gornick, Garza, Lyons, Matthews 
 
4-7 Approval – Potential Sale of Property located on the Northwest corner of Heinlen and D 

Streets, APN 020-0574-025 – 309 Heinlen Street (Antler Hotel) 
 
Motion by Council Member Lyons seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, to approve the side 
letters between all bargaining units.  
 
Ayes: Lyons, Gornick, Garza, Orth, Matthews 
 

5 – PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
5-1 Public Hearing – Resolution 2023-18 – Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 

to June 30, 2024, Providing for the Appropriation and Expenditure of all Sums Set Forth 
in said Budget, Providing for the Transfers and Additional Appropriations and Repealing 
all Resolutions and Parts of Resolutions in Conflict Herewith (Speer) 

 
Public Hearing Opened: 6:15 p.m. 
 
Spoke: Alex Walker 
 Chris Bright 

55



 Tom Reed 
 
Public Hearing Closed: 6:28 p.m. 
 
Motion by Council Member Lyons, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick, to approve Resolution 
2023-18 – Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, Providing for the 
Appropriation and Expenditure of all Sums Set Forth in said Budget, Providing for the Transfers 
and Additional Appropriations and Repealing all Resolutions and Parts of Resolutions in Conflict 
Herewith and approval to schedule a budget workshop on August 29, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Ayes: Lyons, Gornick, Garza, Orth, Matthews 
 

6 – NEW BUSINESS 
 
6-1 Approval – Resolution 2023-19 – Authorizing a Continuing Budget Resolution to 

Commence on July 1, 2023 and to end on July 18, 2023, Pending the Adoption of a 2023-
2024 Fiscal Year City Budget (Speer) 

 
This item was skipped due to item 5-1 being approved. 
 
6-2 Approval – Resolution 2023-20 – Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments 

within Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 (LLMD) Zones 1 through 13 
and Resolution 2023-21 – Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within 
Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 (PFMD) Zones 1 through 10 (Reeder) 

 
Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Gornick to approve Resolution 
2023-20 – Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within Landscape and Lighting 
Maintenance District No. 1 (LLMD) Zones 1 through 13 and Resolution 2023-21 – Intention to 
Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
(PFMD) Zones 1 through 10 
 
Ayes: Orth, Gornick, Garza, Lyons, Matthews 
 
 

7 – BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
7-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 
Council Member Garza wanted to address his hesitation to vote in favor of the budget. He stated 
that there needs to be a strategy for the workshop. Perameters need to be set. 
 
Council Member Orth agreed with Council Member Garza. Attended Rockin’ the Arbor. He was 
the videographer for the ribbon cutting. He is sad that it the last one. He thanked everyone for 
their hard work. He wants to go forward and be good stewards of our income. He wished everyone 
a good weekend.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gornick he thanked the Refuse division for their service. He forgot to put his blue 
can out and they were able to circle back and pick it up.  
 
Mayor Matthews attended the CalCities meeting in Pomona. Rockin’ the Arbor was well attended. 
August 5th – Lemoore Police Department will be having a car show. She wished everyone a happy 
and safe 4th of July.  
 

56



CLOSED SESSION 
 
No Closed Session. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 6:47 p.m., Council adjourned. 
 
Approved the 18th day of July 2023. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       Patricia Matthews, Mayor   
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk    

57



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  Fax (559) 924-9003 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

Item No: 4-3 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: David Jones, Fire Chief    
Date: July 1, 2023    Meeting Date:    July 18, 2023 
Subject:  Fire Purchases of 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper, 2024 Ferrara Type 6 

Quick Attack, Dewalt 18” Ventilation Fans, Forcible Entry Training Door, 
Hurst Tools (Cutter-Spreader-Ram Tools) with SB 179 

Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 

Proposed Motion: 
Approve the purchase of a new 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper Engine, 2024 Ferrara Type 
6 Quick Attack Vehicle, Dewalt 18” Ventilation Fans, Forcible Entry Training Door, 
HURST Tools(Cutter-Spreader-Ram Tool) with SB 179 funds. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department received award notification for $2 million dollar 
funding from Senator Hurtado’s office in September 2022.The funds were received as of 
March 2023. City Council accepted the grant funding for fiscal year 2023-2024 budget on 
May 16, 2023. 
 
The grant funding requires that projects requested be for new equipment and training for 
the fire department.  
 
Per the Lemoore Municipal Code section 1-8A-3 Purchases of Supplies, Equipment, and 
Vehicles: 

58



 A.   Single purchases in excess of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) shall be authorized 
by the city council and shall be made pursuant to the formal bid procedure set forth in 
section 1-8A-5 of this article, unless expressly waived by the city council. 
B.   Any purchase of more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) up to fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000.00) shall require at least three (3) written quotations and shall be 
approved by the city manager or designee. However, if there are fewer than three (3) 
available vendors, the city manager or designee may authorize a purchase with fewer 
than three (3) quotations. 
C.   The city manager or designee is authorized to make any purchase not exceeding ten 
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) in the open market with or without solicitation of multiple 
quotations. 
D.   Separate purchases of components of equipment, or phasing of projects, solely to avoid 
the provisions of this section shall not be permitted. 
 
Section 1-8A-6 Bidding Exceptions: 
 
 A.   Emergency Purchases: Purchases of an emergency nature may be made as the 
need arises, and such purchases shall be exempt from the requirements of this section; 
provided, however, such emergency purchases shall be authorized by the city manager 
or designee. 
B.   Sole Source: Bidding shall be dispensed when the item(s) can be obtained from only 
one vendor; provided, however, such sole source purchases are authorized by the city 
manager or designee. 
C.   Cooperative Purchasing: The city manager or designee shall have the authority, to 
the extent permitted by law, to join with other units of government or other governmental 
agencies or authorities in cooperative purchasing when beneficial to the city. Bidding may 
be dispensed when the supplies, equipment or vehicles can be acquired under a valid 
purchasing contract that has been previously bid by the city or other governmental 
agency. 
D.   Other Considerations: The city manager shall have the authority to dispense with 
bidding if it can be shown that a project, usually complex in nature, in which the design, 
installation or support of equipment and systems from a vendor is of higher significance 
than the component costs of supplies or equipment purchased as part of the overall 
project. 
 
Staff has reviewed the needs of the department and would like to purchase the following 
items: 

• 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper Engine – This engine will be replacing Truck #6.  
• 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Quick Attack Truck – This truck will be added to our current 

fleet and utilized for grass fires, solar farm fires, and wildland fires. 
• DeWalt Ventilation Fans – Updating our current gasoline powered fans. These fans 

are battery operated and interoperable with other equipment on trucks. 
• Forceable Entry Door –Will be used to train and educate our firefighters on Forcible 

Entry. 
• HURST Tools JAWS of Life – will be an addition to our current set and on another 

Engine. 
 
This funding is providing LVFD the opportunity to upgrade items within the department 
without cutting into the City budget. 

59

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lemooreca/latest/lemoore_ca/0-0-0-360#JD_1-8A-5


 
Financial Consideration(s): 
Funds from SB 179 Program will fund the Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department purchase 
of equipment and vehicles totaling $2 million dollars.  
 

• 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper Engine is $997,785.36. This item is being purchased 
through Sourcewell contract.  

• 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Quick Attack Truck is $498,265.16 This item is being 
purchased through Sourcewell contract. 

• DeWalt Ventilation Fans are $12,787.42. Sole source justification is attached. 
• Forcible Entry Door is $6,381.38. Staff received three quotes for this item, but since 

it is under $10,000, this purchase can be authorized by the City Manager. 
• HURST Tools JAWS of Life are $41,769.26. Sole source justification is attached. 

 
The approximate total cost of these items is $1,556,989. The remaining funds must be 
utilized by June 30, 2024. The funds are included in the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Provide interoperable equipment within the department. 
• Replace aging equipment for more efficient and effective emergency response. 

Cons: 
• None noted. 

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
N/A. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the purchases purchase of a new 2024 
Ferrara Type 1 Pumper Engine, 2024 Ferrara Type 6 Quick Attack Vehicle, Dewalt 18” 
Ventilation Fans, Forcible Entry Training Door, HURST Tools (Cutter-Spreader-Ram 
Tool) with SB 179 funds of above listed items with the SB 179 2 million Dollar Funding for 
Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review:   Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☐ Assistant City Manager   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney  7/14/2023 
☐ Map    ☒ City Manager  7/12/2023 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Clerk  7/14/2023 
☒ Other :    ☐ Finance   

   Purchase Orders 
 Sourcewell Agreements  

60



PURCHASE ORDER REQUISITION 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

Vendor Name 

Vendor Address 

Vendor Address 2 

City, State, Zip Code 

____________ F _ir _e _A.;..p;..pa_ r _at_ u_s_s_ol_u _ti _on_ s ____________ Vendor No. 

!special Instructions

Description 

2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper 

Prepayment Discount 

1762 S. Sycamore Ave 

909-879-7354 

Rialto, California 92376 

SB 178 Funding 

Fund Department 

1225 835 

Future Use Project Account

1225 835 

Requester Signature 

Department Head Signature 

City Manager Signature (over $10,000) 

Purchasing Officer Approval (for Finance Only) 

Department 

Date 

Quantity 

Fire Department 

7/11/2023 

UOM Unit Price Amount 

1 959,433.00 959,433.00 

1 (29,097.00) (29,097.00) 

Subtotal 930,336.00 

Tax 67,449.36 

Service Charge 

Shipping 

TOTAL 997,785.36 

Date 

Date 

Date 

0000 24006 560200

0000 24006  560200

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



iiiiii 

.,.__ 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

PURCHASE ORDER REQUISITION 

Vendor Name 

Vendor Address 

Vendor Address 2 

City, State, Zip Code 

____________ F_ire_A"-'pp.;..a_ r_at;..u.;..s .;..So.;..l .;..ut .;..io.;..n.;..s ___________ Vendor No.

1762 S. Sycamore Ave 

909-879-7354 

Rialto, California 92376 

Special Instructions SB 178 Funding 

Description Fund Department Future Use Project Account 

2024 Ferrara Type 1 Quick Attack Type 6 Truck 1225 835 

Prepayment Discount 1225 835 

-

Requester Signature 

Department Head Signature 

City Manager Signature (over $10,000) 

Purchasing Officer Approval (for Finance Only) 

Department 

Date 

Fire Department 

7/11/2023 

Sou rce w e,l I c.e-ri fr-u c I-

Quantity 

1 

1 

UOM Unit Price 

479,930.90 

(15,348.00) 

Subtotal 

Tax 

Service Charge 

Shipping 

TOTAL 

I /oate 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Amount 

479,930.90 

(15,348.00) 

464,582.90 

33,682.26 

498,265.16 

0000 24008 560200

0000 24008 560200

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



PURCHASE ORDER REQUISITION 

LEMOORE 
CAlll(JIJNli\ 

Curtis Tools for Heres Vendor Name 

Vendor Address 

Vendor Address 2 

City, State, Zip Code 

-------------------------------

6723 Sierra Court Suite C 

510-839-5111 

Dublin, Ca 94568 

I Special Instructions 

Description Fund Department Future Use Project Account 

FORCIBLE ENTRY TOOL-Entry Port Training 1225 835  

=• Requester Signature 

Department Head Signature 

City Manager Signature (over $10,000) 

Purchasing Officer Approval (for Finance Only) 

Vendor No. 

Department 

Date 

Quantity 

1 

Fire Department 

7/11/2023 

UOM Unit Price Amount 

5,950.00 

Subtotal 

Tax 

Service Charge 

Shipping 

TOTAL 

• f Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

5,950.00 

5,950.00 

431.38 

6,381.38 

000 24005 560100

145



146



147



148



149



150



151



PURCHASE ORDER REQUISITION 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

Curtis Tools for Heras Vendor Name 

Vendor Address 

Vendor Address 2 

City, State, Zip Code 

-------------------------------

6723 Sierra Court Suite C 

510-839-5111 

Dublin, Ca 94568 

I Special Instructions 

Description Fund Department Future Use Project Account 

HURST-S789 Edraulic 3.0 Cutter Tool Only 1225 835 

HURST EWXT Edraulic Watertight 9ah Battery 1225 835 

HURST EWXT/E3 110-240V Charger 1225 835 

HURST SP555 E3 Spreader Tool Only 1225 835 

HURST EWXT Edraulic Watertight 9ah Battery 1225 835 

HURST EWXT/E3 110-240V Charger 1225 835 

HURST R521 E3 Ram Tool Only 1225 835 

HURST EWXT Edraulic Watertight 9ah Battery 1225 835 

HURST EWXT/E3 110-240V Charger 1225 835 

Requestor Signature 

Department Head Signature 

City Manager Signature (over $10,000) 

Purchasing Officer Approval (for Finance Only) 

Vendor No. 

Department 

Date 

Quantity UOM 

1 

2 

1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

2 

1 

Fire Department 

7/11/2023 

Unit Price Amount 

11,433.60 11,433.60 

809.10 1,618.20 

522.00 522.00 

12,706.20 12,706.20 

809.10 1,618.20 

522.00 522.00 

8,385.30 8,385.30 

809.10 1,618.20 

522.00 522.00 

-

Subtotal 38,945.70 

Tax 2,823.56 

Service Charge 

Shipping 

TOTAL 41,769.26 

7 It t I J-oa:3 
I Da{e 

Date 

Date 

Date 

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

0000 24004 560100

152



153



154



155



156



PURCHASE ORDER REQUISITION 

LEMOORE 
C/\LIFORNI/\ 

Vendor Name 

Vendor Address 

                                Cascade Fire Equipment                                                              .                                                                                                 

Vendor Address 2 

City, State, Zip Code 

!special Instructions 

Description 

DEWALT, Flex Volt Battery 18" Ventilation Fan 

2 Pack DEWALT 12AH Batteries 

DEWALT AC Fast Charging Base 

P.O.Box 4248 

800-654-7049 

Medford , Oregon 97501 

Fund Department Future Use Project Account 

1225 835 

1225 835 

1225 835 

Requester Signature 

Departm ent Head Signature 

City Manager Signature ( over $10,000) 

Purchasing Officer Approval (for Finance Only) 

Department 

Date 

Quantity 

Fire Department 

7/11/2023 

UOM Unit Price Amount 

2 5,215.00 10,430.00 

1 785.00 785.00 

2 255.00 510.00 

-

Subtotal 11,725.00 

Tax 850.06 

Service Charge 

Shipping 212.36 

TOTAL 12,787.42 

1 /11 I dtJo-3 

Date 

Date 

Date 

0000 24003 560100

0000 24003 560100

0000 24003 560100

157



158



159



160



161



162



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 5-1 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Randon Reeder, Management Analyst   
Date: June 22, 2023    Meeting Date:    July 18, 2023 
Subject: Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 

2023-2024 for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District Number 1 
(LLMD) Zones 1 through 13 - Resolution 2023-22 - and Public Facilities 
Maintenance District Number 1 (PFMD) Zones 1 through 10 - Resolution 
2023-23 

 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Conduct a public hearing, accept Engineer’s Report and adopt Resolution 2023-22 and 
Resolution 2023-23, confirming the diagram and assessment of the annual levy for Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District Number 1, Zones 1 
through 13 and Public Facilities Maintenance District Number 1, Zones 1 through 10. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The Engineer’s Report prepared by Willdan Financial Services documenting the need for 
and costs of the proposed assessments, was presented to City Council on June 27, 2023, 
and presentation was provided to Council and the public earlier this evening during a 
study session. The Engineer’s Report is the basis for the adoption of Resolutions 
confirming the diagram and assessment of annual levies for fiscal year 2023-2024 within 
Zones 1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8A, 8B, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of the City of Lemoore Landscape and 
Lighting Maintenance District Number 1 (LLMD) and Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 
of the City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District Number 1 (PFMD). 
 
 

163



 
The levies collected for the LLMD zones support the landscape contractors, water meter 
and consumption charges, the PG&E charges to run the water meters, and the fees paid 
to the third party consultant for the generation of the assessment reports. The only 
exception to this occurs in LLMD 08B, which also include the lighting fixture and PG&E 
costs associated with the lighting fixtures.  
 
The levies collected for the PFMD zones support the same types of services listed for the 
LLMD zones in addition to road maintenance and rehabilitation, park maintenance and 
rehabilitation, lighting fixtures, PG&E charges for the light fixtures, along with any shared 
block walls.  
 
In order to assure each zone has enough funding for large road maintenance projects 
and any landscape rehabilitation projects in the future, the City collects a certain amount 
of funds to be placed in the reserve balance each year in addition to the fees for the 
current years’ operating costs.  
 
The levies for fiscal year 2023-2024 differ in each zone due to varying amounts of facilities 
and improvements to be maintained, the number of housing units responsible for the 
maintenance, the estimated long term costs, and by how much each zone currently has 
in its reserve balance.  Listed below, by zone, are the current levies and the proposed 
levies. 
 

LLMD District No.1 2022/23 2023/24 Increase or 
(Decrease) 

Zone 1 Westfield Park/Windsor Court/Cambridge Park $135.00 $135.00 - 
Zone 3 Silva Estates $55.42 $55.42 - 
Zone 5 Wildflower Meadows $62.32 $62.32 - 
Zone 6 Capistrano $15.78 $15.78 - 
Zone 7 Silverado Estates $78.22 $78.22 - 
Zone 8A Country Club Villas $70.90 $73.02 $2.12 
Zone 8B Country Club Villas/The Greens $139.56 $143.74 $4.18 
Zone 9 Manzanita at Lemoore/La Dante Rose $46.62 $46.62 - 
Zone 10 Avalon $125.76 $125.76 - 
Zone 11 Self Help $53.32 $53.32 - 
Zone 12 Summerwind/College Park $79.76 $79.76 - 
Zone 13 Covington Place $150.00 $150.00 - 
 

PFMD District No.1 2022/23 2023/24 Increase or 
(Decrease) 

Zone 1 The Landing $551.71 $551.70 ($0.01) 
Zone 2 Liberty $506.52 $506.52 - 
Zone 3 Silva Estates Phase 10 $523.53 $523.52 ($0.01) 
Zone 4 Parkview Estates $712.81 $712.82 $0.01 
Zone 5 East Village Park/Anniston Place $548.71 $548.72 $0.01 
Zone 6 Heritage Acres $689.14 $689.14 $116.74 
Zone 7 Capistrano $377.99 $378.00 $0.01 
Zone 8 Woodside $780.04 $780.04 - 
Zone 9 Lennar $658.57 $658.58 $0.01 

164



Zone 10 Energy Homes $523.07 $523.06 ($0.01) 
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
Estimated ending fund balance for fiscal year 2024: 
 

LLMD District No.1 
Zone 1   (88,949) Zone 7 (52,660) Zone 10 (44,867) 
Zone 3    42,317 Zone 8A 8,339 Zone 11 (28,655) 
Zone 5   (33,430) Zone 8B 34,248 Zone 12 174,478 
Zone 6   (18,204) Zone 9 7,980 Zone 13 (19,851) 

 
PFMD District No.1 

Zone 1 692,679 Zone 6 362,762 
Zone 2 1,951,775 Zone 7 31,316 
Zone 3 556,100 Zone 8 168,492 
Zone 4 241,563 Zone 9 185,958 
Zone 5 541,985 Zone 10 50,942 

 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Ensures the ability for the City to levy assessments to fund improvements 
throughout the City in the respective zones. 

 
Cons: 

• Not all of the assessments for fiscal year 2023-2024 will cover the costs for 
preferred maintenance for each zone reducing levels of service to the zone, 
particularly in the LLMD zones. 

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the Engineer’s Report’s for fiscal year 2023-2024 and 
adoption of the Resolution 2023-22 and 2023-23. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution:  2023-22 & 2023-23 ☐ Asst. City Manager     
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 7/14/2023 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 7/14/2023 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 7/12/2023 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  LLMD Engineer’s Report 
         PFMD Engineer’s Report 

165



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT OF ANNUAL LEVY 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 FOR LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

ZONES 01, 03, 05, 06, 07, 08A, 08B, 09, 10, 11, 12 AND 13 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 
2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (“Landscaping & Lighting Act”) 
and according to the procedures in the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government 
Code Sections 53750-53753.5, inclusive) (the “Implementation Act”), and Article XIIID of the 
California Constitution (“Proposition 218”), the City Council of the City of Lemoore declared its 
intention to form, conducted all proceedings to form and did form Landscaping and Lighting 
Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Lemoore (the “District”), and has thereafter levied and 
collected annual special benefit assessments for maintenance, operation, repair and periodic 
replacement of certain landscaping,  parks, appurtenant facilities and improvements within the 
District including incidental expenses and fund balances authorized by the Landscaping & 
Lighting Act that provide particular and distinct special benefits to the various lots and parcels 
assessed over and above general benefits conferred on such lots and parcels and the public at large; 
and 
  
 WHEREAS, at the direction of the City Council, Willdan Financial Services has prepared 
and filed with the City Clerk a report entitled “Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 
1 Engineer’s Annual Report Fiscal Year 2023/2024, dated June 2023” (the “Engineer’s Report”), 
to which reference is hereby made, which Engineer’s Report contains a description of the general 
nature, location and extent of the existing facilities and improvements within Zones 01 – 13 of the 
District, an estimate of the costs of the maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of 
the facilities and improvements including incidental expenses and fund balances authorized by the 
Landscaping & Lighting Act (the Services), a diagram showing the boundaries of the District and 
Zones 01 – 13 therein, the lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel of land with Zones 01 – 13 
and the descriptions of and proposed assessments on the assessable lots and parcels of land within 
Zones 01 – 13; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at a special meeting on June 27, 2023 the City Council declared its intention 
to levy and collect the annual assessments for the costs of providing the Services within Zones 01 
– 13 for the 2023-2024 fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessments proposed in the Engineer’s Report for Zones 
01 – 13 of the District for the 2023-2024 fiscal year do not exceed the maximum assessment rates 

166



authorized in each Zone; Zones 01, 03, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, 11, and 13 are unchanged from the 
previous fiscal year, Zones 8A, 8B, and 12, are being increased; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proceeds of the assessments will be used exclusively to finance the 
expenses for providing the Services for the 2023-2024 fiscal year, that provide particular and 
distinct special benefits to the various lots and parcels in each Zone above the general benefits 
conferred on such lots and parcels and the public at large; and 
 

WHEREAS, no substantial changes are proposed to be made in the existing facilities and 
improvements, and no new facilities or improvements are proposed in Zones 01 – 13 in fiscal year 
2023-2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessment on each lot or parcel in Zones 01 – 13 is 
proportional to and no greater than the special benefits conferred on such lot or parcel from the 
Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after notice of the hearing was published pursuant to Streets & Highways 
Code Section 22626(a) and Government Code Section 6061, the City Council conducted a public 
hearing and heard and considered all objections and protests to the proposed assessments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is not a majority protest to the 
proposed annual assessments by property owners in Zones 01 – 13; 
 
 THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore resolves, finds and determines as 
follows: 
 

1. The recitals in this resolution, above, are true and correct. 
 

2. The territory within Zones 01 – 13 of the District, whose boundaries are set forth in the 
Engineer’s Report, will be the territory particularly, distinctly and specially benefited, over 
and above the general benefits conferred on such territory and the public at large, from the 
Services described in the Engineer’s Report. 
 

3. The hearing on the annual levy of assessments in Zones 01 – 13 of the District was noticed 
and held in accordance with law. 
 

4. The Engineer’s Report, including the diagram of Zones 01 – 13 and the assessment of the 
estimated costs of Services contained in the Engineer’s Report for the 2023-2024 fiscal 
year, and each and every part of the Engineer’s Report, is adopted, confirmed and approved 
as submitted or amended herein by direction of the City Council. 

167



 
5. The assessment diagrams showing Zones 01 – 13 and the lots and parcels of land therein, 

all as contained in the Engineer’s Report, are approved and confirmed as the diagrams of 
the lots and parcels within Zones 01 – 13 to be assessed to pay the costs of the Services 
described in the Engineer’s Report for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 
 

6. The assessment of the total amount of the costs and the individual assessments thereof on 
the lots and parcels within Zones 01 – 13 in proportion to the special benefits to be 
conferred on each such lot or parcel from the Services, and of the expenses incidental 
thereto, as set forth in the Engineer’s Report as approved, are approved and confirmed as 
the annual assessments for Zones 01 – 13 for the 2023-2024 fiscal year to pay such costs. 
 

7. The levy of the annual assessments within Zones 01 – 13 of the District for fiscal year 
2023-2024, as described in the Engineer’s Report as approved, are hereby ordered. 
 

8. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to file the diagram of Zones 01 – 13 of the District 
and assessments therein, or a certified copy thereof, as approved and confirmed by the 
Council and containing all information and statements required by Streets & Highways 
Code Section 3114, with the Kings County Auditor immediately after adoption of this 
resolution. 
 

9. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a regular meeting 
held on the 1st day of August 2023 by the following vote: 

 
 AYES:  

 NOES:   

 ABSENT:   

 ABSTAIN:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
             
Marisa Avalos      Patricia Matthews 
City Clerk      Mayor 
 

168



RESOLUTION NO.  2023-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT OF ANNUAL LEVY 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 FOR PUBLIC FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 ZONES 01, 02, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09 and 10 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Lemoore Municipal Code, as enacted 
by Ordinance No. 2006-01 (the “Ordinance”), and according to the procedures in the Proposition 
218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750-53753.5, inclusive) (the 
“Implementation Act”), Article XIIID of the California Constitution (“Proposition 218”) and, to 
the extent not inconsistent with the Ordinance, the procedures in the State Landscaping and 
Lighting Act of 1972 (Chapter 2 of Part of Division 15 of the California Streets & Highways Code) 
(the “Landscaping & Lighting Act”), the City Council of the City of Lemoore declared its intention 
to form, conducted all proceedings to form and did form Public Facilities Maintenance District 
No. 1 of the City of Lemoore (the “District”), and has thereafter levied and collected annual special 
benefit assessments for maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of certain 
landscaping, street lights, local street paving, parks, appurtenant facilities and improvements 
within the District including incidental expenses and fund balances authorized by the Ordinance 
and Landscaping & Lighting Act that provide particular and distinct special benefits to the various 
lots and parcels assessed over and above general benefits conferred on such lots and parcels and 
the public at large; and 
  
 WHEREAS, at the direction of the City Council, Willdan Financial Services has prepared 
and filed with the City Clerk a report entitled “Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, 
Engineer’s Annual Report Fiscal Year 2023/2024, dated June 2023” (the “Engineer’s Report”), to 
which reference is hereby made, which Engineer’s Report contains a description of the general 
nature, location and extent of the existing facilities and improvements within Zones 01 – 10 of the 
District, an estimate of the costs of the maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of 
the facilities and improvements including incidental expenses and fund balances authorized by the 
Ordinance and Landscaping & Lighting Act (the Services), a diagram showing the boundaries of 
the District and Zones 01 – 10 therein, the lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel of land with 
Zones 01 – 10 and the descriptions of and proposed assessments on the assessable lots and parcels 
of land within Zones 01 – 10; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at a special meeting on June 27, 2023 the City Council declared its intention 
to levy and collect the annual assessments for the costs of providing the Services within Zones 01 
– 10 for the 2023-2024 fiscal year; and 
 

169



 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessments proposed in the Engineer’s Report for Zones 
01 – 10 of the District for the 2023-2024 fiscal year are less than the maximum assessments 
authorized in each Zone; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proceeds of the assessments will be used exclusively to finance the 
expenses for providing the Services for the 2023-2024 fiscal year, that provide particular and 
distinct special benefits to the various lots and parcels in each Zone above the general benefits 
conferred on such lots and parcels and the public at large; and 
 

WHEREAS, no substantial changes are proposed to be made in the existing facilities and 
improvements, and no new facilities or improvements are proposed in Zones 01 – 10 in fiscal year 
2023-2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessment on each lot or parcel in Zones 01 – 10 is 
proportional to and no greater than the special benefits conferred on such lot or parcel from the 
Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after notice of the hearing was published pursuant to Streets & Highways 
Code Section 22626(a) and Government Code Section 6061, the City Council conducted a public 
hearing and heard and considered all objections and protests to the proposed assessments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is not a majority protest to the 
proposed annual assessments by property owners in Zones 01 – 10; 
 
 THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore resolves, finds and determines as 
follows: 
 

1. The recitals in this resolution, above, are true and correct. 
 

2. The territory within Zones 01 – 10 of the District, whose boundaries are set forth in the 
Engineer’s Report, will be the territory particularly, distinctly and specially benefited, over 
and above the general benefits conferred on such territory and the public at large, from the 
Services described in the Engineer’s Report. 
 

3. The hearing on the annual levy of assessments in Zones 01 – 10 of the District was noticed 
and held in accordance with law. 
 

4. The Engineer’s Report, including the diagram of Zones 01 – 10 and the assessment of the 
estimated costs of Services contained in the Engineer’s Report for the 2023-2024 fiscal 

170



year, and each and every part of the Engineer’s Report, is adopted, confirmed and approved 
as submitted or amended herein by direction of the City Council. 
 

5. The assessment diagrams showing Zones 01 – 10 and the lots and parcels of land therein, 
all as contained in the Engineer’s Report, are approved and confirmed as the diagrams of 
the lots and parcels within Zones 01 – 10 to be assessed to pay the costs of the Services 
described in the Engineer’s Report for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 
 

6. The assessment of the total amount of the costs and the individual assessments thereof on 
the lots and parcels within Zones 01 – 10 in proportion to the special benefits to be 
conferred on each such lot or parcel from the Services, and of the expenses incidental 
thereto, as set forth in the Engineer’s Report as approved, are approved and confirmed as 
the annual assessments for Zones 01 – 10 for the 2023-2024 fiscal year to pay such costs. 
 

7. The levy of the annual assessments within Zones 01 – 10 of the District for fiscal year 
2023-2024, as described in the Engineer’s Report as approved, are hereby ordered. 
 

8. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to file the diagram of Zones 01 – 10 of the District 
and assessments therein, or a certified copy thereof, as approved and confirmed by the 
Council and containing all information and statements required by Streets & Highways 
Code Section 3114, with the Kings County Auditor immediately after adoption of this 
resolution. 
 

9. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a regular meetings 
held on the 1st day of August 2023 by the following vote: 

 
 AYES:  

 NOES:   

 ABSENT:   

 ABSTAIN:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
             
Marisa Avalos      Patricia Matthews  
City Clerk      Mayor 

171



 

  

 
City of Lemoore 

 

Landscape and Lighting 
Maintenance District No. 1 

 

Engineer’s Annual Report 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024  

 
Intent Meeting: June 27, 2023 

Public Hearing: August 01, 2023 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE 

711 W CINNAMON DRIVE 

LEMOORE, CA 93245 

 

JUNE 2023 

PREPARED BY 

WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27368 Via Industria 

Suite 200 

Temecula, CA 92590 

T. 951.587.3500|800.755.6864  

F. 951.587.3510|888.326.6864 

 

Property Tax Information Line 

T.866.807.6864 

 

www.willdan.com 

 

172



173



 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Introduction ..................................................................................................... 1 

District Changes ........................................................................................................ 1 

Report Content and Annual Proceedings ................................................................ 2 

Part I - Plans and Specifications .............................................................. 7 

Zones of Benefit ........................................................................................................ 8 

Description of Improvements ................................................................................... 8 

Part II - Method of Apportionment ......................................................... 14 

Legislative Requirements for Assessments ......................................................... 14 

Benefit Analysis ....................................................................................................... 15 

Assessment Methodology ...................................................................................... 19 

Part III - District Budgets ........................................................................ 26 

Zones 01, 03, & 05 Budgets .................................................................................... 27 

Zones 06, 07, & 08A Budgets .................................................................................. 28 

Zones 08B, 09 & 10 Budgets ................................................................................... 29 

Zones 11, 12, & 13 Budgets and Total LLMD Budget, FY 2023/2024 ................... 30 

Part IV - District Diagrams ...................................................................... 31 

PART V - ASSESSMENT ROLLS ............................................................ 44 

 

 

174



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 1 

Introduction 

The City of Lemoore (“City”), under the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, 
Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (“1972 Act”) and in compliance 
with the substantive and procedural requirements of the California State Constitution, Article XIIID 
(“California Constitution”) annually levies and collects special assessments for the City’s 
maintenance assessment district designated as: 

Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1  

(hereafter referred to as “District” or “LLMD”) to fund in whole or in part the maintenance and 
operation of local landscaping and lighting improvements that provide special benefits to 
properties within the District. 

In accordance with the 1972 Act, the District utilizes benefit zones (“Zones”) to address variations 
in the nature, location, and extent of the improvements that provide special benefits to parcels in 
the District. Within the boundaries of the District, parcels are assigned to a Zone, each of which 
is associated with specific improvements that provide special benefit to properties within that 
Zone. 

In Fiscal Year 2022/2023 the District was comprised of the following Zones and developments: 

Zone 01 - Westfield Park/Windsor Court/Cambridge Park 

Zone 03 - Silva Estates 1-9 

Zone 05 - Wildflower Meadows 

Zone 06 - Capistrano 

Zone 07 - Silverado Estates 

Zone 08 - County Club Villas and the Greens (08A and 08B) 

Zone 09 - Manzanita at Lemoore 1-3 and La Dante Rose Subdivision 

Zone 10 - Avalon Phases 1-3 

Zone 11 - Self Help 

Zone 12 - Summerwind and College Park 

Zone 13 - Covington Place 

District Changes 

For fiscal year 2023/2024, no notable or substantial changes to the District and/or the 
improvements to be maintained by the District have occurred since the adoption of the fiscal year 
2022/2023 Annual Engineer’s Report. 

175



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 2 

Report Content and Annual Proceedings 
This Engineer’s Annual Report (the “Report”) has been prepared pursuant to Chapter 1, Article 4 
and Chapter 3 of the 1972 Act, and presented to the City Council for their consideration and 
approval of the proposed improvements and services to be provided within the District and the 
levy and collection of annual assessments related thereto for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. This Report 
outlines the District zone structure, improvements, and proposed assessments to be levied in 
connection with the special benefits the properties will receive from the maintenance and servicing 
of the District improvements for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. The annual assessments to be levied on 
properties within the District provide a source of funding to fund in whole or in part, the continued 
operation and maintenance of the landscaping improvements and the types of improvements and 
services to be provided by the District for the properties within each specified Zone for which 
properties in those respective Zones receive special benefits including street lighting in some 
Zones. 

Each fiscal year, the City establishes the District’s assessments based on an estimate of the costs 
to maintain, operate and service the authorized District improvements and based upon available 
revenues including assessment revenues, fund balances, general benefit contributions and any 
additional City contributions from available sources. The costs of the improvements and the 
proposed annual assessments budgeted and assessed against properties within the District may 
include, but are not limited to the estimated expenditures for regular annual maintenance and 
repairs; incidental expenditures related to the operation and administration of the District; deficits 
or surpluses from prior years; revenues from other sources; and the collection of funds for 
operational reserves and/or periodic repairs, replacements and rehabilitation projects as 
authorized by the 1972 Act. The net annual cost to provide the improvements for each benefit 
Zone and/or benefit Sub-Zone (collectively referred to hereafter as “Zones”) are allocated to the 
benefiting properties within those Zones using a weighted method of apportionment that 
calculates the proportional special benefit and assessment for each parcel as compared to other 
properties that benefit from the District improvements and services (refer to the Assessment 
Methodology section in Part II - Method of Apportionment of this Report). Thus, each parcel is 
assessed proportionately for only those improvements, services, and expenses for which the 
parcel will receive special benefit. 

The word “parcel,” for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property assigned its 
own Assessor’s Parcel Number (“APN”) by the Kings County Assessor’s Office. The Kings County 
Auditor/Controller uses Assessor’s Parcel Numbers and specific Fund Numbers to identify 
properties to be assessed on the tax roll for the District assessments. 

At a noticed annual Public Hearing, the City Council will accept all public comments and written 
protests regarding the District and the annual levy of assessments. Based on those public 
comments and written protests, the City Council may order amendments to the Report or confirm 
the Report as submitted. Following final approval of the Report and confirmation of the 
assessments, the City Council will by Resolution, order the improvements to be made and confirm 
the levy and collection of assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 pursuant to the 1972 Act. The 
assessments as approved will be submitted to the Kings County Auditor/Controller to be included 
on the property tax roll for each parcel. 

As required by the 1972 Act, this Engineer’s Report describes the improvements to be provided, 
maintained, and serviced for the District, an estimate of the annual expenses (budget) for those 
improvements, and the proposed assessments to be levied upon each assessable lot or parcel 
within the District for fiscal year 2023/2024. 

176



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 3 

This Report consists of five (5) parts: 

Part I 

Plans and Specifications: This section contains a general description of the District, zones of 
benefit (“Zones”), and the improvements and services that provide special benefits to the parcels 
within the District. The improvements and appurtenant facilities that provide special benefits to 
the properties within the District and for which parcels are assessed may include, but not limited 
to local landscaping, neighborhood parks, street lights, and related amenities as well as 
associated operational and incidental expenses, and the collection of fund balances authorized 
by the 1972 Act. The plans and specifications contained in this Report generally describe the 
nature and extent of the improvements. In conjunction with these general descriptions, a visual 
depiction of the improvements is provided in the District Diagrams contained in Part IV of this 
Report. More detailed information regarding the specific plans and specifications associated with 
the District improvements and maintenance in each Zone may be on file in the Public Works 
Department and by reference are made part of this Report. 

Part II 

Method of Apportionment: This section includes a discussion of the general and special benefits 
associated with the improvements to be provided within the District (Benefit Analysis), which 
includes a discussion of the proportional costs of the special benefits and a separation of costs 
considered to be of general benefit (and therefore not assessed). This section of the Report also 
outlines the basis upon which the estimated costs to provide such improvements is apportioned 
to each parcel of land therein in proportion to the special benefits to be received. (the method of 
calculating each property’s proportional special benefit assessment). This method of 
apportionment is consistent with the previously approved and adopted method of apportionment 
for the District. 

Part III 

Estimate of Costs: Identifies the estimated annual funding costs (Budgets) required for the 
maintenance and operation of the improvements in each Zone of the District, including, but not 
limited to, annual maintenance and service expenses, utility costs, related incidental expenses, 
and fund balances authorized by the 1972 Act and deemed appropriate to support the 
improvements, even though not all costs identified in these budgets are necessarily supported by 
the current assessment revenues. Those improvements and/or costs determined to be of general 
benefit shall be funded by a City contribution. In addition to the general benefit costs, the City may 
provide additional funding to support the maintenance and operation of the improvements 
considered to be of special benefit, but City staff shall make the determination of which 
improvements, and the extent of the services and activities that shall be provided based on 
available revenues.  

This section also identifies and outlines an Assessment Range Formula (inflationary adjust) that 
has been previously approved and adopted for Zone No. 08 (Sub-Zones 08A and 08B), which 
provides for an annual adjustment to the maximum assessment rates, which establishes limits on 
future assessments, but also provides for reasonable cost adjustments due to inflation. 

177



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 4 

Part IV 

District/Zone Diagrams: This section of the Report contains a series of diagrams showing the 
boundaries of the Zones within the District for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 which incorporate the 
parcels determined to receive special benefits from the District improvements. These diagrams 
also provide a visual depiction of the location of the improvements being maintained. The lines 
and dimensions of each lot, parcel, and subdivision of land contained in the Zone diagrams are 
inclusive of the parcels listed in “Part V - Assessment Rolls” of this Report and the corresponding 
County Assessor’s Parcel Maps for said parcels as they existed at the time this Report was 
prepared and shall incorporate all subsequent subdivisions, lot-line adjustments, or parcel 
changes therein. Reference is hereby made to the Kings County Assessor’s maps for a detailed 
description of the lines and dimensions of each lot and parcel of land within the District and Zones 
therein. 

Part V 

Assessment Roll: The assessment amounts to be levied and collected for each parcel in Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024 is provided in the Assessment Rolls, and these assessments are based on the 
parcel’s calculated proportional special benefit as outlined in “Part II - Method of Apportionment” 
and the annual assessment rates established by the estimated budgets outlines in “Part III 
Estimate of Costs”.  

 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, portion, zone, or subzone of this Engineer’s 
Report is, for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of 
this Engineer’s Report and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, 
portion, zone, or subzone thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, portions, zones, or subzones might subsequently be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

178



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 5 

Part I - Plans and Specifications 

The purpose of this District is to provide in part through annual assessments, funding for the 
ongoing operation, maintenance, and servicing of local landscaping, neighborhood parks, and 
related appurtenant facilities and services in specified areas of the City. In addition to local 
landscaping improvements, the assessments for Zone 08B also fund local public street lighting 
and related appurtenant facilities within the Sub-Zone. The territory within the District consists of 
the lots or parcels of land within the City of Lemoore that receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, operation, and servicing of local public improvements and related amenities which 
are provided through the District.  

As authorized by the 1972 Act, the improvements provided by the District and associated with 
each Zone, incorporate various local improvements and related amenities installed in connection 
with the development of those properties and are maintained and serviced for the benefit of real 
property within those Zones. In accordance with the 1972 Act, the maintenance of the 
improvements may also include various appurtenances including, but not limited to block walls, 
retaining walls or other fencing, trail and path surfaces, stamped concrete, pavers, mulch or other 
hardscapes, irrigation and related electrical equipment and drainage systems, benches, 
playground equipment and play structures, tables, trash receptacles, benches or other 
recreational facilities, monuments, signage, safety, ornamental, and recreational lighting, street 
lighting, and related equipment. The work to be performed within each respective Zone may 
include but is not limited to (as applicable), the personnel, materials, equipment, electricity, water, 
contract services, repair and rehabilitation of the improvements and incidental expenses required 
to operate the District and provide the improvements and services.  

Improvements provided within the District may include but are not limited to:  

➢ Landscaping and related facilities and amenities located within designated street medians; 
parkway and streetscape side-panels; entryways within the public right of ways or easements 
adjacent to public right of ways; and within public places including greenbelt areas, open 
spaces, and neighborhood parks within each respective Zone. These improvements may 
include, but are not limited to:  

• various landscape materials such as trees, turf, shrubs, vines, ground cover, annual or 
perineal plantings;  

• irrigation and drainage systems;  

• structural amenities such as monuments, block walls, retaining walls, or other fencing; 

• hardscapes including mulch, decomposed granite (“DG”), various trail and path surfaces, 
stamped concrete, and pavers; 

• recreational amenities within the parks or greenbelts that may include benches, play 
structures, picnic or other recreational facilities, signage, and related appurtenances.  

The maintenance of these improvements may include, but is not limited to the regularly 
scheduled mowing, trimming, pruning, fertilization, pest control, weed and graffiti abatement; 
installation, replacement and rehabilitation of the landscaping, repair or replacement of 
irrigation or drainage systems; repair or replacement of hardscape improvements and 
recreational amenities. The City Public Works Department shall authorize and schedule such 
maintenance and servicing as needed and based on available Zone funding.  

179



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 6 

➢ Street lighting improvements located in the public rights of way within and on the perimeter of 
the developments and associated with each Zone and/or Sub-Zone and the parcels therein. 
Street lighting improvements include energy costs and maintenance of the lighting facilities 
including, but not limited to the removal, repair, replacement or relocation of light standards, 
poles, bulbs, fixtures, and related equipment and materials. (Although street lights can be 
found in the various developments and District Zones, the operation and maintenance of the 
lights are only funded by District assessments in Zone 08B).  

 

Zones of Benefit 
In accordance with the 1972 Act, this District utilizes Zones to address variations in the nature, 
location, and extent of the improvements that provide special benefits to parcels within the District. 
Each Zone is associated with specific improvements and/or types of improvements that provide 
special benefit to properties within that Zone. 

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024 the District is comprised of the following Zones and developments: 

Zone 01 - Westfield Park, Windsor Court, and Cambridge Park: 

Zone 01 is comprised of the development areas referred to as Westfield Park and Windsor 
Court/Cambridge Park, which includes the eighty (80) multi-family residential unit parcel within 
the Alderwood Apartments; the fifteen (15) non-residential parcels (17.47 acres) of the Lemoore 
Plaza Shopping Center; and the five hundred fifty (550) single-family residential parcels within 
Tract No. 616 (Windsor Court Unit No. 1), Tract No. 640 (Windsor Court Unit No. 2), Tract No. 
630 (Cambridge Park), Tract No. 630 (Cambridge Park Unit No. 2), Tract No. 685 (Windsor Court 
Unit No. 3), Tract No. 686 (Windsor Court Unit No. 4), Tract No. 691(Cambridge Park Unit No. 3, 
Phase 1), Tract No. 707 (Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 1), Tract No. 707 (Windsor Court Unit 
No. 5, Phase 2), and Tract No. 692 (Cambridge Park Unit No. 3, Phase 2).  

Note: Tract No. 707 (Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 2) and Tract No. 692 (Cambridge Park Unit 
No. 3, Phase 2) were previously identified as Zone 2, but were consolidated with the other parcels 
in Zone 01 into a single Zone in Fiscal Year 2016/2017. 

Zone 03 - Silva Estates: 

Zone 03 is comprised of the two hundred seventy (270) single-family residential parcels within 
Tract No. 639 (Silva Estates Unit No. 1), Tract No. 639 (Silva Estates Unit No. 2), Tract No. 666 
(Silva Estates Unit No. 3), Tract No. 714 (Silva Estates Unit No. 4), Tract No. 731 (Silva Estates 
Unit No. 5), Tract No. 748 (Silva Estates Unit No. 6), Tract No. 773 (Silva Estates Unit No. 7), and 
Tract No. 793 (Silva Estates Unit No. 9); and the nineteen (19) parcels within Tract No. 781 (Silva 
Estates Unit No. 8) currently comprised of ten (10) developed multi-family residential parcels (4-
units each) and nine (9) undeveloped multi-family residential parcels (each to be developed as 4-
unit multi-family residential properties). 

Zone 05 - Wildflower Meadows: 

Zone 05 is comprised of twenty-nine (29) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 668 
(Wildflower Meadows). 

Zone 06 - Capistrano: 

Zone 06 is comprised of one hundred twenty-six (126) single-family residential parcels within 
Tract No. 700 (Capistrano Phases 1, 2, 3, and 4). 

180



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 7 

Zone 07 - Silverado Estates: 

Zone 07 is comprised of fifty-three (53) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 687 
(Silverado Estates). 

Zone 08 - County Club Villas and the Greens: 

Zone 08 is comprised of the development areas referred to as Country Club Villas and the Greens. 
These two development areas receive special benefits from landscaping improvements that are 
proportionately shared by all properties in the Zone, but properties in Tract Nos. 758 and 752 also 
receive special benefits and are assessed for a neighborhood park and street light improvements. 
Therefore, parcels in Zone 08 are further identified as either Zone 08A or Zone 08B. 

Zone 08A is comprised of the one hundred thirty-two (132) single-family residential lots within 
Tract No. 704 (Country Club Villas Phase 1) and Tract No.783 (Country Club Villas 2 Phase 1). 

Zone 08B is comprised of the one hundred forty (140) single-family residential lots within Tract 
No. 758 (Phases 1 and 2) and Tract No.752 (the Greens) which was annexed to Zone 08 in May 
2017. 

Zone 9 - Manzanita at Lemoore and La Dante Rose Subdivision: 

Zone 09 is comprised of one hundred thirty-four (134) single-family residential parcels within Tract 
No. 369 (Manzanita at Lemoore Phase 1A, Unit No. 2, and Unit No. 3), and Tract No. 763 (La 
Dante Rose Subdivision). 

Zone 10 - Avalon: 

Zone 10 is comprised of one hundred fifty-one (151) single-family residential parcels within Tract 
No. 717 (Avalon Phases 1, 2A, 2B, and 3). 

Zone 11 - Self Help: 

Zone 11 is comprised of thirty-six (36) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 656 (Self 
Help). 

Zone 12 - Summerwind and College Park: 

Zone 12 is comprised of the development area referred to as Summerwind and College Park, 
which collectively includes five hundred fifty-two (552) single-family residential parcels within Tract 
No. 751 (Summerwind Unit 1), Tract No. 739 (College Park Phases 1 and 2), Tract No. 782 
(College Park Phase 3), and Tract No. 789 (College Park Phases 4, 5, 6, and 7). 

Note: Tract No. 789 (College Park Phase 7) was previously identified as Zone 12A but was 
consolidated with the other parcels in Zone 12 into a single Zone in Fiscal Year 2016/2017. 

Zone 13 - Covington Place: 

Zone 13 is comprised of thirty-three (33) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 733 
(Covington Place). 

181



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 8 

Description of Improvements 
As authorized by the 1972 Act, the improvements provided by the District and associated with 
each Zone may incorporate various landscaping, local parks, and street lighting that are 
maintained and serviced for the benefit of real property within the District. The various Zone 
improvements were either installed in direct connection with the development of properties within 
each respective Zone of the District or were installed for the benefit of those properties resulting 
from property development or potential development of those properties. These improvements 
were considered necessary elements for the development of such properties to their full and best 
use.  

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024 the District includes eleven (11) designated Zones, with Zone 08 
having two Sub-Zone (Zone 08A and Zone 08B). The boundaries of each Zone and Sub-Zone 
are based on the improvements to be maintained and the relationship and proximity of the 
developments and properties that derive special benefits from those specific improvements. The 
following is a brief description and summary of the improvements associated within each Zone 
and for which parcels receive special benefits. A visual depiction of the location of the landscape 
improvement areas and Zone boundaries are provided on the District Diagrams provided in Part 
IV of this Report.  

Zone 01 

The properties within Zone 01, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 376,514 square feet of landscaping 
and/or related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 948 square feet of median landscaping (turf with trees) on Bennington Avenue; 

➢ 1,107 square feet of parkway landscaping (turf with trees) on Bennington Avenue; 

➢ 97,075 square feet of open space/greenbelt area between Fallenleaf Drive and Cinnamon 
Avenue, including approximately 11,245 square feet of trail; and 85,830 square feet of 
landscaping which is mostly turf, but also includes some plant areas and trees; 

➢ 1,053 square feet of median landscaping (turf with trees) on Brentwood Drive; 

➢ 7,811 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping consisting of 
shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees on Brentwood Drive; 

➢ 2,557 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Coventry Drive, 
including approximately 1,220 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with 
trees; and 1,337 square feet of turf with trees; 

➢ 1,433 square feet of median landscaping (turf) on Coventry Drive; 

➢ 760 square feet of streetscape landscaping (shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with 
trees) on Devon Drive; 

➢ 15,549 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Eton Drive, 
including approximately 2,717 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with 
trees; and 12,832 square feet of turf with trees; 

➢ 11,906 square feet of medians on Fallenleaf Drive, including approximately 9,766 square 
feet of turf with trees; and 2,140 square feet of stamped concrete, pavers, or other 
hardscape surface located; 

182



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 9 

➢ 69,492 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Fallenleaf 
Drive, including approximately 11,275 square feet of turf with trees; and 58,217 square 
feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees; 

➢ 52,375 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Fox Street, 
including approximately 21,924 square feet of turf with trees; and 30,451 square feet of 
shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees; 

➢ 21,656 square feet of medians on Fox Street, including approximately 16,865 square feet 
of turf with trees; and 4,791 square feet of stamped concrete, pavers, or other hardscape 
surface located; 

➢ 907 square feet of median landscaping on Brighton Avenue north of Fallenleaf Drive and 
south of Sheffield Drive; 

➢ 559 square feet of median landscaping on Brighton Avenue south of Fallenleaf Drive and 
north of Bristol Court; 

➢ 731 square feet of median landscaping (turf with trees) on Hill Street; 

➢ 22,302 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Liberty Drive, 
including approximately 8,311 square feet of turf with trees; and 13,991 square feet of 
shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees located; 

➢ 13,106 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on N Lemoore 
Avenue, including approximately 9,188 square feet of turf with trees; and 3,918 square 
feet of minimally landscaped area with trees; 

➢ 30,215 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on W Cinnamon 
Drive, including approximately 15,024 square feet of turf with trees; and 15,191 square 
feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees; and 

➢ 24,972 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on W Hanford 
Armona Road, including approximately 10,995 square feet of turf with trees; and 13,977 
square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees. 

Zone 03 

The properties within Zone 03, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 22,973 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 22,973 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Silverado 
Drive, including approximately 15,698 square feet of a mix of shrubs, plants, and turf with 
trees; and 7,275 square feet of turf with trees. 

Zone 05 

The properties within Zone 05, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 8,651 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 8,651 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on W Cinnamon 
Drive, including approximately 2,190 square feet of turf; and 6,461 square feet of a mix of 
shrubs, plants, and turf with trees. 

183



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 10 

Zone 06 

The properties within Zone 06, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 5,570  square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ Approximately 5,070 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on 
East Bush Street consisting of: 3,125 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover 
with trees; and 1,945 square feet of turf with trees. These improvements and the costs 
associated with the maintenance and operation are proportionately shared by properties 
within PFMD Zone 07. 

➢ The median island on Bush Place/Barcelona Drive, just south of East Bush Street leading 
into the development (Approximately 427 square feet). This median and the costs 
associated with the maintenance and operation are proportionately shared by properties 
within PFMD Zone 07. 

➢ 73 square feet of entryway/corner landscaping in front of the block wall at the southeast 
corner of East Bush Street and Bush Place/Barcelona Drive. This improvement area and 
the costs associated with the maintenance and operation of the improvements are 
proportionately shared by properties within PFMD Zone 07. 

Zone 07 

The properties within Zone 07, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 22,172 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 2,783 square feet of streetscape landscaping (trees) on Cambria Lane; 

➢ 10,555 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on S 19th Avenue, 
including approximately 2,117 square feet of turf with trees; and 8,438 square feet of 
limited plants or bare ground with trees; and 

➢ 8,834 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Silverado Drive, 
including approximately 3,716 square feet of turf; and 5,118 square feet of shrubs, plants, 
and/or ground cover with trees. 

Zone 08 

The properties within Zone 08 (Zone 08A and Zone 08B), collectively and proportionately share 
and receive special benefit from the maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 
34,796 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas that includes, but is not 
limited to the following: 

➢ 12,379 square feet of medians on Golf Links Drive, including approximately 8,795 square 
feet of turf with trees; 2,482 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover; and 1,102 
square feet of stamped concrete, pavers, or other hardscape surface; 

➢ 17,476 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on both sides of 
Golf Links Drive between Iona Avenue and S 18th Avenue, consisting of trees, shrubs, 
plants, and/or ground cover; 

➢ 2,345 square feet of entryway feature landscaping on Golf Links Drive at Iona Avenue, 
including approximately 1,910 square feet of turf; and 435 square feet of shrubs, plants, 
and/or ground cover; 

184



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 11 

➢ 2,146 square feet of entryway feature landscaping on Golf Links Drive at S 18th Avenue, 
including approximately 1,483 square feet of turf; and 663 square feet of shrubs, plants, 
and/or ground cover. 

➢ 450 square feet of parkway side-panel landscaping on Vine Street, consisting of shrubs, 
plants, and/or ground cover with trees; 

In addition to the above proportionately shared special benefit improvements, the parcels within 
Tract No. 758 and Tract No. 752 (Zone 08B) receive special benefit from the maintenance, 
servicing, and operation of the following improvements: 

➢ Twenty-nine (29) street lights including: 

• 1 street light on the perimeter of the developments located on the east side of Vine Street 
at Caddie Loop; and 

• 28 street lights within Tract No. 758 and Tract No. 752 located on, but not limited to: Golf 
Avenue, Par Avenue, Highland Place, Hillcrest Street, and Caddie Loop. 

➢ 9,715 square feet of park site improvements that includes, but is not limited to 
approximately: 

• 700 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Golf Avenue and 
Caddie Loop adjacent to the park, consisting of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with 
trees; 

• 1,965 square feet of shrubs, trees, plants, and/or ground cover area within the park site; 

• 5,125 square feet of turf area within the park site; and 

• 1,925 square feet of hardscape surface area that may include, but is not limited to concrete 
paths, play structures, tables, benches, and trash receptacles. 

Zone 09 

The properties within Zone 09, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 21,031 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 318 square feet of median landscaping (limited plants or bare ground) on Cinnamon Drive; 

➢ 20,713 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on E Hanford 
Armona Road, including approximately 15,095 square feet of a mix of shrubs, plants, and 
turf with trees; and 5,618 square feet of turf with trees. 

Zone 10 

The properties within Zone 10, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 70,972 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 2,654 square feet of streetscape landscaping (turf with trees) on Castle Way; 

➢ 32,319 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Cinnamon 
Drive, including approximately 27,788 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover 
with trees; and 4,531 square feet of turf with trees; 

185



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 12 

➢ 6,868 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Hearth Way, 
consisting of turf with trees; 

➢ 1,152 square feet of parkway landscaping (turf) on Homestead Way; 

➢ 2,911 square feet of parkway landscaping (shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees) 
on Welcome Way; 

➢ 25,068 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on 19½ Avenue, 
including approximately 18,223 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with 
trees; and 6,845 square feet of turf with trees. 

Zone 11 

The properties within Zone 11, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 10,611 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 1,361 square feet of median/entryway landscaping on Cabrillo Street at Vine Street, which 
is currently comprised of hardscape material and trees; 

➢ 6,379 square feet of minimally maintained parkway and streetscape side-panel 
landscaping surrounding the drainage basin, including 1,725 square feet on Vine Street 
and 4,654 square feet on Cabrillo Street. This landscape area is minimally maintained at 
present with a few trees; 

➢ 2,871 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel minimal landscaped area with 
trees Vine Street north of Cabrillo Street. 

Zone 12 

The properties within Zone 12, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 99,477 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 3,365 square feet of streetscape landscaping (shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover) on 
Apricot Avenue; 

➢ 52,598 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Cinnamon 
Drive, including approximately 10,820 square feet of turf with trees; and 41,778 square 
feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees; 

➢ 19,101 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Hanford 
Armona Road, including approximately 11,369 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or 
ground cover; and 7,732 square feet of turf with trees; 

➢ 20,128 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on N 19th Avenue, 
including approximately 12,428 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover; and 
7,700 square feet of turf with trees; 

➢ 1,670 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on N 19th Avenue, 
consisting of trees and limited plants or bare ground; 

➢ 514 square feet of parkway side-panel landscaping on Noble Street, consisting of shrubs, 
plants, and/or ground cover; 

186



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 13 

➢ 1,783 square feet of parkway landscaping (limited plants or bare ground) on Sunset 
Avenue; 

➢ 318 square feet of streetscape landscaping (shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover) on 
Windy Lane. 

Zone 13 

The properties within Zone 13, proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of approximately 12,603 square feet of landscaping and/or 
related improvement areas that includes the following: 

➢ 8,667 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Hanford Armona 
Road, including approximately 2,249 square feet of turf with trees; and 6,418 square feet 
of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees; 

➢ 3,936 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on Liberty Drive, 
including approximately 1,817 square feet of turf with trees; and 2,119 square feet of 
shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees. 

187



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 14 

Part II - Method of Apportionment 

Legislative Requirements for Assessments 
The estimated costs to provide the proposed improvements for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 have been 
identified and allocated to properties within the District based on special benefit, consistent with 
the requirements of the 1972 Act and the assessment provisions of Proposition 218 (being 
contained in Article XIII D of the California Constitution). The improvements provided by this 
District and for which properties are assessed are local public parks, landscaping, and lighting 
improvements including related amenities. The formulas used for calculating assessments and 
the designation of Zones herein reflect the composition of parcels within the District and the 
improvements and activities to be provided and have been designed to fairly apportion the cost 
of providing those improvements based on a determination of the proportional special benefits to 
each parcel. 

Provisions of the 1972 Act 

The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose of 
providing certain public improvements, including the acquisition, construction, installation and 
servicing of landscape improvements and related facilities. The 1972 Act requires that the cost of 
these improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value: 

Section 22573 defines the net amount to be assessed as follows: 

“The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be apportioned by 
any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among all assessable lots or parcels 
in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each such lot or parcel from the 
improvements.” 

Section 22574 provides for zones as follows: 

“The diagram and assessment may classify various areas within an assessment district into 
different zones where, by reason of variations in the nature, location, and extent of the 
improvements, the various areas will receive differing degrees of benefit from the improvements. 
A zone shall consist of all territory which will receive substantially the same degree of benefit from 
the improvements.” 

Provisions of the California Constitution  

In addition to the provisions of the 1972 Act, the Article XIII D of the California Constitution outlines 
specific requirements regarding assessments including the following: 

Article XIII D Section 2d defines District as follows: 

“District means an area determined by an agency to contain all parcels which will receive a special 
benefit from a proposed public improvement or property-related service”;  

Article XIII D Section 2i defines Special Benefit as follows: 

“Special benefit” means a particular and distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred 
on real property located in the district or to the public at large. General enhancement of property 
value does not constitute “special benefit.” 

188



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 15 

Article XIII D Section 4a defines proportional special benefit assessments as follows: 

“An agency which proposes to levy an assessment shall identify all parcels which will have a 
special benefit conferred upon them and upon which an assessment will be imposed. The 
proportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be determined in relationship 
to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation 
expenses of a public improvement, or the cost of the property related service being provided. No 
assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the 
proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”  

Benefit Analysis 

Special Benefits 

Landscaping Special Benefit 

The ongoing maintenance of landscaped areas within the District as addressed in this Report, 
provide aesthetic benefits to the properties and a more pleasant environment to walk, drive, live, 
and/or work. The primary function of these landscape improvements and related amenities is to 
serve as an aesthetically pleasing enhancement and green space for the benefit of the 
immediately surrounding properties and developments for which the improvements were 
constructed and installed and/or were facilitated by the development or potential development of 
properties within each respective Zone. These landscape improvements are an integral part of 
the physical environment associated with the parcels in each Zone and while some of the 
improvements may in part be visible to properties outside the Zone, collectively if these Zone 
improvements are not properly maintained, it is the parcels within the Zone and/or Sub-Zone (as 
may be applicable), that would be aesthetically burdened. Additionally, the street landscaping in 
these Zones serves as both a physical buffer as well as a sound reduction buffer between the 
roadways and the properties in the District and serve as a pleasant aesthetic amenity that 
enhances the approach to the parcels. In some District Zones, such as Zone 08, the landscaped 
areas may include green space areas (neighborhood parks, greenbelts, open space and/or trails) 
that may provide a physical buffer between properties, overall open space within a development, 
and/or recreational areas and that serve as an extension of the physical attributes of the parcels 
assessed, such as their front or rear yards. Thus, the maintenance of these landscape 
improvements and the related amenities provide particular and distinct benefits to the properties 
and developments associated with those improvements within each Zone. 

189



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 16 

Street Lighting Special Benefit 

The street lighting (localized street lighting) is primarily useful for illuminating the sidewalks and 
parking lanes on the streets used specifically to access the properties and/or is adjacent to those 
properties that comprise a particular Zone or Sub-Zone. This lighting is distinct from lights that 
may be installed that serve in large part to enhance traffic safety, such as traffic signals and 
intersection safety lights or the more sporadic lighting found on major thoroughfares outside the 
more concentrated development areas. These localized streetlights tend to be more closely 
spaced and of a lower intensity than streetlights installed primarily for traffic safety. These low-
level, lower-intensity streetlights within a designated Zone or Sub-Zone provide three main special 
benefits: (i) property security benefit, (ii) pedestrian safety benefit, and (iii) parkway/roadway 
egress benefit. Because traffic to and from these parcels is largely limited to the residents and 
residents’ guests, it is reasonable to assume that essentially all pedestrians and parking vehicles 
in the lit areas will, after dark, be directly associated with the properties in that area and that the 
vehicular traffic within the internal streets of that Zone or Sub-Zone is primarily for accessing the 
properties within that area. Therefore, street lighting on such streets is entirely a special benefit 
to those properties. While lighting located on the perimeter of a development also serves primarily 
for accessing the properties within that Zone or Sub-Zone, it is recognized that such lighting may 
benefit pass-through traffic as well and inherently there is some general benefits associated with 
those streetlights. 

In addition, the streetlights for which properties within the District may be assessed, are consistent 
with the City’s typical intensity and spacing standards for areas zoned for residential development 
and each parcel to be assessed is served directly by the system of streetlights providing 
appropriate lighting within these respective development areas. Furthermore, the cost of 
maintaining and operating each light is substantially the same, regardless of the location of the 
light within the District. Consequently, we conclude that each parcel to be assessed for street 
lighting receives substantially similar benefit from the streetlight improvements and the only 
notable distinctions in proportional special benefit to each parcel is related to the specific quantity 
of lights associated with each Zone or Sub-Zone and the overall location of those lights (internal 
development lights or perimeter lights).  

General Benefit 

Landscaping General Benefit 

In reviewing the location and extent of the specific landscaped areas and improvements to be 
funded by District assessments and the proximity and relationship to properties to be assessed 
(both District wide and Zone 08 specifically), it is evident these improvements were primarily 
installed in connection with the development of properties therein or are improvements that would 
otherwise be shared by and required for development of properties in each respective Zone. It is 
also evident that the maintenance these improvements and the level of maintenance provided 
has a direct and particular impact (special benefit) only on those properties in proximity to those 
improvements and such maintenance beyond that which is required to ensure the safety and 
protection of the general public and property in general, has no quantifiable benefit to the public 
at large or properties outside each respective Zone. 

In the absence of a special funding Zone, the City would typically provide only limited (as needed) 
tree management, weed abatement, rodent control, and erosion control services for the 
landscape areas currently maintained within the District. This baseline level of service would 
typically provide for periodic servicing of the improvement areas on an as-needed basis, but 
typically not more than twice annually. This baseline level of service provides for public safety and 
essential property protection to avoid negative impacts on adjacent roadways and vehicles 

190



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 17 

traveling on those roadways and potential property damage resulting from erosion or fire hazards 
but results in a far less visually pleasing environment than is created with the enhanced levels of 
services associated with the regular landscape maintenance provided in the various Zones. For 
most agencies, the cost to provide this baseline level of service for flat/moderately-sloped street 
landscaped areas is less than $560 per acre (approximately $0.01285 per square foot) including 
medians, parkway and streetscape side panels; less than $448 per acre (approximately $0.01028 
per square foot) for non-street public areas such as parks, greenbelts, and trail areas; and less 
than $224 per acre (approximately $0.00514 per square foot) for natural open space areas or 
other limited access areas. This baseline servicing, unlike the enhanced aesthetic services funded 
through the District assessments, would provide benefits to the general public and to the 
properties both within and outside of the specific benefit zones. The cost of providing this baseline 
service along with a five percent (5%) cost factor for City overhead and administration is treated 
as the cost of general benefits from landscape maintenance services. Therefore, for 
flat/moderately-sloped street landscaped areas a rate of $0.01349 per square foot ($0.01285 
+5%) is applied to calculate the general benefit costs for the assessed improvements; for non-
street public areas a rate of $0.01080 per square foot ($0.01028 +5%) is applied to calculate the 
general benefit costs for the assessed improvements; and for non-street public areas a rate of 
$0.00540 per square foot ($0.00514 +5%) is applied to calculate the general benefit costs for the 
assessed improvements. 

Other Landscaping General Benefits 

In addition to the general benefit identified above, it is recognized that there are indirect or 
incidental general benefits to properties within the District as well as the general public that are 
associated with regular landscape maintenance services, including: 

➢ Minimization of dust and debris; and 

➢ Decreased potential water runoff from both properties and the landscaped areas. 

Although these types of benefits might best be characterized as indirect consequences of the 
special benefit of the landscape maintenance provided to parcels served by the District, for the 
purposes of this Report we assume these types of benefits to be general benefits, albeit general 
benefits that are extremely difficult to quantify. We estimate that the costs associated with these 
indirect benefits do not exceed one percent of the annual maintenance expenditures for Local 
Landscaping Zone improvements. Therefore, the costs associated with these indirect or incidental 
general benefits are calculated based on 1.0% of the estimated “Total Annual Maintenance 
Expenditures” budgeted for each Zone. Together with the baseline general benefit costs 
previously identified, these indirect/incidental general benefit costs are excluded from the potential 
assessment funding and together are shown in the budgets (“Part III — Estimate of Costs” of this 
Report) as the “Landscaping General Benefit - City Funded”. 

Street Lighting General Benefit 

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024, Sub-Zone 08B is the only Zone that is currently assessed for street 
light improvements. While only one of the twenty-nine public street lights proposed to be included 
as part of the improvements for Zone 08B is identified as a perimeter street light (approximately 
3.5% of the street lights), collectively throughout the City’s various assessment districts, 
approximately 30% of the street lights identified as special benefit street lights are located on the 
perimeter of the various Zones, the remainder being internal residential streetlights. 

These residential perimeter street lights, in contrast to the internal residential lights funded by the 
special benefit assessments, arguably provide some illumination that extends beyond the 

191



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 18 

boundaries of the developments and parcels being assessed, and these lights may also enhance 
the safety of members of the public unassociated with an assessed parcel by illuminating traffic 
lanes and/or parking on those streets, or that otherwise provides services to the general public. 
Although, in general, these streetlights exist solely because of the development of assessed 
parcels, and the primary purpose of these lights is to provide illumination to access the assessed 
parcels, these particular lights may provide some level of general benefit in addition to the special 
benefits provided to the assessed parcels. We estimate that these general benefits constitute not 
more than 25% of the total benefit associated with these perimeter lights. Although the number of 
perimeter street lights for Zone 08B represents far less than the 30% associated with other 
assessment districts in the City, for consistency purposes and to ensure that the general benefit 
costs associated with the Zone’s street lights is not under estimated, the 30% allocation has been 
used which results in no more than 8% of the total benefit from all residential lights operated and 
maintained for Zone 08 being considered as general benefit (25% of 30% equals 7.5%). 
Therefore, it is reasonable to conclude that the total general benefit from the operation and 
maintenance activities associated with the street lights does not exceed 8% of the direct annual 
operating expenses for all combined residential streetlights. These general benefit costs are 
excluded from the potential assessment funding and are shown in the budgets (Part III of this 
Report) as the “Lighting General Benefit - City Funded”. 

 

Based on the general benefits outlined above and the improvement in each Zone, the following 
table summarizes the estimated general benefit costs calculated for each Zone: 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Estimated General Benefit Costs 

  

Zone

 Total 

General 

Benefit Cost 

Zone 01 -$                (5,332)$    (5,332)$        

Zone 03 -$                (405)$       (405)$           

Zone 05 -$                (109)$       (109)$           

Zone 06 -$                (77)$         (77)$             

Zone 07 -$                (291)$       (291)$           

Zone 08A -$                (291)$       (291)$           

Zone 08B -$                (434)$       (434)$           

Zone 09 -$                (315)$       (315)$           

Zone 10 -$                (924)$       (924)$           

Zone 11 -$                (138)$       (138)$           

Zone 12 -$                (1,371)$    (1,371)$        

Zone 13 -$                (179)$       (179)$           

Total -$                (9,865)$    (9,865)$        

 Street Lighting 

General 

Benefit 

 Landscaping 

General 

Benefit 

192



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 19 

Assessment Methodology 
To assess benefits equitably it is necessary to calculate each property’s relative share of the 
special benefits conferred by the funded improvements and service. The Equivalent Benefit Unit 
(EBU) method of assessment apportionment is utilized for this District and establishes a basic 
unit (base value) of benefit and then calculates the benefit derived by each assessed parcel as a 
multiple (or a fraction) of that basic unit. The EBU method of apportioning special benefits is 
typically seen as the most appropriate and equitable assessment methodology for districts formed 
under the 1972 Act, as the benefit to each parcel from the improvements are apportioned as a 
function of comparable property characteristics which may include but is not limited to land use 
and property size. The method of apportionment originally developed for this District was based 
on an assessment formula appropriate for the various land uses, identifiable property 
characteristics and improvements within the District and utilizes the number of comparative 
dwelling units or dwelling spaces for other residential land uses and comparative lot sizes 
(acreage) for non-residential and undeveloped properties. 

For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, an EBU is the quantum of benefit derived from the 
various Zone improvements by a single family residential parcel. The single family residential 
parcel has been selected as the basic unit for calculation of assessments since it represents over 
98% of the parcels to be assessed in the District. Thus, the "benchmark" property (the single 
family residential parcel) derives one EBU of benefit and is assigned 1.00 Equivalent Benefit Unit. 

Land Use Classifications 

Every parcel within the District is assigned a land use classification based on available parcel 
information obtained from the County Assessor’s Office. It has been determined that parcel use 
and size are the appropriate factors necessary to identify and calculate the proportional special 
benefits conveyed to each property within the District for the cost of improvements associated 
with that property. For this District, each parcel is assigned one of the following land use 
classifications: 

Residential Single-Family - This land use classification may include but is not limited to all 
subdivided residential tract lots with a single residential unit on the parcel (individual Assessor’s 
Parcel Number) including attached and detached single-family residential units, condominiums, 
or townhomes. As previously noted, the single family residential parcel has been selected as the 
basic unit for calculation of assessments and each is assigned 1.00 Equivalent Benefit Unit.  

Residential Multi-Family - This land use classification identifies properties that are used for 
residential purposes but contain more than a single residential unit on the parcel (parcels with 
more than one dwelling). These parcels have been assigned a weighted proportional special 
benefit factor of 1.00 EBU per Unit. Therefore, the EBUs assigned to a multi-residential property 
are calculated based on the number of dwelling units identified for that parcel. 

Residential Vacant Lot - This land use classification is defined as a fully subdivided residential 
parcel/lot within an approved Tract or subdivision for which the residential unit or units have not 
been constructed on the parcel (subdivided vacant lot). This land use classification is limited to 
fully subdivided residential parcels for which the number of residential units to be constructed on 
the parcel is four (4) units or less. This land use is assessed at 1.00 EBU per parcel.  

Planned Residential Subdivision - This land use classification is defined as any property not 
fully subdivided, but a specific number of proposed lots and/or residential units to be developed 

193



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 20 

on the parcel has been identified as part of an approved Tract Map or Tentative Tract Map. This 
land use type is assessed at 1.0 EBU per planned (proposed) lot and/or residential unit. 

Non-Residential Developed - This land use classification includes developed properties that are 
identified or zoned for commercial, industrial or other non-residential use which include, but is not 
limited to commercial uses (such as offices, restaurants, retail stores, parking lots, hotels, and 
service stations); industrial uses (such as manufacturing, warehousing, and storage facilities); 
and institutional facilities including hospitals, churches or facilities utilized by other non-profit 
organizations, whether those facilities are publicly owned (non-taxable) or privately owned. These 
parcels are assigned a weighted proportional special benefit factor of 3.50 EBU per acre, which 
is comparable to the average number of single-family residential parcel developed on an acre of 
land within the City. Therefore, the EBU assigned to each non-residential property is 3.50 EBU 
per acre (e.g., A 2.50-acre parcel identified as non-residential is assigned 8.75 EBU).  

Vacant/Undeveloped - This land use classification is defined as undeveloped property (vacant 
land) that can be developed (development potential), but a tract map or development plan has 
not been approved. Although it is recognized that the improvements provided within the various 
Zones of the District were primarily constructed and installed as the result of property 
development, it is also recognized that in most cases, these improvements were constructed in 
part to support the overall development of properties within the District and/or Zone to their full 
and best use, including undeveloped properties. This land use is assessed at 1.00 EBU per acre. 
Parcels less than 1 acre are assigned a minimum of 1.00 EBU.  

Exempt - Exempt from District assessments are the areas of public streets, private streets, and 
other roadways, dedicated public easements and open spaces, rights-of-ways including public 
greenbelts and parkways or that portion of public property that is not developed and used for 
business purposes similar to private commercial, industrial, and institutional activities. (These 
types of properties are not usually assigned an Assessor’s Parcel Number by the County). Also 
exempt from assessment are utility rights-of-ways, common areas (such as in condominium 
complexes), landlocked parcels, small parcels vacated by the County, bifurcated lots, and any 
other property that cannot be developed or developed independent of an adjacent parcel. It has 
been determined that these types of properties receive no direct benefit from the improvements 
and receive no special benefit or general benefits from the operation and maintenance of the 
District improvements. 

Special Case - In many assessment districts (particularly districts that have a wide range of land 
uses and property development) there may be one or more parcels that the standard land use 
classifications and proportionality identified above do not accurately identify the use and special 
benefit received from the improvements. Properties that are typically classified as Special Case 
Parcels usually involve some type of development or land restrictions whether those restrictions 
are temporary or permanent and affect the properties proportional special benefit. Examples of 
such restrictions may include situations where only a small percentage of the parcel’s total 
acreage can actually be developed. In such a case, the net usable acreage of the parcel rather 
than the gross acreage of the parcel may be applied to calculate the parcel’s proportional special 
benefit. Each such parcel shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis by the assessment 
engineer and the EBU assigned to such parcels shall be based on the specific issues related to 
that parcel and its proportional special benefit compared to other properties that receive special 
benefits from the improvements. 

 

194



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 21 

A summary of the applied Equivalent Benefit Units (EBUs) for the various land use classifications 
within the District is shown in the following table:  

  

 

Equivalent Benefit Unit Summary 
The following is a summary of the land use classifications and Equivalent Benefit Units applicable 
to each of the District Zones: 

Zone 01 

  
 

Zone 03 

  
 

Land Use Classification

Residential Single-Family 1.00 EBU per Parcel/Lot

Residential Multi-Family 1.00 EBU per Unit

Residential Vacant Lot 1.00 EBU per Parcel/Lot

Planned Residential Subdivision 0.50 EBU per Lot/Unit

Non-Residential Developed 3.50 EBU per Acre

Vacant/Undeveloped 1.00 EBU per Acre (Minimum 1.00 EBU)

Exempt 0.00 EBU per Parcel

Equivalent Benefit Unit Formula

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 550         550            550.00          550.000         

Residential Multi-Family 1             1                80.00            80.000           

Non-Residential Developed 15           15              17.47            61.145           

Exempt 24           -                 6.29              -               

Totals 590         566            653.76          691.145         

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 269         269            269.00          269.000         

Residential Multi-Family 10           10              40.00            40.000           

Residential Vacant Lot 9             9                9.00              9.000             

Exempt 7             -                 0.62              -               

Totals 295         288            318.62          318.000         

195



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 22 

Zone 05 

  
 

Zone 06 

  
 

Zone 07 

  
 

Zone 08, Sub-Zone 08A 

  
 

Zone 08, Sub-Zone 08B 

  
 

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 29           29              29.00            29.000           

Exempt 3             -                 0.15              -               

Totals 32           29              29.15            29.000           

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 123         123            123.00          123.000         

Exempt 4             -                 0.68              -               

Totals 127         123            123.68          123.000         

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 53           53              53.00            53.000           

Exempt 3             -                 0.36              -               

Totals 56           53              53.36            53.000           

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 131         131            131.00          131.000         

Residential Vacant Lot 1             1                1.00              1.000             

Exempt 9             -                 5.83              -               

Totals 141         132            137.83          132.000         

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 137         137            137.00          137.000         

Residential Vacant Lot 3             3                3.00              3.000             

Exempt 1             -                 0.21              -               

Totals 141         140            140.21          140.000         

196



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 23 

Zone 09 

  
 

Zone 10 

  
 

Zone 11 

  
 

Zone 12 

  
 

Zone 13 

  
 
 

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 134         134            134.00          134.000         

Exempt 5             -                 0.41              -               

Totals 139         134            134.41          134.000         

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 151         151            151.00          151.000         

Exempt 8             -                 1.53              -               

Totals 159         151            152.53          151.000         

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 36           36              36.00            36.000           

Exempt 2             -                 1.44              -               

Totals 38           36              37.44            36.000           

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 552         552            552.00          552.000         

Exempt 18           -                 2.05              -               

Totals 570         552            554.05          552.000         

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 33           33              33.00            33.000           

Exempt 3             -                 0.27              -               

Totals 36           33              33.27            33.000           

197



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 24 

Calculation of Assessments 

An assessment amount per EBU in each Zone is calculated by: 

Taking the “Total Annual Expenses” (Total budgeted costs) and subtracting the “General Benefit 
Expenses (City Funded)”, to establish the “Total Eligible Special Benefit Expenses”;  

Total Annual Expenses - General Benefit Expenses = Total Eligible Special Benefit Expenses 

To the resulting “Eligible Special Benefit Expenses”, various “Funding Adjustments/Contributions” 
may be applied that may include, but are not limited to: 

➢ “Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction”, represents an amount of available existing funds 
from the “Operational Reserve Fund Balances” being applied to pay a portion of the 
Special Benefit Expenses for the fiscal year. 

➢ “Additional City Contribution and/or Service Reductions”, represents a further adjustment 
that addresses the funding gap between the amount budgeted to provide the 
improvements and services (“Special Benefit Expenses”); and the amount that will be 
collected through the assessments. This funding gap may be addressed by an additional 
City contribution, reductions in service and service expenses, or a combination of the two. 
If the City provides an additional City Contribution to support the operation and 
maintenance for a given fiscal year, that contribution may be carried forward as a deficit 
applied to the Beginning Fund Balance in the next fiscal year.  

These adjustments to the Special Benefit Expenses result in the net special benefit amount to be 
assessed “Balance to Levy”;  

Eligible Special Benefit Expenses +/- Funding Adjustments/Contributions =Balance to Levy  

The amount identified as the “Balance to Levy” is divided by the total number of EBUs of parcels that 
benefit to establish the “Assessment Rate” or “Assessment per EBU” for the fiscal year. This Rate is 
then applied back to each parcel’s individual EBU to calculate the parcel’s proportionate special 
benefit and assessment for the improvements.  

Balance to Levy / Total EBU = Assessment per EBU (Assessment Rate) 

Assessment per EBU x Parcel EBU = Parcel Assessment Amount 

 

 

198



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 25 

Annual Inflationary Adjustment (Assessment Range Formula) 

The maximum assessment rates identified in this Report for Zones 01, 03, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, 11, 
12, and 13 are fixed maximum assessment rates that do not include any inflationary adjustment. 
However, for Zone 08 (Zone 08A and Zone 08B) as part of a reorganization of the Zone and 
annexation of properties, the property owners were balloted for new assessments which included 
an inflationary adjustment. Based on the results of the protest ballot proceeding for those new 
assessments, on May 2, 2017 the City Council approved and adopted the new Fiscal Year 
2017//2018 maximum assessment rates for Zone 08A and Zone 08B and the inflationary 
adjustment described below. 

Pursuant to Article XIIID of the California Constitution (Proposition 218), any “new or increased 
assessments” require certain noticing and balloting requirements. However, Government Code 
Section 54954.6(a) provides that a “new or increased assessment” does not include “an 
assessment which does not exceed an assessment formula or range of assessments...previously 
adopted by the agency or approved by the voters in the area where the assessment is imposed.” 
This definition of a new or increased assessment is reaffirmed in the Proposition 218 Omnibus 
Implementation Act, Government Code Section 53753.5.  

For Zone 08A and Zone 08B this inflationary adjustment (assessment range formula) provides for 
the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 maximum assessments (initial maximum assessment rates) 
established for Zone 08A and Zone 08B to be increased by a fixed 3.0% annual inflationary 
adjustment (Assessment Range Formula) which is consistent with the above-referenced 
Government Code sections. 

The adoption of the maximum assessment rates and the Assessment Range Formula does not 
mean that the annual assessments will necessarily increase each fiscal year, nor does it 
absolutely restrict the assessments to the annually adjusted maximum assessment rates. 
Although the maximum assessment rates that may be levied shall be increased by 3.0% each 
fiscal year, the actual amount to be assessed will be based on the Balance to Levy for that fiscal 
year. If the calculated assessment is less than the adjusted maximum assessment, then the 
calculated assessment may be approved by the City Council for collection. If the calculated 
assessment (based on the proposed budget) is greater than the adjusted maximum assessment 
for that fiscal year, then the assessment would be considered an increased assessment and 
would require property owner approval through another protest ballot proceeding before imposing 
such an increase. Otherwise, it would be necessary to reduce the budget or provide a contribution 
from the City to reduce the Balance to Levy (amount to be assessed) to an amount that can be 
supported by an assessment rate less than or equal to the adjusted maximum assessment rate 
authorized for that fiscal year. 

The Assessment Range Formula (3.0% annual adjustment) to the maximum assessment rates 
established for Zone 08A and Zone 08B in Fiscal Year 2017/2018 and shall be applied in each 
subsequent fiscal year unless the City Council formally suspends its application.  

 

199



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 26 

Part III - Estimate of Costs 

The following budgets outline the estimated costs to maintain and service the various landscaping 
and lighting improvements described in this Report for Fiscal Year 2023/2024.  

The budgeted expenses outlined in the following pages for each Zone or Sub-Zone reflect the 
estimated annual expenses required to support and maintain the improvements to be provided in 
those Zones for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. The estimated costs for Zone Nos. 03, 08, and 12 are 
considered to be appropriate full-service level budgets. These full-service expenses, minus the 
general benefit expenses (Expenses not assessed and identified as the City’s financial obligation 
to support the improvements) result in the amount of funding the property owners should 
reasonably be assessed to fully fund their proportional special benefit from those improvements 
(“Special Benefit Expenses”).  

As previously indicated, Zone Nos. 01, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, and 11 were balloted for increased 
assessments in Fiscal Year 2018/2019, but a majority protest existed in each Zone and as a 
result, the special benefit funding available for those Zones is limited to the assessment revenues 
that can be collected based on the previously approved maximum assessment rates. Unlike other 
Zones, the assessment revenues that can be collected annually in Zone Nos. 01, 05, 06, 07, 09, 
10, and 11 is far less than the estimated expenses necessary to provide full-service level 
maintenance and as a result, the City has reduced the maintenance and servicing of the 
improvements accordingly. Therefore, the estimated costs and expenditures shown in the 
following budgets for Zone Nos. 01, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, and 11 have been reduced to a level that 
can be supported by the available special benefit assessment revenues at the currently 
authorized maximum assessment rates and the general benefit costs paid by the City.  

Although Zone No. 13 has not been balloted for a new or increased assessment, similar to Zone 
Nos. 01, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, and 11, the City has reduced the maintenance and servicing of the 
improvements to a level that can be supported by the available special benefit assessment 
revenues at the currently authorized maximum assessment rate and the general benefit costs 
paid by the City. For each of these Zones, as the costs to maintain the improvements continue to 
increase over the years as a result of inflation, the City at the discretion of the City Council, may 
chooses to contribute additional funds to supplement the maintenance costs, implement further 
service reductions and/or ballot property owners within the Zones for increased assessments. 

 

200



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 27 

Zones 01, 03, & 05 Budgets 
 

 
 

LLMD LLMD LLMD

Zone 01 Zone 03 Zone 05

Westfield Park, 

Windsor Court, & 

Cambridge Park

Silva Estates Wildflower Meadows

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 42,996$                     5,424$                       900$                          

Backflow Testing 405                            135                            45                              

Contract Repair Work 8,000                         8,200                         -                                

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 51,401$                   13,759$                   945$                        

PGE 1,200$                       650$                          -$                              

Water 34,000$                     4,000$                       890$                          

Utility Expenses 35,200$                   4,650$                     890$                        

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 86,601$            18,409$            1,835$              

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection -$                              -$                              -$                              

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) 7,925$                     8,000$                     -$                              

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 7,925$              8,000$              -$                       

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                              -$                              8$                             

Annual Administration Expenses 4,110                       839                          73                             

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 4,110$              839$                 81$                    

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 98,636$            27,248$            1,916$              

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded -$                              -$                              -$                              

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (5,332)                      (405)                         (109)                         

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (5,332)$             (405)$                (109)$                

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 93,304$            26,843$            1,807$              

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                                (9,220)                      -                                

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                -                                -                                

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                              (9,220)$                    -$                              

BALANCE TO LEVY 93,304$         17,624$         1,807$           

DISTRICT STATISTICS    

Total Parcels 590                          295                          32                             

Assessed Parcels 566                          288                          29                             

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 691.15              318.00              29.00                

Assessment Per EBU $135.00 $55.42 $62.32

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $135.0000 $55.4200 $62.3200

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance (88,949)$                 51,537$                   (33,438)$                 

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected -                                (9,220)                      8                               

Estimated Ending Fund Balance (88,949)$                 42,317$                   (33,430)$                 

BUDGET ITEMS

201



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 28 

Zones 06, 07, & 08A Budgets 
 

 
 

LLMD LLMD LLMD

Zone 06 Zone 07 Zone 08A

Capistrano Silverado Estates Tracts 704 & 783

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 972$                          3,492$                       4,944$                       

Backflow Testing 45                              45                              45                              

Contract Repair Work 180                            55                              1,300                         

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 1,197$                     3,592$                     6,289$                     

PGE 70$                            -$                              -$                              

Water 570$                          570$                          2,500$                       

Utility Expenses 640$                        570$                        2,500$                     

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 1,837$              4,162$              8,789$              

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection -$                              -$                              -$                              

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) 93$                          60$                          2,700$                     

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 93$                    60$                    2,700$              

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                              24$                          -$                              

Annual Administration Expenses 88                             191                          412                          

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 88$                    215$                 412$                 

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 2,018$              4,437$              11,901$            

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded -$                              -$                              -$                              

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (77)                           (291)                         (291)                         

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (77)$                  (291)$                (291)$                

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 1,941$              4,146$              11,610$            

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                                -                                (1,971)                      

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                -                                -                                

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                              -$                              (1,971)$                    

BALANCE TO LEVY 1,941$           4,146$           9,639$           

DISTRICT STATISTICS    

Total Parcels 127                          56                             141                          

Assessed Parcels 123                          53                             132                          

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 123.00              53.00                132.00              

Assessment Per EBU $15.78 $78.22 $73.02

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $15.7800 $78.2200 $73.0343

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance (18,204)$                 (52,684)$                 10,310$                   

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected -                                24                             (1,971)                      

Estimated Ending Fund Balance (18,204)$                 (52,660)$                 8,339$                     

BUDGET ITEMS

202



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 29 

Zones 08B, 09 & 10 Budgets 
 

 
 

LLMD LLMD LLMD

Zone 08B Zone 09 Zone 10

Tracts 758 & 752

Manzanita at 

Lemoore & La Dante 

Rose

Avalon

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 5,208$                       3,540$                       9,804$                       

Backflow Testing -                                135                            90                              

Contract Repair Work 3,500                         3,500                         2,300                         

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 8,708$                     7,175$                     12,194$                   

PGE 125$                          -$                              250$                          

Water 9,000$                       1,500$                       4,000$                       

Utility Expenses 9,125$                     1,500$                     4,250$                     

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 17,833$            8,675$              16,444$            

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection -$                              -$                              -$                              

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) 2,900$                     4,000$                     2,586$                     

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 2,900$              4,000$              2,586$              

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                              -$                              45$                          

Annual Administration Expenses 781                          317                          837                          

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 781$                 317$                 883$                 

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 21,514$            12,992$            19,913$            

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded -$                              -$                              -$                              

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (434)                         (315)                         (924)                         

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (434)$                (315)$                (924)$                

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 21,081$            12,677$            18,989$            

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction (957)                         (6,431)                      -                                

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                -                                -                                

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS (957)$                       (6,431)$                    -$                              

BALANCE TO LEVY 20,124$         6,247$           18,989$         

DISTRICT STATISTICS    

Total Parcels 141                          139                          159                          

Assessed Parcels 140                          134                          151                          

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 140.00              134.00              151.00              

Assessment Per EBU $143.74 $46.62 $125.76

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $143.7499 $46.6200 $125.7600

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 35,206$                   14,411$                   (44,912)$                 

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected (957)                         (6,431)                      45                             

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 34,248$                   7,980$                     (44,867)$                 

BUDGET ITEMS

203



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 30 

Zones 11, 12, & 13 Budgets and Total LLMD Budget, FY 2023/2024 
 

 
 

LLMD LLMD LLMD TOTAL

Zone 11 Zone 12 Zone 13 BUDGET

Self Help
Summerwind & 

College Park
Covington Place 2023/2024

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 1,074$                    21,336$                     3,024$                     102,714$                  

Backflow Testing 23                           180                            45                            1,193                        

Contract Repair Work 133                         1,500                         122                          28,790                      

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 1,230$                  23,016$                   3,191$                   132,697$                

PGE -$                            275$                          -$                            2,570                        

Water 600$                       21,000$                     1,500$                     80,130$                    

Utility Expenses 600$                     21,275$                   1,500$                   82,700$                  

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 1,830$            44,291$            4,691$             215,397$          

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection -$                           -$                              -$                            -$                             

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) 125$                     4,505$                     150$                      33,044$                  

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 125$               4,505$               150$                33,044$            

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection 6$                          -$                              7$                           90$                          

Annual Administration Expenses 97                          1,100                        281                        9,128                       

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 103$               1,100$               288$                9,218$              
-                                 

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 2,058$            49,896$            5,129$             257,659$          

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded -$                           -$                              -$                            -$                             

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (138)                      (1,371)                      (179)                       (9,865)                      

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (138)$              (1,371)$             (179)$               (9,865)$             

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 1,919$            48,525$            4,950$             247,793$          

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                             (4,500)                      -                              (23,079)                   

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                             -                                -                              -                                

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                           (4,500)$                    -$                            (23,079)$                 

BALANCE TO LEVY 1,919$         44,025$         4,950$         224,715$      

DISTRICT STATISTICS     

Total Parcels 38                          570                           36                           2,324                       

Assessed Parcels 36                          552                           33                           2,237                       

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 36.00              552.00               33.00               2,392.15           

Assessment Per EBU $53.32 $79.76 $150.00

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $53.3200 $145.0000 $150.0000

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance (28,661)$               178,978$                 (19,858)$               3,735$                     

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected 6                            (4,500)                      7                             (22,989)                   

Estimated Ending Fund Balance (28,655)$               174,478$                 (19,851)$               (19,254)$                 

BUDGET ITEMS

204



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 31 

Part IV - District/Zone Diagrams 

The following section contains a series of diagrams showing the boundaries of the Zones within 
Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. Each 
Zone diagram incorporates the parcels determined to receive special benefits from the District 
improvements provided in each of those Zones. In addition to depicting the boundaries of the 
Zones, the diagrams also show the general location of the landscape areas and lighting 
improvements being funded and maintained within each Zone. All parcels that will receive a 
special benefit from the improvements provided within each Zone consist of all lots, parcels, and 
subdivisions of land within the boundaries of those Zones as depicted by these diagrams and the 
corresponding Assessor’s Parcel Numbers listed in “Part V - Assessment Rolls” of this Report. 
The lines and dimensions of those lots, parcels and subdivisions of land shall be those lines and 
dimensions shown on the Kings County Assessor’s parcel maps for the current year and by 
reference the Kings County Assessor’s parcel maps are incorporated herein and made part of 
this Report. These diagrams along with the Assessment Roll incorporated in this Report constitute 
the District Assessment Diagrams for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. 

 

205



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 32 

District Zone Overview 

 

206



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 33 

Zone 01 Diagram 

 
 

207



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 34 

Zone 03 Diagram 

 

208



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 35 

Zone 05 Diagram 

 

209



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 36 

Zone 06 Diagram 

 

210



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 37 

Zone 07 Diagram 

 

211



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 38 

Zone 08 Diagram 

 

212



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 39 

Zone 09 Diagram 

 

213



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 40 

Zone 10 Diagram 

 

214



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 41 

Zone 11 Diagram 

 

215



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 42 

Zone 12 Diagram 

 

216



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 43 

Zone 13 Diagram 

 

217



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 44 

Part V - Assessment Rolls 

The following Assessment Rolls incorporate all parcels identified as being within the District and 
the assessment amount for each parcel for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. Each parcel listed on the 
Assessment Roll for each Zone is currently shown and illustrated on the County Assessor's Roll 
and the County Assessor’s Parcel Number Maps (APN maps). These records are by reference 
made part of this Report and shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or 
parcels. The assessments presented on the Assessment Rolls are subject to change as a result 
of parcel changes made by the County including parcel splits, parcel merges or development 
changes that occur prior to the County Assessor's Office securing the final roll and generating tax 
bills for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. The total Fiscal Year 2023/2024 assessment revenue for each 
Zone may be slightly different than the “Balance to Levy” indicated in the budgets for each Zone 
depicted in Part III - Estimate of Costs due to rounding.  

 

 

218



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 45 

Zone 01 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-360-001 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-002 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-003 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-004 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-005 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-006 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-007 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-008 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-052 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-053 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-054 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-055 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-056 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-057 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-058 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-059 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-060 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-061 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-062 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-063 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-064 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-065 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-066 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-360-067 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-360-068 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-001 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-002 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-003 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-004 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-005 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-006 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-007 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-008 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-009 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-010 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-011 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-012 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-013 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

219



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 46 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-370-014 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-015 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-016 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-017 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-018 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-019 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-020 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-021 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-022 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-023 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-024 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-025 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-026 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-027 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-028 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-029 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-030 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-031 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-032 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-033 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-034 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-035 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-036 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-037 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-038 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-039 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-040 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-041 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-042 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-043 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-044 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-045 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-046 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-048 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-049 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-050 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-051 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-052 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-053 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-054 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-055 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

220



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 47 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-370-056 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-057 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-058 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-059 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-060 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-061 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-062 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-063 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-064 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-065 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-066 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-067 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-068 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-069 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-070 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-071 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-072 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-073 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-074 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-075 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-076 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-077 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-078 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-079 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-080 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-081 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-082 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-083 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-084 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-086 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-087 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-088 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-089 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-090 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-091 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-092 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-093 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-094 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-095 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-096 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-097 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

221



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 48 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-370-098 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-099 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-100 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-101 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-370-102 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-370-103 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-380-001 01  Non-Residential Developed            2.03   $274.04   

021-380-002 01   Non-Residential Developed          26.64    $3,595.72   

021-380-003 01  Non-Residential Developed            2.42   $326.02   

021-380-004 01   Non-Residential Developed            2.66    $359.10   

021-380-005 01  Non-Residential Developed          13.41   $1,809.66   

021-380-006 01   Non-Residential Developed            1.05    $141.74   

021-380-007 01  Non-Residential Developed            1.47   $198.44   

021-380-010 01   Non-Residential Developed            1.51    $203.16   

021-380-011 01  Non-Residential Developed            1.05   $141.74   

021-380-012 01   Non-Residential Developed            0.42    $56.70   

021-380-013 01  Non-Residential Developed            1.05   $141.74   

021-380-014 01   Non-Residential Developed            2.70    $363.82   

021-380-015 01  Non-Residential Developed            2.24   $302.40   

021-380-016 01   Non-Residential Developed            1.82    $245.70   

021-380-017 01  Non-Residential Developed            0.70   $94.50   

021-380-018 01   Residential Multi-Family          80.00    $10,800.00   

021-470-001 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-002 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-003 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-004 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-005 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-006 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-007 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-008 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-009 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-010 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-011 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-012 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-013 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-014 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-015 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-016 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-017 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-018 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-019 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

222



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 49 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-470-020 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-021 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-022 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-023 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-024 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-025 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-026 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-027 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-028 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-029 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-030 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-031 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-032 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-033 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-034 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-035 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-036 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-037 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-038 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-039 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-040 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-041 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-042 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-043 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-470-044 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-470-045 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-001 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-002 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-003 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-004 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-005 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-006 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-007 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-008 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-009 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-010 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-011 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-012 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-013 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-014 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-015 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

223



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 50 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-480-016 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-017 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-018 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-019 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-020 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-021 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-022 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-023 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-024 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-025 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-026 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-027 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-028 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-029 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-030 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-031 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-032 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-033 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-034 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-035 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-036 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-037 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-038 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-039 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-040 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-480-041 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-480-042 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-001 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-002 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-003 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-004 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-005 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-006 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-007 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-008 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-009 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-010 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-011 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-012 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-013 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-014 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

224



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 51 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-490-015 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-016 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-017 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-018 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-019 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-020 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-021 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-022 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-023 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-024 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-025 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-026 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-027 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-028 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-029 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-030 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-031 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-032 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-033 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-034 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-035 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-036 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-037 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-038 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-039 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-040 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-041 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-042 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-043 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-044 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-045 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-046 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-047 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-048 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-049 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-050 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-051 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-052 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-053 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-054 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-055 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

225



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 52 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-490-056 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-057 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-058 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-059 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-060 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-061 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-490-062 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-490-063 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-001 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-510-002 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-003 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-510-004 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-005 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-006 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-007 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-510-008 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-009 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-010 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-011 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-012 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-013 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-014 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-015 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-016 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-017 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-018 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-019 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-020 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-021 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-510-022 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-023 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-024 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-025 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-026 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-027 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-028 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-029 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-030 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-031 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-033 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-034 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

226



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 53 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-510-035 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-036 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-037 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-038 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-039 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-040 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-041 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-042 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-510-043 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-044 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-045 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-046 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-047 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-048 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-049 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-050 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-051 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-052 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-510-053 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-510-054 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-530-001 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-002 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-003 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-004 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-005 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-006 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-007 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-530-008 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-530-009 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-010 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-011 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-012 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-013 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-015 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-016 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-017 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-018 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-019 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-020 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-021 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-022 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

227



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 54 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-530-023 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-024 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-025 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-026 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-027 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-028 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-029 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-030 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-031 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-032 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-033 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-034 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-035 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-530-036 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-530-037 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-001 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-002 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-003 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-004 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-005 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-006 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-007 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-008 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-009 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-010 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-011 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-012 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-013 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-014 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-015 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-016 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-017 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-018 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-019 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-022 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-023 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-024 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-025 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-026 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-027 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-028 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

228



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 55 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-580-029 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-030 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-031 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-033 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-034 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-035 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-036 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-037 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-038 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-039 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-040 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-041 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-042 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-043 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-044 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-045 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-046 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-047 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-048 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-580-049 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-580-050 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-051 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-052 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-053 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-054 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-055 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-056 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-057 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-058 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-059 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-060 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-061 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-062 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-580-063 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-580-064 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-001 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-600-002 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-003 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-004 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-005 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-006 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

229



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 56 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-600-007 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-008 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-009 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-010 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-600-011 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-600-012 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-600-013 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-014 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-015 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-016 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-017 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-018 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-019 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-020 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-021 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-600-022 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-600-023 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-024 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-025 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-026 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-027 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-028 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-029 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-030 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-031 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-032 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-033 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-034 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-035 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-036 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-037 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-038 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-039 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-040 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-041 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-042 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-043 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-044 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-045 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-046 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-047 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

230



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 57 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-600-048 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-049 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-050 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-051 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-052 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-053 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-054 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-055 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-056 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-057 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-058 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-059 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-060 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-061 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-062 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-600-063 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-600-064 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-065 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-066 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-067 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-068 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-069 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-070 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-071 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-072 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-073 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-074 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-075 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-076 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-077 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-078 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-079 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-080 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-081 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-082 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-083 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-084 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-085 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-086 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-600-087 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-088 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

231



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 58 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-600-089 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-600-090 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-001 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-002 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-003 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-004 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-005 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-006 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-007 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-008 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-009 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-010 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-011 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-012 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-013 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-014 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-015 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-610-016 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-017 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-018 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-019 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-020 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-021 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-022 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-023 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-024 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-025 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-026 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-027 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-028 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-029 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-030 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-031 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-032 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-033 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-034 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-035 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-036 01   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-610-037 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-038 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-039 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

232



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 59 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

021-610-040 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-041 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-042 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-043 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-044 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-045 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-046 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-047 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-048 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-049 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-050 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-051 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-052 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-053 01  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $135.00   

021-610-054 01   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $135.00   

021-610-055 01  Exempt               -     $0.00   

Totals                  691.15    $93,304.48   

 
 

Zone 03 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-330-001 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-002 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-003 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-004 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-005 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-006 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-007 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-008 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-009 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-010 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-011 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-012 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-013 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-014 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-015 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

233



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 60 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-330-016 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-017 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-018 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-019 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-020 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-021 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-022 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-023 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-024 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-025 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-026 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-027 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-028 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-029 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-030 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-031 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-032 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-033 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-034 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-035 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-036 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-037 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-038 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-039 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-040 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-041 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-042 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-043 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-044 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-045 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-046 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-047 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-048 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-049 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-050 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-051 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-052 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-053 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

234



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 61 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-330-054 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-055 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-056 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-057 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-058 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-059 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-060 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-061 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-062 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-063 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-064 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-065 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-066 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-067 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-068 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-069 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-070 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-071 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-072 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-073 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-074 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-075 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-076 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-077 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-078 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-079 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-080 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-081 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-082 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-083 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-084 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-085 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-086 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-087 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-088 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-089 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-090 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-091 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

235



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 62 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-330-092 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-093 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-330-094 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-330-095 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-001 03   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-340-002 03  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-340-003 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-004 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-005 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-006 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-007 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-008 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-009 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-010 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-011 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-012 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-013 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-014 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-015 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-016 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-017 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-018 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-019 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-020 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-021 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-022 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-340-023 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-340-024 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-003 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-004 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-005 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-006 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-007 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-008 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-009 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-010 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-011 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-012 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

236



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 63 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-350-013 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-014 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-015 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-016 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-017 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-018 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-019 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-020 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-021 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-022 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-023 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-024 03  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-350-028 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-029 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-030 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-031 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-032 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-033 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-034 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-035 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-036 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-037 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-038 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-039 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-040 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-041 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-042 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-043 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-045 03   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-350-046 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-047 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-048 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-049 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-050 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-051 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-052 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-053 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-054 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

237



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 64 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-350-055 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-056 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-057 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-058 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-059 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-060 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-061 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-062 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-063 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-064 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-065 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-066 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-067 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-068 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-069 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-070 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-071 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-350-072 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-350-073 03   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-350-077 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-001 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-002 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-003 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-004 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-005 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-006 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-007 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-008 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-009 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-010 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-011 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-012 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-013 03   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-530-014 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-015 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-016 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-017 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-018 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

238



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 65 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-530-019 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-020 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-021 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-022 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-023 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-024 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-530-025 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-530-026 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-570-001 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-570-002 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-570-003 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-570-004 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-570-005 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-570-006 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-570-007 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-570-008 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-570-009 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-570-010 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-001 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-002 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-003 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-004 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-005 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-006 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-007 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-008 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-009 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-010 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-011 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-012 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-013 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-014 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-015 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-016 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-017 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-018 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-019 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-020 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

239



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 66 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-580-021 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-022 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-023 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-024 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-025 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-026 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-027 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-028 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-029 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-030 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-031 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-032 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-033 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-034 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-035 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-036 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-037 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-038 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-039 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-040 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-041 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-042 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-043 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-044 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-045 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-046 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-047 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-048 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-049 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-050 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-580-051 03   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $55.42   

023-580-052 03  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $55.42   

023-590-003 03   Residential Multi-Family            4.00    $221.68   

023-590-004 03  Residential Multi-Family            4.00   $221.68   

023-590-005 03   Residential Multi-Family            4.00    $221.68   

023-590-006 03  Residential Multi-Family            4.00   $221.68   

023-590-007 03   Residential Multi-Family            4.00    $221.68   

023-590-008 03  Residential Multi-Family            4.00   $221.68   

240



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 67 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-590-009 03   Residential Multi-Family            4.00    $221.68   

023-590-010 03  Residential Multi-Family            4.00   $221.68   

023-590-011 03   Residential Multi-Family            4.00    $221.68   

023-590-012 03  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $55.42   

023-590-013 03   Residential Vacant Lot            1.00    $55.42   

023-590-014 03  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $55.42   

023-590-015 03   Residential Vacant Lot            1.00    $55.42   

023-590-016 03  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $55.42   

023-590-017 03   Residential Vacant Lot            1.00    $55.42   

023-590-018 03  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $55.42   

023-590-019 03   Residential Vacant Lot            1.00    $55.42   

023-590-020 03  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $55.42   

023-590-021 03   Residential Multi-Family            4.00    $221.68   

Totals                  318.00    $17,623.56   

 
 

Zone 05 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-360-018 05  Exempt           -     $0.00   

021-360-019 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-020 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-021 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-022 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-023 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-024 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-027 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-028 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-029 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-030 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-031 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-032 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-033 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-034 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-035 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-036 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-037 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

241



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 68 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-360-038 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-039 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-040 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-041 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-042 05  Exempt           -     $0.00   

021-360-043 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-044 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-045 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-046 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-047 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-048 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-049 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $62.32   

021-360-050 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $62.32   

021-360-051 05   Exempt           -      $0.00   

Totals               29.00    $1,807.28   

 
 

Zone 06 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-050-001 06  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-050-002 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-003 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-004 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-005 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-006 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-007 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-008 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-009 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-010 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-011 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-012 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-013 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-014 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-015 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-016 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-017 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-018 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

242



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 69 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-050-019 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-020 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-021 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-022 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-023 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-024 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-025 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-026 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-027 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-028 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-050-029 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-050-030 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-001 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-002 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-003 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-004 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-005 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-006 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-007 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-008 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-009 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-010 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-011 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-012 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-013 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-014 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-015 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-016 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-017 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-018 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-019 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-020 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-021 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-022 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-023 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-024 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-025 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-026 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-027 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-028 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

243



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 70 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-060-029 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-030 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-031 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-032 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-033 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-034 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-035 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-036 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-037 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-038 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-039 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-040 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-041 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-042 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-043 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-044 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-060-045 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-060-046 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-002 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-003 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-004 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-005 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-006 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-007 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-008 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-009 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-010 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-011 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-012 06  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-070-013 06   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-070-014 06  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-070-015 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-016 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-017 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-018 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-019 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-020 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-021 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-022 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-023 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

244



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 71 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-070-024 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-025 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-026 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-027 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-028 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-029 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-030 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-031 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-032 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-033 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-034 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-035 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-036 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-037 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-038 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-039 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-040 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-041 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-042 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-043 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-044 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-045 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-046 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-047 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-048 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-049 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-050 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

023-070-051 06   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $15.78   

023-070-052 06  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $15.78   

Totals       
           

123.00  
  $1,940.94   

 
 

Zone 07 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-370-001 07  Exempt           -     $0.00   

023-370-002 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-003 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

245



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 72 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-370-004 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-005 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-006 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-007 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-008 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-009 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-010 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-011 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-012 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-013 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-014 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-015 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-016 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-017 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-018 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-019 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-020 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-021 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-022 07   Exempt           -      $0.00   

023-370-023 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-024 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-025 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-026 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-027 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-028 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-029 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-030 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-031 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-032 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-033 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-034 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-035 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-036 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-037 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-038 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-039 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-040 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-041 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-042 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-043 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-044 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

246



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 73 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-370-045 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-046 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-047 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-048 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-049 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-050 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-051 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-052 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-053 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-054 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $78.22   

023-370-055 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $78.22   

023-370-056 07   Exempt           -      $0.00   

Totals               53.00    $4,145.66   

 
 

Zone 08A Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-340-001 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-002 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-003 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-004 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-005 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-006 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-007 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-008 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-009 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-010 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-011 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-012 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-013 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-014 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-015 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-016 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-017 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-018 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

247



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 74 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-340-019 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-020 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-021 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-022 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-023 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-024 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-025 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-026 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-027 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-028 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-029 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-030 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-031 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-032 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-033 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-034 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-035 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-036 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-037 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-038 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-039 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-040 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-041 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-042 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-043 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-044 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-045 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-046 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-047 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-048 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-340-049 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-340-050 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-001 08A  Exempt               -     $0.00   

024-370-002 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-003 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-004 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-005 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-006 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

248



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 75 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-370-007 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-008 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-009 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-010 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-011 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-012 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-013 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-014 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-015 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-016 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-017 08A  Exempt               -     $0.00   

024-370-018 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-019 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-020 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-021 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-022 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-023 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-024 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-025 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-026 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-027 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-028 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-029 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-030 08A   Exempt               -      $0.00   

024-370-031 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-032 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-033 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-034 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-035 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-036 08A   Exempt               -      $0.00   

024-370-037 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-038 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-039 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-370-040 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-370-041 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-001 08A   Exempt               -      $0.00   

024-380-002 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-003 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

249



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 76 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-380-004 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-005 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-006 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-007 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-008 08A  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-009 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-010 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-011 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-012 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-013 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-014 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-015 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-016 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-017 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-018 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-019 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-020 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-021 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-022 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-023 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-024 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-025 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-026 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-027 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-028 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-029 08A   Exempt               -      $0.00   

024-380-030 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-031 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-032 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-033 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-034 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-035 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-036 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-037 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-038 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-039 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-040 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-041 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

250



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 77 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-380-042 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-043 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-044 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-045 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-046 08A  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $73.02   

024-380-047 08A   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $73.02   

024-380-048 08A  Exempt               -     $0.00   

Totals                  132.00    $9,638.64   

 
 

Zone 08B Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-350-001 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-002 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-003 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-004 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-005 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-006 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-007 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-008 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-009 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-010 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-011 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-012 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-013 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-014 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-015 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-016 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-017 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-018 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-019 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-020 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-021 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-022 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

251



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 78 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-350-023 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-024 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-025 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-026 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-027 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-029 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-030 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-031 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-032 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-350-033 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-350-034 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-002 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-003 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-004 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-005 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-006 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-007 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-008 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-009 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-010 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-011 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-012 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-013 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-014 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-017 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-018 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-019 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-020 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-021 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-024 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-025 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-026 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-027 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-028 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-029 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-030 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-031 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-032 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

252



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 79 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-360-033 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-360-034 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-360-036 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-001 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-002 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-003 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-004 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-005 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-006 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-007 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-008 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-009 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-010 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-011 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-012 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-013 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-014 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-015 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-016 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-017 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-018 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-019 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-020 08B  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-021 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-022 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-023 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-024 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-025 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-026 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-027 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-028 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-029 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-030 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-410-031 08B   Residential Vacant Lot            1.00    $143.74   

024-410-032 08B  Residential Vacant Lot            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-001 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-002 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-003 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

253



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 80 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-420-004 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-005 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-006 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-007 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-008 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-009 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-010 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-011 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-012 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-013 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-014 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-015 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-016 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-017 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-018 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-019 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-020 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-021 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-022 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-023 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-024 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-025 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-026 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-027 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-028 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-029 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-030 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-031 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-032 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-033 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-034 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-035 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-036 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-037 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-038 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-039 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-040 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-041 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

254



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 81 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

024-420-042 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-043 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-044 08B  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $143.74   

024-420-045 08B   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $143.74   

024-420-046 08B  Exempt               -     $0.00   

Totals                  140.00    $20,123.60   

 
 

Zone 09 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-080-053 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-054 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-055 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-056 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-057 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-058 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-059 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-060 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-061 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-062 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-063 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-064 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-065 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-066 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-067 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-068 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-069 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-070 09   Exempt           -      $0.00   

021-080-071 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-072 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-073 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-074 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-075 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-076 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-077 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-078 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

255



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 82 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-080-079 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-080 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-081 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-082 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-083 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-084 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-085 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-086 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-087 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-088 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-089 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-090 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-080-091 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-080-092 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-001 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-002 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-003 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-004 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-005 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-006 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-007 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-008 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-009 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-010 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-011 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-012 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-013 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-014 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-015 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-016 09   Exempt           -      $0.00   

021-170-034 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-035 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-036 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-037 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-038 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-039 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-040 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-041 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-042 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-043 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

256



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 83 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-170-044 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-045 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-046 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-047 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-048 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-049 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-170-050 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-170-051 09   Exempt           -      $0.00   

021-680-001 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-002 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-003 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-004 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-006 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-007 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-008 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-009 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-010 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-011 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-012 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-013 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-014 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-015 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-016 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-017 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-018 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-019 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-020 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-021 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-022 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-023 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-024 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-025 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-026 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-027 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-028 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-029 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-030 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-031 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-032 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-033 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

257



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 84 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-680-034 09  Exempt           -     $0.00   

021-680-035 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-036 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-037 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-038 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-039 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-040 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-041 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-042 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-043 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-044 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-045 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-046 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-047 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-048 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-049 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-050 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-051 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-052 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-053 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-054 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-055 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-056 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-057 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-058 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-059 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-060 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-061 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-062 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-063 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-064 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $46.62   

021-680-065 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $46.62   

021-680-066 09  Exempt           -     $0.00   

Totals             134.00    $6,247.08   

 
 

258



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 85 

Zone 10 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-440-001 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-002 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-003 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-004 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-005 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-006 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-007 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-008 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-009 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-010 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-011 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-012 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-013 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-014 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-015 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-018 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-019 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-020 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-021 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-022 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-023 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-024 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-025 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-026 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-027 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-028 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-029 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-030 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-031 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-032 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-033 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-034 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-035 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-036 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-037 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-038 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-039 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-040 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-041 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

259



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 86 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-440-042 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-043 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-044 10   Exempt           -      $0.00   

023-440-045 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-046 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-047 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-048 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-049 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-050 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-051 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-052 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-053 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-054 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-440-055 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-056 10   Exempt           -      $0.00   

023-440-057 10  Exempt           -     $0.00   

023-440-058 10   Exempt           -      $0.00   

023-440-059 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-440-060 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-001 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-002 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-003 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-004 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-005 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-006 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-007 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-008 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-009 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-010 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-011 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-012 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-013 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-014 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-015 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-016 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-017 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-018 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-019 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-020 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-021 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-022 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

260



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 87 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-550-023 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-024 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-025 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-026 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-027 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-028 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-029 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-030 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-031 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-032 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-033 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-034 10   Exempt           -      $0.00   

023-550-035 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-036 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-037 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-038 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-039 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-040 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-041 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-042 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-043 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-044 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-045 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-046 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-047 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-048 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-049 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-050 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-051 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-052 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-053 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-054 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-055 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-056 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-057 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-058 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-059 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-060 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-550-061 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-550-062 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-001 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

261



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 88 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-560-002 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-003 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-004 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-005 10  Exempt           -     $0.00   

023-560-006 10   Exempt           -      $0.00   

023-560-007 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-008 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-009 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-010 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-011 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-012 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-013 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-014 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-015 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-016 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-017 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-018 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-019 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-020 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-021 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-022 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-024 10  Exempt           -     $0.00   

023-560-025 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-026 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-027 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-028 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-029 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-030 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-031 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-032 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-033 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-034 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-035 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-036 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-037 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-038 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

023-560-039 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $125.76   

023-560-040 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $125.76   

Totals             151.00    $18,989.76   

 
 

262



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 89 

 

Zone 11 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-160-001 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-002 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-003 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-004 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-005 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-006 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-007 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-008 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-009 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-010 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-011 11  Exempt           -     $0.00   

023-160-012 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-013 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-014 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-015 11  Exempt           -     $0.00   

023-160-016 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-017 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-018 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-019 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-020 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-021 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-022 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-023 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-024 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-025 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-026 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-027 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-028 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-029 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-030 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-031 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-032 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-033 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-034 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-035 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

023-160-036 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

023-160-037 11  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $53.32   

263



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 90 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-160-038 11   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $53.32   

Totals               36.00    $1,919.52   

 
 

Zone 12 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-690-001 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-690-002 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-003 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-004 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-005 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-006 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-007 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-008 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-009 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-010 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-011 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-012 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-013 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-014 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-015 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-016 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-017 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-018 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-019 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-020 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-021 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-022 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-023 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-024 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-025 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-026 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-027 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-690-028 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-690-029 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-030 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-031 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

264



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 91 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-690-032 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-033 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-034 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-035 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-036 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-037 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-038 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-039 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-040 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-041 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-042 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-043 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-044 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-045 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-046 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-047 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-048 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-049 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-050 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-051 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-690-052 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-690-053 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-001 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-002 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-003 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-004 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-005 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-006 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-007 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-008 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-009 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-010 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-011 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-012 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-013 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-014 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-015 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-016 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-017 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-018 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

265



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 92 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-700-019 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-020 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-021 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-022 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-023 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-024 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-025 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-026 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-027 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-028 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-029 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-030 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-031 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-032 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-033 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-034 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-035 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-036 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-037 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-038 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-039 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-040 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-041 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-042 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-043 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-044 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-046 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-047 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-048 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-049 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-700-050 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-700-051 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-001 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-002 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-003 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-004 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-005 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-006 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-007 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-008 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

266



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 93 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-710-009 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-010 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-011 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-012 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-013 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-014 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-015 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-016 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-017 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-018 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-019 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-020 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-021 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-022 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-023 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-024 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-025 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-026 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-027 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-028 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-029 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-030 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-031 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-032 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-033 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-034 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-035 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-036 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-037 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-038 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-039 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-040 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-041 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-710-042 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-710-043 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-720-001 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-002 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-003 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-004 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-005 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

267



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 94 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-720-006 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-007 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-008 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-009 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-010 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-011 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-012 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-013 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-014 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-015 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-016 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-017 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-018 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-019 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-720-020 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-720-021 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-730-001 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-002 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-003 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-004 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-005 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-006 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-007 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-008 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-009 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-010 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-011 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-012 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-013 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-014 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-015 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-016 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-017 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-018 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-019 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-020 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-021 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-022 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-023 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-024 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

268



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 95 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-730-025 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-026 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-027 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-028 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-029 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-030 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-031 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-032 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-033 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-034 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-035 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-036 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-037 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-038 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-039 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-040 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-041 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-042 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-043 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-044 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-045 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-046 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-047 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-730-048 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-730-049 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-730-050 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-730-051 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-740-001 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-002 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-003 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-004 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-005 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-006 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-007 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-008 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-009 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-010 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-011 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-012 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-013 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

269



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 96 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-740-014 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-015 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-016 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-017 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-018 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-019 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-020 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-021 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-022 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-023 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-024 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-025 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-026 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-027 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-028 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-029 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-030 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-031 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-032 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-033 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-034 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-035 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-036 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-037 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-038 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-039 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-040 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-041 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-042 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-043 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-044 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-045 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-046 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-047 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-048 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-049 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-050 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-740-051 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-740-052 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-001 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

270



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 97 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-750-002 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-003 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-004 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-005 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-006 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-007 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-008 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-009 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-010 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-011 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-012 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-013 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-014 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-015 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-016 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-017 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-018 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-019 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-020 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-021 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-022 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

021-750-023 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-750-024 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-025 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-026 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-027 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-028 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-029 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-030 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-031 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-032 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-033 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-034 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-035 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-036 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-037 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-038 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-039 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-040 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-041 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

271



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 98 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-750-042 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-043 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-044 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-045 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-046 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-047 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-048 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-049 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-050 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-051 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-052 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-053 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-054 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-055 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-056 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-057 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-058 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-059 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-060 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-061 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-062 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-063 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-064 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-065 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-066 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-067 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-068 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-069 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-070 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-071 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-072 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-073 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-074 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-075 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-076 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-077 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-078 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-079 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-080 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-081 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

272



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 99 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-750-082 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-750-083 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-750-084 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-001 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-002 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-003 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-004 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-005 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-006 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-007 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-008 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-009 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-010 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-011 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-012 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-013 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-014 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-015 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-016 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-017 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-018 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-019 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-020 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-021 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-022 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-023 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-024 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-025 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-026 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-027 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-028 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-029 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-030 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-031 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-032 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-033 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-034 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-035 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-036 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-037 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

273



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 100 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-760-038 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-039 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-040 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-041 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-042 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-043 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-044 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-045 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-046 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-047 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-048 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-049 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-760-050 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-760-051 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-001 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-002 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-003 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-004 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-005 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-006 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-007 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-008 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-009 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-010 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-011 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-012 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-013 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-014 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-015 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-016 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-017 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-018 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-019 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-020 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-021 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-022 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-023 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-024 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-025 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-026 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

274



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 101 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-770-027 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-028 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-029 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-030 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-031 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-032 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-033 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-034 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-035 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-036 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-037 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-038 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-039 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-040 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-041 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-042 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-043 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-044 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-045 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-046 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-047 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-048 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-049 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-050 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-051 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-052 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-053 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-054 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-055 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-056 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-057 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-058 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

021-770-059 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

021-770-060 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

021-770-061 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-540-001 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-002 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-003 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-004 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-005 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

275



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 102 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-540-006 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-007 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-008 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-009 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-010 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-011 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-012 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-013 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-540-014 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-540-015 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-016 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-017 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-018 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-019 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-020 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-021 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-022 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-023 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-024 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-025 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-026 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-027 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-028 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-540-029 12  Exempt               -     $0.00   

023-540-030 12   Exempt               -      $0.00   

023-540-031 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-032 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-033 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-034 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-035 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-036 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-037 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-038 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-039 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-040 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-041 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-042 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-043 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-044 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-045 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

276



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 103 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-540-046 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-047 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-048 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-049 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-050 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-051 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-052 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-053 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-054 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-055 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-056 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-057 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-058 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-059 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-060 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-061 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-062 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-063 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-064 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-065 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-066 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-067 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-068 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-069 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-070 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-071 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-072 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-073 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-074 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-075 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-076 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-077 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-078 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-079 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-080 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-081 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-082 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-083 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-084 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-085 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

277



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 104 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-540-086 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-087 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-088 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-089 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-090 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-091 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-092 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-093 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-094 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-095 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-096 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-097 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-098 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-099 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-100 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-101 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-102 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

023-540-103 12  Residential Single-Family            1.00   $79.76   

023-540-104 12   Residential Single-Family            1.00    $79.76   

Totals                  552.00    $44,027.52   

 
 

Zone 13 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-630-003 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-004 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-005 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-006 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-007 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-008 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-009 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-010 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-011 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-012 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-013 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-014 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-015 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

278



Lemoore Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

  

 Page 105 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-630-016 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-017 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-018 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-019 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-020 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-021 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-022 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-023 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-024 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-025 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-026 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-027 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-028 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-029 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-030 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-031 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-032 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-033 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-034 13   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $150.00   

021-630-035 13  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $150.00   

021-630-036 13   Exempt           -      $0.00   

021-630-037 13  Exempt           -     $0.00   

021-630-038 13   Exempt           -      $0.00   

Totals               33.00    $4,950.00   

 

279



 

  

 
City of Lemoore 

 

Public Facilities Maintenance 
District No. 1 

 

Engineer’s Annual Report 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024  

 
Intent Meeting: June 27, 2023 

Public Hearing: August 1 2023 

 

 

CITY OF LEMOORE 

711 W CINNAMON DRIVE 

LEMOORE, CA 93245 

 

JUNE 2023 

PREPARED BY 

WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27368 Via Industria 

Suite 200 

Temecula, CA 92590 

T. 951.587.3500|800.755.6864  

F. 951.587.3510|888.326.6864 

 

Property Tax Information Line 

T.866.807.6864 

 

www.willdan.com 

 

280



281



 

 

Table of Contents 

 

................................................................................................................................................ 1 

Introduction ............................................................................................... 1 

District Changes ........................................................................................................ 2 

Report Content and Annual Proceedings ................................................................ 2 

Part I -- Plans and Specifications............................................................. 5 

Zones of Benefit ........................................................................................................ 6 

Description of Improvements ................................................................................... 7 

Part II -- Method of Apportionment ........................................................ 15 

Legislative Requirements for Assessments ......................................................... 15 

Benefit Analysis ....................................................................................................... 16 

Assessment Methodology ...................................................................................... 19 

Part III -- Estimate of Costs .................................................................... 27 

Zones 01, 02, & 03 Budgets .................................................................................... 28 

Zones 04, 05, & 06 Budgets .................................................................................... 29 

Zones 07, 08, & 09 Budgets .................................................................................... 30 

Zone 10 Budget and Total PFMD Budget, FY 2023/2024 ...................................... 31 

Part IV -- District Diagrams..................................................................... 32 

Part V -- Assessment Rolls .................................................................... 44 

 

 

282



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 1 

Introduction 

The City of Lemoore (“City”), pursuant to Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Lemoore Municipal Code, 
(“Municipal Code”) as enacted by Ordinance No. 2006-01 (the “Ordinance”), and to the extent not 
inconsistent with the Ordinance, the provisions and procedures of the Landscaping and Lighting 
Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (“1972 Act”) and 
in compliance with the substantive and procedural requirements of the California State 
Constitution, Article XIIID (“California Constitution”) established the assessment district 
designated as the: 

Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Code, the Ordinance, and 1972 Act (hereafter referred 
to collectively as “City Maintenance District Codes”), and in compliance with the substantive and 
procedural requirements of the California Constitution, the City has annually levied special benefit 
assessments within the Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 (“District”) in order to fund in 
whole or in part the maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of certain public 
improvements including landscaping, street lights, street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities 
that provide special benefits to properties within the District. 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide 
guidelines for orderly development of property within the City. The City Council further adopted 
ordinances and regulations governing the development of land providing for the installation and 
construction of certain lighting, landscaping, street paving, parks, and appurtenant facilities to 
enhance the quality of life and to benefit the value of property. 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping, streets, and appurtenant facilities is 
a condition of development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement 
for issuance of a permit for construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development. 
These improvements generally include street lights and related equipment and fixtures; street 
paving that may include curbs, gutters and sidewalks; various landscape materials such as trees, 
turf, shrubs, vines, and ground cover; irrigation and drainage systems; structural amenities such 
as monuments, block walls, retaining walls, or other fencing; hardscapes including mulch, trail 
and path surfaces, stamped concrete and pavers; recreational amenities such as benches, picnic 
facilities, play structures; signage, and related appurtenances. 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the 
subdivider or other development/applicant, triggered by the approval of a tentative subdivision 
map or other development application. After installation, it is City policy that the servicing, 
operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the street lighting, landscaping, local street 
paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial responsibility of the properties 
that specially benefit from the facilities. Prior to the establishment of the District, the City 
recognized that the required ongoing maintenance, periodic repair, and replacement of the 
facilities installed in connection with new developments could not feasibly be funded by the City 
and that such maintenance, operation, repair, and replacement should be funded through special 
benefit assessments on properties within the boundaries of the District.  

In accordance with the City Maintenance District Code, the District has been established utilizing 
benefit zones (“Zones”) to address variations in the nature, location, and extent of the 
improvements that provide special benefits to parcels in the District. Within the boundaries of the 
District, parcels are assigned to a Zone, each of which is associated with specific improvements 
that provide special benefits to properties within that Zone. 

283



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 2 

In Fiscal Year 2022/2023, the District was comprised of the following Zones and developments: 

Zone 01 -- The Landing, Phases 1, 2, and 3 

Zone 02 -- Liberty, Phases 1 and 2 

Zone 03 -- Silva Estates, Phase 10 

Zone 04 -- Parkview Estates / Heritage Park – Laredo 

Zone 05 -- East Village Park/Aniston Place 

Zone 06 -- Heritage Acres 

Zone 07 – Capistrano 

Zone 08 – Woodside 

Zone 09 -- Lennar Homes 

Zone 10 – Energy Homes: 

District Changes 

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024 it is anticipated that Tract 848 will be annexed to the District as Zone 
11 (Annexation No. 2023-1) and Tract 820 will be annexed to the District as Zone 12 (Annexation 
No. 2023-2). However, at the time this Report was prepared, the annexation proceedings for 
Annexation No. 2023-1 and Annexation No. 2023-2 were not completed and thus not incorporated 
into this Report, but upon successful completion of those annexations, the engineer’s reports and 
assessments for those two annexation proceedings are by reference incorporated into this 
Report. Because both annexations incorporate new developments, the planned improvements for 
which they may be assessed will not be installed and accepted for maintenance within the fiscal 
year, therefore, neither Zone will be assessed for special benefits for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. 

No other notable or substantial changes to the District and/or improvements have occurred since 
the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Annual Engineer’s Report. 

Report Content and Annual Proceedings 
This Engineer’s Annual Report (the “Report”) has been prepared pursuant to the City 
Maintenance District Code and Chapter 1, Article 4 and Chapter 3 of the 1972 Act, and presented 
to the City Council for their consideration and approval of the proposed improvements and 
services to be provided within the District and the levy and collection of annual assessments 
related thereto for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. This Report outlines the District zone structure, 
improvements, and proposed assessments to be levied in connection with the special benefits 
the properties will receive from the maintenance and servicing of the District improvements for 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024. The annual assessments to be levied on properties within the District 
provide a source of funding for the continued operation, maintenance and servicing of the 
landscaping, parks, streetlights, street paving, and appurtenant facilities (improvements) to be 
provided by the District for the properties within each specified Zone for which properties in those 
respective Zones receive special benefits. 

Each fiscal year, the City establishes the District’s assessments based on an estimate of the costs 
to maintain, operate and service the authorized District improvements and based upon available 
revenues including assessment revenues, fund balances, general benefit contributions and any 
additional City contributions from available sources. The costs of the improvements and the 

284



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 3 

proposed annual assessments budgeted and assessed against properties within the District may 
include, but are not limited to the estimated expenditures for regular annual maintenance and 
repairs; incidental expenditures related to the operation and administration of the District; deficits 
or surpluses from prior years; revenues from other sources; and the collection of funds for 
operational reserves and/or periodic repairs, replacements and rehabilitation projects as 
authorized by the City Maintenance District Code. The net annual cost to provide the 
improvements for each Zone are allocated to the benefiting properties within that Zone using a 
weighted method of apportionment (refer to Assessment Methodology in Section II, Method of 
Apportionment) that calculates the proportional special benefits and assessment for each parcel 
as compared to other properties that benefit from the District improvements and services. Thus, 
each parcel is assessed proportionately for only those improvements, services, and expenses for 
which the parcel will receive special benefit. 

The word “parcel,” for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property assigned its 
own Assessor’s Parcel Number (“APN”) by the Kings County Assessor’s Office. The Kings County 
Auditor/Controller uses Assessor’s Parcel Numbers and specific Fund Numbers to identify 
properties to be assessed on the tax roll for the District assessments. 

At a noticed annual Public Hearing, the City Council will accept all public comments and written 
protests regarding the District and the annual levy of assessments. Based on those public 
comments and written protests, the City Council may order amendments to the Report or confirm 
the Report as submitted. Following final approval of the Report and confirmation of the 
assessments, the Council will by Resolution, order the improvements to be made and confirm the 
levy and collection of assessments pursuant to the City Maintenance District Code. The 
assessments as approved will be submitted to the Kings County Auditor/Controller to be included 
on the property tax roll for each parcel. 

 

This Report consists of five (5) parts: 

Part I 

Plans and Specifications: This section contains a general description of the District, zones of 
benefit (“Zones”), and the improvements and services that provide special benefits to the parcels 
within the District. The improvements and appurtenant facilities that provide special benefits to 
the properties within the District and for which parcels are assessed may include, but not limited 
to local landscaping, neighborhood parks, street lights, street paving, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, 
and related amenities as well as associated operational and incidental expenses, and the 
collection of fund balances authorized by the City Maintenance District Code. The plans and 
specifications contained in this Report generally describe the nature and extent of the 
improvements. In conjunction with these general descriptions, a visual depiction of the 
improvements is provided in the District Diagrams contained in Part IV of this Report. More 
detailed information regarding the specific plans and specifications associated with the District 
improvements in each Zone may be on file in the Public Works Department and by reference are 
made part of this Report. 

285



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 4 

Part II 

Method of Apportionment: This section outlines the special and general benefits associated 
with the improvements to be provided within the District (Benefit Analysis), which includes a 
discussion of the proportional costs of the special benefits and a separation of costs considered 
to be of general benefit (and therefore not assessed). This section also outlines the method of 
calculating each property’s proportional special benefit and the basis upon which the estimated 
special benefit costs have been apportioned to each parcel of land within the District. This method 
of apportionment is consistent with the previously approved and adopted method of 
apportionment for the District. 

Part III 

Estimate of Costs: Identifies the estimated annual funding costs (Budget) required for the 
maintenance and operation of the improvements in each Zone including, but not limited to, annual 
maintenance and service expenses, utility costs, related incidental expenses, and fund balances 
authorized by the City Maintenance District Code and deemed appropriate to support the ongoing 
operation and maintenance of the improvements. Those improvements and/or costs determined 
to be of general benefit shall be funded by a City contribution.  

Part IV 

District/Zone Diagrams: This section of the Report contains a series of diagrams showing the 
boundaries of the Zones within the District for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 which incorporate the 
parcels determined to receive special benefits from the District improvements. These diagrams 
also provide a visual depiction of the location of the improvements being maintained. The lines 
and dimensions of each lot, parcel, and subdivision of land contained in the Zone diagrams are 
inclusive of the parcels referenced in “Part V - Assessment Roll” of this Report and the 
corresponding County Assessor’s Parcel Maps as they existed at the time this Report was 
prepared and shall incorporate all subsequent subdivisions, lot-line adjustments, or parcel 
changes therein. Reference is hereby made to the Kings County Assessor’s maps for a detailed 
description of the lines and dimensions of each lot and parcel of land within the District and Zones 
therein. 

Part V 

Assessment Rolls: The assessment amounts to be levied and collected in Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 for each parcel is based on the parcel’s calculated proportional special benefits as 
outlined in the Method of Apportionment (Part II of this Report) and the annual assessment rates 
established by the estimated budgets (Part III of this Report).  

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, portion, or zone of this Report is, for any 
reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of the Report and each 
section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, portion, zone, or subzone thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, 
portions, zones, or subzones might subsequently be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

286



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 5 

Part I -- Plans and Specifications 

The purpose of this District is to provide in part through annual assessments, funding for the 
ongoing operation, maintenance, and servicing of improvements that include but are not limited 
to local landscaping, neighborhood parks, street lighting, street paving, and related appurtenant 
facilities and services in specified areas of the City. The territory within the District consists of 
those lots or parcels of land within the City of Lemoore for which the City through the District 
maintains and services local improvements installed in connection with or would otherwise be 
necessary for the development of those properties and for the benefit of those lots or parcels. 
Improvements currently provided within the District may include but are not limited to:  

➢ Landscaping and related facilities and amenities located within designated street medians, 
parkway and streetscape side-panels, and entryways within the public right of ways or 
easements adjacent to public right of ways; and within public places including greenbelt 
areas, open spaces, and neighborhood parks within each Zone. These improvements may 
include, but are not limited to:  

• various landscape materials such as trees, turf, shrubs, vines, ground cover, annual 
or perineal plantings;  

• irrigation and drainage systems;  

• structural amenities such as monuments, block walls, retaining walls, or other fencing; 

• hardscapes including mulch, trail and path surfaces, stamped concrete and pavers; 

• recreational amenities within the parks or greenbelts that may include benches, play 
structures, picnic or other recreational facilities, signage, and related appurtenances.  

The maintenance of these improvements may include, but is not limited to the regularly 
scheduled mowing, trimming, pruning, fertilization, pest control, weed and graffiti 
abatement; installation, replacement and rehabilitation of the landscaping, repair or 
replacement of irrigation or drainage systems; repair or replacement of hardscape 
improvements and recreational amenities. The City Public Works Department shall 
authorize and schedule such maintenance and servicing as needed and based on 
available Zone funding.  

➢ Street lighting improvements located in the public right of ways within and on the perimeter 
of the developments and associated with each Zone and the parcels therein. Streetlight 
improvements include energy costs and maintenance of the lighting facilities including, but 
not limited to the removal, repair, replacement or relocation of light standards, poles, 
bulbs, fixtures, and related equipment and materials.  

➢ Street paving on the local streets within each respective Zone that may include but is not 
limited to the repair and servicing of street surfaces, curbs, gutters, driveway approaches, 
walkways, delineation, signage, or other facilities within the public street right of ways. The 
street paving program may include but is not limited to the repair of potholes, cracks, or 
other failures in the asphalt surface; repair or partial segment replacement of curbs, 
gutters, and driveway approaches as needed to ensure pedestrian and vehicle safety or 
the integrity of the street; repair or installation of street signs; slurry sealing, overlays and 
re-striping of the street surfaces. The specific activities and timing of various street and 
road maintenance services shall be determined by the City’s Public Works Department as 
necessary to extend the life of the streets or to improve traffic circulation and safety as 
available funding permits.  

287



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 6 

Most street paving services and activities described above are not performed on an annual 
basis, but rather on a periodic basis such as slurry sealing or overlaying the asphalt 
streets. The funds necessary for these activities are to be collected in installments as part 
of the annual assessments. The monies collected each year for these services will be 
accumulated in a special fund for each Zone (Reserve Fund or Capital Improvement 
Fund). The monies accumulated for these activities shall be spent when sufficient funds 
have been accumulated to perform the services deemed necessary by the City. This 
process of accumulating funds (installments) shall continue until such time that the District 
or Zone is dissolved; or the City determines that such funding procedures require 
modification. Changes in the process of accumulating funds that would result in an 
increase in the annual assessment rate must be presented to the property owners for 
approval prior to imposing such an increase. 

Not included as part of the street paving program are the costs associated with major 
replacements or reconstruction of the street surfaces, curbs, gutters, driveway 
approaches, or walkways. Although the District assessments will provide funding for 
regular maintenance of the improvements and scheduled slurry and resurfacing projects 
on a periodic basis that will extend the useful life of the street improvements, and also as 
needed, repair and replacement of small sections of street surfaces, or curbs and gutters 
to ensure the overall integrity of the streets, the District assessments are not intended to 
fund a full replacement or reconstruction of the street surfaces or adjacent improvements 
such as curbs, gutters or driveway approaches. The costs of extensive replacement or 
reconstruction activities such as full or substantial replacement of curbs, gutters and 
driveway approaches is significantly more than the amount that is typically collected 
annually. When such repairs or activities are deemed necessary, the City may consider 
various financing options including new or increased assessments for property owner 
approval.  

Zones of Benefit 
In accordance with the City Maintenance District Code and the 1972 Act, the District utilizes Zones 
to address variations in the nature, location, and extent of the improvements that provide special 
benefits to parcels in the District. Each Zone is associated with specific improvements and/or 
types of improvements that provide special benefits to properties within that Zone. 

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024 the District is comprised of the following Zones and developments: 

Zone 01 – The Landing: 

Comprised of one hundred twelve (112) single-family residential parcels and three (3) exempt 
lettered lots within Tract No. 817 (The Landing, Phases 1 and 2). 

Zone 02 – Liberty: 

Comprised of two hundred forty-two (242) single-family residential parcels and eleven (11) 
exempt lettered lots within Tract No. 821 (Liberty, Phases 1 and 2). 

Zone 03 – Silva Estates, Phase 10: 

Comprised of seventy-four (74) single-family residential parcels and three (3) exempt lettered lots 
within Tract No. 838 (Silva Estates, Phase 10). 

288



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 7 

Zone 04 – Parkview Estates / Heritage Park - Laredo: 

A total of ninety (90) residential lots comprised of the thirty-nine (39) single-family residential 
parcels within Tract No. 797 Phase 1 (Parkview Estates) and the fifty-one (51) single-family 
residential parcels within Tract No. 797 Phase 2 (Heritage Park - Laredo).  

Zone 05 – East Village Park/Aniston Place: 

A total of one hundred twenty (120) residential lots and four (4) exempt lettered lots which include 
the eighty-one (81) single-family residential parcels and three (3) lettered lots within Tract No. 791 
(East Village Park) and the thirty-nine (39) single-family residential parcels and one (1) lettered 
lot within Tract No. 910 (Aniston Place).  

Zone 06 – Heritage Acres: 

Comprised of ninety-seven (97) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 872 (Heritage 
Acres, Phases 1 and 2). 

Zone 07 – Capistrano, Phase 5: 

Comprised of twenty (20) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 908 (Capistrano, Phase 
5). 

Zone 08 – Woodside: 

Comprised of sixty-four (64) single-family residential parcels and two (2) exempt lettered lots 
within Tract No. 921 (Woodside). 

Zone 09 – Lennar: 

Comprised of eighty-seven (87) single-family residential parcels and two (2) exempt lettered lots 
and a currently exempt remainder lot (future development area) of Tract No. 920 (Lennar). 

Zone 10 – Energy Homes: 

Comprised of thirty-six (36) single-family residential parcels within Tract No. 839 (Energy Homes). 

 

Description of Improvements 
As authorized by the City Maintenance District Code, the improvements provided by the District 
and associated with each Zone incorporate various local landscaping, neighborhood parks, street 
lights, street paving, and related amenities installed in connection with the development of those 
properties and are maintained and serviced for the benefit of real property within the Zone. The 
maintenance of the improvements may also include various appurtenances including, but not 
limited to block walls, retaining walls or other fencing, trail and path surfaces, stamped concrete, 
pavers, mulch or other hardscapes, irrigation and related electrical equipment and drainage 
systems, benches, play structures, picnic or other recreational facilities, monuments, signage, 
ornamental lighting, curbs, gutters, street lighting fixtures, and related equipment. The work to be 
performed within each respective Zone may include but is not limited to (as applicable), the 
personnel, materials, equipment, electricity, water, contract services, repair and rehabilitation of 
the improvements and incidental expenses required to operate the District and provide the 
improvements and services.  

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024 the District includes ten (10) designated Zones and potentially two 
additional Zones currently going through the annexation proceedings. The boundaries of each 
Zone are based on the improvements to be maintained and the relationship and proximity of the 
developments and properties that derive special benefits from those specific improvements. The 

289



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 8 

following is a brief description and summary of the improvements that are or may be associated 
within each Zone and for which parcels receive special benefits. A visual depiction of the location 
of the improvement areas and Zone boundaries is provided on the District Diagrams provided in 
Part IV of this Report.  

The improvements listed for each Zone incorporate those improvements currently maintained 
within the Zone and/or improvements anticipated to be installed and maintained at build-out. It is 
not anticipated that all improvements associated with Zones 08, 09, or 10 will be installed and 
maintained by the District for the fiscal year, or the improvements may be maintained for only a 
portion of the fiscal year. 

Zone 01 – The Landing 

The properties within Zone 01, proportionately share and receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 31,989 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas that 
includes the following: 

• 669 square feet of median landscaping (shrubs with trees) on Acacia Drive; 

• 833 square feet of median landscaping (shrubs with trees) on Atlantic Avenue; 

• 871 square feet of parkway landscaping (trees) on Atlantic Avenue; 

• 14,485 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on S 19Th 
Avenue, including approximately 4,073 square feet of turf with trees; and 10,412 square 
feet of shrubs with trees; 

• 15,131 square feet of park improvement area located on Augusta Drive. generally, site 
generally includes 2,103 square feet of concrete or other hardscape surfaces; 2,870 
square feet of shrubs and ground cover; and 10,158 square feet of turf with trees. 

➢ Thirty-four (34) streetlights including: 

• 29 streetlights within the Zone located on, but not limited to: Acacia Drive, Atlantic Avenue, 
Augusta Drive, National Drive, Seminole Way, and Spyglass Drive; 

• 5 streetlights on the perimeter of the Zone located on S 19th Avenue. 

➢ Approximately 219,254 square feet of pavement surface area within the Zone located on 
but not limited to Acacia Drive, Atlantic Avenue, Meadow Brook Way, National Drive, 
Seminole Way, and Spyglass Drive. 

Zone 02 – Liberty 

The properties within Zone 02, proportionately share and receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of: 

➢ Approximately 113,816 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas that 
includes the following: 

• 4,934 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on 
Cinnamon Drive, including approximately 3,571 square feet of turf with trees; and 1,363 
square feet of shrubs with trees; 

• 1,392 square feet of streetscape landscaping (shrubs with trees) on Cinnamon Drive at 
American Avenue; 

• 429 square feet of streetscape landscaping (turf) on Cinnamon Drive at Arlington Place; 

290



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 9 

• 409 square feet of streetscape landscaping (turf) on Cinnamon Drive at Patriot Place; 

• 24,708 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on Liberty 
Drive, including approximately 11,810 square feet of turf with trees; and 12,898 square 
feet of shrubs with trees; 

• 1,644 square feet of streetscape landscaping (turf with trees) on Liberty Drive at 
Tranquility Court; 

• 7,789 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on N 19Th 
Avenue, including approximately 4,734 square feet of turf with trees; and 3,055 square 
feet of shrubs with trees; 

• 1,194 square feet of streetscape landscaping (turf with trees) on N 19Th Avenue at 
Tranquility Circle; 

• 12,810 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on W 
Hanford Armona Road, including approximately 5,512 square feet of turf with trees; and 
7,298 square feet of shrubs with trees; 

• 58,507 square feet of park improvement area located on Constitution Avenue between 
Jubilee Circle and Fallenleaf Drive. This park site generally includes 6,612 square feet of 
concrete or other hardscape surfaces; 197 square feet of shrubs; and 51,698 square feet 
of turf with trees. 

➢ Ninety-three (93) streetlights including: 

• 58 streetlights within the Zone located on, but not limited to: American Avenue, Arlington 
Place, Avalon Drive, Clawson Way, Columbus Way, Constitution Avenue, Fallenleaf 
Drive, Freedom Drive, Jubilee Court, Liberty Way, Nation Way, Patriot Place, Privilege 
Way, Prosperity Drive, Revere Way, Tranquility Circle, and Tranquility Court; 

• 35 streetlights on the perimeter of the Zone located on: Cinnamon Drive, Liberty Drive, N 
19th Avenue, and W Hanford Armona Road. 

➢ Approximately 443,157 square feet of pavement surface area within the Zone located on 
but not limited to American Avenue, Arlington Place, Avalon Drive, Clawson Way, 
Columbus Way, Constitution Avenue, Fallenleaf Drive, Freedom Drive, Jubilee Circle, 
Liberation Way, Nation Way, Patriot Place, Privilege Way, Prosperity Drive, Revere Way, 
Tranquility Circle, and Tranquility Court. 

Zone 03 – Silva Estates, Phase 10 

The properties within Zone 03, proportionately share and receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 22,256 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping 
located on Silverado Drive, which includes approximately 9,703 square feet of turf with 
trees; and 12,553 square feet of shrubs with trees. 

➢ Twenty-six (26) streetlights including: 

• 12 streetlights within the Zone located on, but not limited to: Big Sur Drive, Cayucos Street, 
and Morro Lane; 

• 14 streetlights on the perimeter of the Zone located on Acacia Drive and Silverado Drive. 

291



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 10 

➢ Approximately 129,688 square feet of pavement surface area within the Zone located on 
but not limited to Acacia Drive, Big Sur Drive, Cayucos Street, Morro Lane, and Santa 
Cruz Street. 

Zone 04 – Parkview Estates / Heritage Park - Laredo 

The properties within Zone 04, proportionately share and receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 20,386 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas on 
the perimeter of the developments that includes, but is not limited to the following: 

• Approximately 11,924 square feet of median landscaping located between East Hanford 
Armona Road and the frontage road that is used to access to the properties within the 
Zone; 

• Approximately 4,657 square feet of parkway/streetscape side-panel landscaping adjacent 
to the development located on the south side of the frontage road along East Hanford 
Armona Road, extending from Opal Drive, west to the western boundary of Tract No. 797 
Phase 1 and the Zone; 

• Approximately 3,805 square feet of parkway/streetscape side-panel landscaping located 
on the west side of Opal Drive, extending from Ruby Drive, south to the southern boundary 
of Tract No. 797 Phase 2 and the Zone. 

➢ Twenty (20) streetlights including: 

• 6 streetlights on the perimeter of the Zone located on Opal Drive; 

• 14 streetlights within the tracts located on, but not limited to: Jade Way, Pebble Drive, 
Ruby Drive, Pearl Drive, Granite Drive, Topaz Avenue, and Ivory Street. 

➢ Approximately 195,599 square feet of pavement surface area within the Zone located on 
but not limited to East Hanford Armona Road frontage road and Opal Drive (perimeter 
streets); and Jade Way, Pebble Drive, Ruby Drive, Pearl Drive, Granite Drive, Topaz 
Avenue, and Ivory Street (internal streets).  

Zone 05 – East Village Park/Aniston Place 

The properties within Zone 05, proportionately share and receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 61,882 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas that 
includes the following: 

• 957 square feet of streetscape landscaping (shrubs with trees) on Cantera Avenue; 

• 15,716 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on D 
Street, including approximately 7,005 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover 
with trees; and 8,711 square feet of shrubs; 

• 1,034 square feet of streetscape landscaping (shrubs) on Smith Avenue north of Siena 
Way; 

• 1,723 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping located on Smith 
Avenue between D Street and Siena Way, including approximately 1,300 square feet of 
turf with trees; and 423 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover with trees; 

292



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 11 

• 42,452 square feet of park improvement area located on Montego Way. This park site 
includes approximately 7,210 square feet of concrete or other hardscape surfaces; 850 
square feet of shrubs and planters; and 34,392 square feet of turf with trees. 

➢ Thirty (30) streetlights including: 

• 8 streetlights on the perimeter of Zone 05 located on D Street and Smith Avenue. 

• 15 streetlights within Tract No. 791 located on, but not limited to: Cantera Avenue, Firenze 
Street, Montego Way, Siena Way, and Visconti Street; 

• 7 streetlights within Tract No. 910 located on, but not limited to: Cantera Avenue, Portola 
Street, and Montego Way; 

➢ Approximately 146,606 square feet of pavement surface area including 178,225 square 
feet within Tract No. 791 and 93,680 square feet within Tract No. 910 which collectively 
include Cantera Avenue, Firenze Street, Montego Way, Siena Way, Visconti Street, and 
Portola Street. 

Zone 06 – Heritage Acres 

The properties within Zone 06, proportionately share and receive special benefits from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 10,760 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas that 
includes the following: 

• 1,571 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping (shrubs and trees) 
located on the southeast side of the eastern cul-de-sac on Legend Place; 

• 3,747 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping (shrubs and trees) 
located along the western cul-de-sac on Legend Place situated between Legend Place 
and the intersection of Daphne Lane and Legacy Drive; 

• 5,442 square feet of parkway side-panel landscaping (shrubs and trees) located on the 
south side of Legend Place between the two cul-de-sacs. 

➢ Twenty-seven (27) streetlights within the Zone located on, but not limited to: Heirloom 
Way; Himalaya Lane; Legacy Drive; Tradition Drive; and Geneva Drive. 

➢ Approximately 253,324 square feet of pavement surface area within the Zone located on 
but not limited to Geneva Drive, Heirloom Way, Himalaya Drive, Himalaya Lane, Legacy 
Drive, Legend Drive, and Tradition Drive. 

Zone 07 – Capistrano, Phase 5 

The properties within Zone 07, proportionately share and receive or will receive special benefits 
from the maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 5,070 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel landscaping on 
East Bush Street consisting of: 3,125 square feet of shrubs, plants, and/or ground cover 
with trees; and 1,945 square feet of turf with trees. These improvements and the costs 
associated with the maintenance and operation are proportionately shared by properties 
within LLMD Zone 06. 

➢ The median island on Bush Place/Barcelona Drive, just south of East Bush Street leading 
into the development (Approximately 427 square feet). This median and the costs 
associated with the maintenance and operation are proportionately shared by properties 
within LLMD Zone 06. 

293



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 12 

➢ 73 square feet of entryway/corner landscaping in front of the block wall at the southeast 
corner of East Bush Street and Bush Place/Barcelona Drive. This improvement area and 
the costs associated with the maintenance and operation of the improvements are 
proportionately shared by properties within LLMD Zone 06. 

➢ Eight (8) streetlights including: 

• Two (2) streetlights located on Bush place/Barcelona Drive directly adjacent to the 
perimeter of the development and one (1) street light at the southeast corner of East Bush 
Street and Bush Place. These three street lights also benefit properties within LLMD Zone 
06 and are therefore partially funded by other revenue sources. 

• 5 streetlights within Tract 908 located on Tuscany Court; 

➢ Approximately 20,792 square feet of pavement surface area are located on Tuscany 
Court. 

Zone 08 – Woodside 

The properties within Zone 08, proportionately share and receive or will receive special benefits 
from the maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ 12,206 square foot neighborhood park site located at the corner of Daphne Lane and 
Sydney Way that may include, but is not limited to, turf, shrubs, trees, plants, and/or 
ground cover areas; and concrete paths, play structures, tables, benches, and trash 
receptacles. 

➢ 4,340 square feet of paved access roads providing access to the drainage basin and the 
Lemoore Canal from Daphne Lane. 

➢ 350 linear feet of block wall on the perimeter of the development along the Southern 
Pacific Railroad right-of-way and the Lemoore Canal. 

➢ Nineteen (19) streetlights within Tract No. 921 located on Daphne Lane, Melbourne Way, 
Newcastle Street, and Sydney Way. 

➢ Approximately 131,827 square feet of pavement surface area located on but not limited to 
Daphne Lane, Melbourne Way, Newcastle Street, and Sydney Way. 

Zone 09 – Lennar 

The properties within Zone 09, proportionately share and receive or will receive special benefits 
from the maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 28,193 square feet of perimeter streetscape landscaping: 

• 3,482 square feet of streetscape landscaping on the east side of Liberty Drive north of 
Hana Way, up to the northern lot line of lot 87 (designated as that part of Lot A within 
Phase 1 of Tract No. 920). This landscape area incorporates the area between the curb 
and sidewalk and the area between the sidewalk and residential property lines; 

• 482 square feet on the north side of Hana Way between Liberty Drive and Narwhal 
Avenue. This landscape area incorporates the area between the curb and sidewalk. The 
landscaping behind sidewalk (if any) will be privately maintained and is not a part of the 
Zone improvements;  

294



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 13 

• 482 square feet on the south side of Hana Way between Liberty Drive and Narwhal 
Avenue. This landscape area incorporates the area between the curb and sidewalk. The 
landscaping behind sidewalk (if any) will be privately maintained and is not a part of the 
Zone improvements; 

• 4,971 square feet on the east side of Liberty Drive south of Hana Way and north of 
Hanford-Armona Road (designated as part of Lot B). This landscape area incorporates 
the area between the curb and sidewalk and the area between the sidewalk and residential 
property lines; 

• 18,776 square feet on the north side of Hanford-Armona Road from Liberty Drive, to the 
eastern boundary of Tract No. 920 which is also the eastern lot line of Lot 60 (designated 
as part of Lot B). This landscape area incorporates the area between the curb and 
sidewalk and the area between the sidewalk and residential property lines; 

➢ 32,972 square foot neighborhood park site/greenbelt area to be installed on the east side 
of Obsidian Avenue as part of Phase 2. This area may include, but is not limited to, turf, 
shrubs, trees, plants, and/or ground cover areas; and concrete paths, play structures, 
tables, benches, and trash receptacles.  

➢ 94,090 square foot drainage basin site to be installed to the east of the neighborhood park 
site/greenbelt area (east of Obsidian Avenue) as part of Phase 2. It is anticipated that 
approximately 20% of this area will be irrigated improvements and the remainder non-
irrigated improvements.  

➢ Twenty-four (24) streetlights including: 

• Nine (9) streetlights on the perimeter of Tract No. 920 Phase 1 located on Hanford-Armona 
Road (8 Lights) and on Liberty Drive (1 Light); and 

• Fifteen (15) streetlights within Tract No. 920 Phase 1 located on, but not limited to: 
Castellina Street, Fire Fall Avenue, Hana Way, Narwhal Avenue, Obsidian Avenue, Pisa 
Way, and Strada Street; 

➢ Approximately 187,346 square feet of pavement surface area located on but not limited to 
the perimeter of the Zone including half of Hanford-Armona Road and Liberty Drive, and 
the internal streets of the Zone including Castellina Street, Fire Fall Avenue, Hana Way, 
Narwhal Avenue, Obsidian Avenue, Pisa Way, and Strada Street. 

 

Note: The neighborhood park site/greenbelt area and drainage basin site improvements identified 
above will eventually be installed as part of Phase 2 of Tract No. 920, which is currently not a part 
of Zone 09. When those improvements are installed as part of Phase 2 of Tract No. 920, the cost 
of maintaining those improvements will be proportionately shared by the residential parcels in 
both phases of Tract No. 920. Likewise, the perimeter landscaping, street lighting, and pavement 
improvements being installed on Hanford-Armona Road and Liberty Drive as part of Tract No. 
920 Phase 1, will proportionately benefit properties in both phases and the costs associated with 
those improvements will be proportionately shared by the residential parcels in both phase of 
Tract No. 920. However, when Phase 2 is developed, it is also anticipated that additional 
perimeter landscaping, street lighting, and pavement improvements will be installed and 
proportionately shared. Ultimately at build-out, all the Zone improvements installed as part of 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 of Tract No 920 will be proportionately shared by parcels in both phases.  

295



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 14 

Zone 10 – Energy Homes 

The thirty-six residential properties within Zone 10, proportionately share and receive or will 
receive special benefits from the maintenance, servicing, and operation of:  

➢ Approximately 10,611 square feet of landscaping and/or related improvement areas that 
includes: 

• 1,361 square feet of median/entryway landscaping on Cabrillo Street at Vine Street, which 
is currently comprised of hardscape material and trees; 

• 6,379 square feet of minimally maintained parkway and streetscape side-panel 
landscaping surrounding the drainage basin, including 1,725 square feet on Vine Street 
and 4,654 square feet on Cabrillo Street. This landscape area is comprised of turf and 
trees but is minimally maintained at present; 

• 2,871 square feet of parkway and streetscape side-panel minimal landscaped area with 
trees Vine Street north of Cabrillo Street. 

The special benefits and costs associated with the landscaping improvements listed above are 
allocated and shared by the parcels within Tract No. 656 (Zone No. 11 of Landscape and Lighting 
Maintenance District No. 1). 

➢ The four (4) street lights on the west side of Vine Street, three north of Cabrillo Street and 
one south of Cabrillo Street which serve as the entryway to Tract 839 and Tract 656. The 
special benefits associate with these four street lights are shared by the parcels within 
Tract No. 656 (Zone No. 11 of Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1) and 
PFMD Zone No. 10 is proportionately allocated the special benefit cost to operate and 
maintain these four street lights. 

In addition to the above shared improvements, the 36 single-family residential parcels within Tract 
No. 839 (PFMD Zone No. 10) will proportionately share and receive special benefit from the 
maintenance, servicing, and operation of: 

➢ The eight (8) local street lights within Tract 839 are located on Aliso Street, Otero Street, 
Lazo Court, and Cabrillo Street. 

➢ Approximately 63,386 square feet of pavement surface area are located on Aliso Street, 
Otero Street, Lazo Court, and Cabrillo Street within Tract 839. 

 

296



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 15 

Part II -- Method of Apportionment 

Legislative Requirements for Assessments 

The costs of the proposed improvements for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 have been identified and 
allocated to properties within the District based on special benefit, consistent with the provisions 
of the City Maintenance District Code, the 1972 Act, and the assessment provisions of Proposition 
218 (being contained in Article XIII D of the California Constitution). The improvements provided 
by this District for which properties may be assessed are identified as local landscaping, 
neighborhood parks, street lights, street paving, and related amenities that were either installed 
in direct connection with the development of properties within each Zone or were installed for the 
benefit of those properties as a result of property development or potential development of those 
properties and were considered necessary elements for the development of such properties to 
their full and best use. The formulas used for calculating assessments and the designation of 
zones herein reflect the composition of parcels within the District and the improvements and 
activities to be provided and have been designed to fairly apportion the cost of providing those 
improvements based on a determination of the proportional special benefits to each parcel. 

Provisions of the California Constitution  

In addition to the provisions of the City Maintenance District Code, Article XIII D of the California 
Constitution outlines specific requirements regarding assessments including the following: 

Article XIII D Section 2d defines District as follows: 

“District means an area determined by an agency to contain all parcels which will receive a special 
benefit from a proposed public improvement or property-related service”;  

Article XIII D Section 2i defines Special Benefit as follows: 

“Special benefit” means a particular and distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred 
on real property located in the district or to the public at large. General enhancement of property 
value does not constitute “special benefit.” 

Article XIII D Section 4a defines proportional special benefit assessments as follows: 

“An agency which proposes to levy an assessment shall identify all parcels which will have a 
special benefit conferred upon them and upon which an assessment will be imposed. The 
proportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be determined in relationship 
to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation 
expenses of a public improvement, or the cost of the property related service being provided. No 
assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the 
proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”  

297



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 16 

Benefit Analysis 

Special Benefits 

Landscaping Special Benefit 

The ongoing maintenance of landscaped areas within the District provides aesthetic benefits to 
the properties within each respective Zone and a more pleasant environment to walk, drive, live, 
and work. The primary function of these landscape improvements and related amenities is to 
serve as an aesthetically pleasing enhancement and green space for the benefit of the 
immediately surrounding properties and developments for which the improvements were 
constructed and installed and/or were facilitated by the development or potential development of 
properties within the Zones. These improvements are an integral part of the physical environment 
associated with the parcels in each Zone and while some of these improvements may in part be 
visible to properties outside the Zone, collectively if these Zone improvements are not properly 
maintained, it is the parcels within the Zone that would be aesthetically burdened. Additionally, 
the street landscaping in these Zones serves as both a physical buffer as well as a sound 
reduction buffer between the roadways and the properties in the District and serve as a pleasant 
aesthetic amenity that enhances the approach to the parcels. Likewise, in some of the zones, the 
landscaped areas may include green space areas (neighborhood parks, greenbelts, open space 
and/or trails) that provide a physical buffer and open space between properties and these areas 
serve as an extension of the physical attributes of the parcels assessed, such as their front or 
rear yards. These green space areas may also provide a greater opportunity for recreation. Thus, 
the maintenance of these landscape improvements and the related amenities provide particular 
and distinct benefits to the properties and developments within each Zone. 

Street Lighting Special Benefit 

The street lighting in the District (localized street lighting) is primarily useful for illuminating the 
sidewalks and parking lanes on the streets used specifically to access the properties and/or is 
adjacent to those properties that comprise the District. This lighting is distinct from lights that may 
be installed that serve in large part to enhance traffic safety, such as traffic signals and intersection 
safety lights or the more sporadic lighting found on major thoroughfares outside the more 
concentrated development areas. These localized streetlights tend to be more closely spaced 
and of a lower intensity than streetlights installed primarily for traffic safety. These low-level, lower-
intensity streetlights within the District provide three main special benefits: (i) property security 
benefit, (ii) pedestrian safety benefit, and (iii) parkway/roadway egress benefit. Because traffic to 
and from these parcels is largely limited to the residents and residents’ guests, it is reasonable to 
assume that essentially all pedestrians and parking vehicles in the lit areas will, after dark, be 
directly associated with the properties in the District and that the vehicular traffic within the internal 
streets of a Zone is primarily for accessing the properties within that Zone. Therefore, street 
lighting on such streets is entirely a special benefit to those properties. While lighting located on 
the perimeter of a development also serves primarily for accessing the properties within that Zone 
it is recognized that such lighting may benefit pass-through traffic as well and inherently there is 
some general benefits associated with those streetlights. 

In addition, the streetlights within the District are consistent with the City’s typical intensity and 
spacing standards for areas zoned for residential development areas and each parcel to be 
assessed is served directly by the system of streetlights providing appropriate lighting within these 
respective development areas. Furthermore, the cost of maintaining and operating each light is 
substantially the same, regardless of the location of the light within the District. Consequently, we 
conclude that each parcel within the District receives substantially similar benefit from the 
streetlight improvements and the only notable distinctions in proportional special benefits to each 

298



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 17 

parcel is related to the specific quantity of lights associated with each development (Zone) and 
the overall location of those lights (internal development lights or perimeter lights).  

Street Paving Special Benefit 

Like street lighting in the District, the streets and parking lanes on the streets that are to be 
maintained through the District are exclusively within the boundaries of each Zone and those 
streets were specifically constructed to access those properties. Furthermore, the maintenance 
of these streets or the lack thereof, only has an impact on the properties within the District. 
Because traffic on these streets is almost exclusively limited to the residents and residents’ guests 
associated with the District parcels, it is reasonable to conclude that essentially all utilization of 
these streets is primarily for accessing the properties within each respective Zone. Therefore, the 
maintenance and preservation of these streets is entirely a special benefit to those properties.  

General Benefit 

Landscaping General Benefit 

In reviewing the location and extent of the specific landscaped areas and improvements to be 
funded by District assessments and the proximity and relationship to properties to be assessed, 
it is evident these improvements were primarily installed in connection with the development of 
properties in each respective Zone or are improvements that would otherwise be shared by and 
required for development of properties in those Zones. It is also evident that the maintenance 
these improvements and the level of maintenance provided has a direct and particular impact 
(special benefit) only on those properties in proximity to those improvements and such 
maintenance beyond that which is required to ensure the safety and protection of the general 
public and property in general, has no quantifiable benefit to the public at large or properties 
outside each respective Zone. 

In the absence of a special funding Zone, the City would typically provide only limited (as needed) 
tree management, weed abatement, rodent control, and erosion control services for the 
landscape areas currently maintained within the District. This baseline level of service would 
provide for periodic servicing of the improvement areas on an as-needed basis, but typically not 
more than twice annually. This baseline level of service provides for public safety and essential 
property protection to avoid negative impacts on adjacent roadways and vehicles traveling on 
those roadways and potential property damage resulting from erosion or fire hazards but results 
in a far less visually pleasing environment than is created with the enhanced levels of services 
associated with the regular landscape maintenance provided in the various Zones. For most 
agencies, the cost to provide this baseline level of service for flat/moderately-sloped street 
landscaped areas is less than $560 per acre (approximately $0.01285 per square foot) including 
medians, parkway and streetscape side panels; less than $448 per acre (approximately $0.01028 
per square foot) for non-street public areas such as parks, greenbelts, and trail areas; and less 
than $224 per acre (approximately $0.00514 per square foot) for natural open space areas or 
other limited access areas. This baseline servicing, unlike the enhanced aesthetic services funded 
through the District assessments, would provide benefits to the general public and to the 
properties both within and outside of the specific benefit zones. The cost of providing this baseline 
service along with a five percent (5%) cost factor for City overhead and administration is treated 
as the cost of general benefits from landscape maintenance services. Therefore, for 
flat/moderately-sloped street landscaped areas a rate of $0.01349 per square foot ($0.01285 
+5%) is applied to calculate the general benefit costs for the assessed improvements; for non-
street public areas a rate of $0.01080 per square foot ($0.01028 +5%) is applied to calculate the 
general benefit costs for the assessed improvements; and for non-street public areas a rate of 

299



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 18 

$0.00540 per square foot ($0.00514 +5%) is applied to calculate the general benefit costs for the 
assessed improvements. 

Other Landscaping General Benefits 

In addition to the general benefit identified above, it is recognized that there are indirect or 
incidental general benefits to properties within the District as well as the general public that are 
associated with regular landscape maintenance services, including: 

➢ Minimization of dust and debris; and 

➢ Decreased potential water runoff from both properties and the landscaped areas. 

Although these types of benefits might best be characterized as indirect consequences of the 
special benefits of the landscape maintenance provided to parcels served by the District, for the 
purposes of this Report we assume these types of benefits to be general benefits, albeit general 
benefits that are extremely difficult to quantify. We estimate that the costs associated with these 
indirect benefits do not exceed one percent of the annual maintenance expenditures for Local 
Landscaping Zone improvements. Therefore, the costs associated with these indirect or incidental 
general benefits have been calculated based on 1.0% of the estimated “Total Annual Maintenance 
Expenditures” budgeted for each Zone. Together with the baseline general benefit costs 
previously identified, these indirect/incidental general benefit costs are excluded from the potential 
assessment funding and together are shown in the budgets for each Zone (Part III of this Report) 
as the “General Benefit Expenses (City Funded)”. 

Street Lighting General Benefit 

Collectively, there are a total of 289.50 streetlights to be operated and maintained through the 
District of which approximately 30% of those lights (27.8%) are located on the perimeter of the 
Zones, the remainder being internal residential streetlights. 

These residential perimeter lights, in contrast to the internal residential lights funded by the 
District, arguably provide some illumination that extends beyond the boundaries of the 
developments and parcels being assessed, and these lights may also enhance the safety of 
members of the public unassociated with an assessed parcel by illuminating traffic lanes and/or 
parking on those streets, or that otherwise provides services to the general public. Although, in 
general, these streetlights exist solely because of the development of assessed parcels, and the 
primary purpose of these lights is to provide illumination to access the assessed parcels, these 
particular lights may provide some level of general benefit in addition to the special benefits 
provided to the assessed parcels. We estimate that these general benefits constitute not more 
than 25% of the total benefit associated with these perimeter lights, which is no more than 8% of 
the total benefit from all residential lights operated and maintained by the District (25% of 30% 
equals 7.5%). Therefore, it is reasonable to conclude that the total general benefit from the 
operation and maintenance activities associated with the District street lights does not exceed 8% 
of the direct annual operating expenses for all combined residential streetlights. The following 
table provides a summary of the proportional general benefit costs (amount not to be assessed 
as special benefit) for each of the Zones for streetlights. 

 

300



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 19 

Based on the general benefits outlined above and the improvement in each Zone, the following 
table summarizes the estimated general benefit costs calculated for each Zone: 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Estimated General Benefit Costs 

 
 

Assessment Methodology 
To assess benefits equitably it is necessary to calculate each property’s relative share of the 
special benefits conferred by the funded improvements and service. The Equivalent Benefit Unit 
(EBU) method of assessment apportionment is utilized for this District and establishes a basic 
unit (base value) of benefit and then calculates the benefit derived by each assessed parcel as a 
multiple (or a fraction) of that basic unit. The EBU method of apportioning special benefits is 
typically seen as the most appropriate and equitable assessment methodology for assessment 
districts, as the benefit to each parcel from the improvements are apportioned as a function of 
comparable property characteristics which may include but is not limited to land use and property 
size. The method of apportionment originally developed for this District was based on an 
assessment formula appropriate for the various land uses, identifiable property characteristics 
and improvements within the District and utilizes the number of comparative dwelling units or 
dwelling spaces for other residential land uses and comparative lot sizes (acreage) for non-
residential and undeveloped properties. 

For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, an EBU is the quantum of benefit derived from the 
various Zone improvements by a single-family residential parcel. The single-family residential 
parcel has been selected as the basic unit for calculation of assessments since it currently 
represents 100% of the parcels to be assessed in the District, although other land uses may be 
annexed to the District in the future. Thus, the "benchmark" or “base value” property (the single-
family residential parcel) derives one EBU of benefit and is assigned 1.00 Equivalent Benefit Unit. 

Zone

 Street Paving 

General 

Benefit 

 Total General 

Benefit Cost 

Zone 01 (513)$       (485)$       -$                  (998)$            

Zone 02 (1,402)$    (1,814)$    -$                  (3,217)$         

Zone 03 (392)$       (531)$       -$                  (923)$            

Zone 04 (302)$       (468)$       -$                  (769)$            

Zone 05 (452)$       (842)$       -$                  (1,294)$         

Zone 06 (407)$       (52)$         -$                  (459)$            

Zone 07 (98)$         (25)$         -$                  (123)$            

Zone 08 (287)$       (209)$       -$                  (496)$            

Zone 09 (362)$       (907)$       -$                  (1,269)$         

Zone 10 (151)$       (100)$       -$                  (252)$            

Totals (4,366)$    (5,433)$    -$                  (9,799)$         

 Street 

Lighting 

General 

Benefit 

 Landscaping 

General 

Benefit 

301



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 20 

Land Use Classifications 

Every parcel within the District is assigned a land use classification based on available parcel 
information obtained from the County Assessor’s Office. It has been determined that parcel use 
and size are the appropriate factors necessary to identify and calculate the proportional special 
benefits conveyed to each property within the District for the cost of improvements associated 
with that property.  

As of Fiscal Year 2023/2024, the parcels within the District are each identified as Residential 
Single-Family parcels or Exempt parcels. However, it is anticipated that as properties and 
developments are annexed into the District in subsequent fiscal years other land use 
classifications will be incorporated into the District. Therefore, in addition to the land uses currently 
applicable to parcels in the District, the following identifies other common land uses and 
assignment of proportional Equivalent Benefit Units anticipated for such land uses as compared 
to that of a Residential Single Family parcel. These land uses may be expanded to include 
additional land use classifications as developments are annexed to the District in the future and/or 
modified to ensure that the Equivalent Benefit Units assigned to each land use and parcel 
accurately reflects the proportional special benefits received. 

Residential Single-Family -- This land use classification may include but is not limited to all 
subdivided residential tract lots with a single residential unit on the parcel (individual Assessor’s 
Parcel Number) including attached and detached single-family residential units, condominiums, 
or townhomes. As previously noted, the single-family residential parcel has been selected as the 
basic unit (base value) for calculation of assessments and each is assigned 1.00 Equivalent 
Benefit Unit.  

Residential Vacant Lot -- This land use classification is defined as a fully subdivided residential 
parcel/lot within an approved Tract or subdivision for which the residential unit or units have not 
been constructed on the parcel (subdivided vacant lot). This land use classification is limited to 
fully subdivided residential parcels for which the number of residential units to be constructed on 
the parcel is four (4) units or less. This land use is assessed at 1.00 EBU per parcel.  

Multi-Family Residential -- This land use classification is defined as properties that are primarily 
used for residential purposes but contain more than a single residential unit on the parcel (parcels 
with more than one dwelling) including apartments, duplexes, or other multi-unit structures. Due 
in part to the development and population densities associated with these types of dwelling units 
(reduced unit size compared to the typical density and size of single-family properties); studies 
have consistently shown that the average apartment unit impacts infrastructure approximately 
80% as much as a single-family residence. (Sources: Institute of Transportation Engineers 
Informational Report Trip Generation, Fifth Edition, 1991; Metcalf and Eddy, Wastewater 
Engineering Treatment, Disposal, Reuse, Third Edition, 1991). Therefore, it is reasonable to 
conclude that the proportional special benefits these properties receive from the public 
improvements funded by the District assessments has a similar proportionality and these parcels 
shall be assigned a weighted proportional special benefit of 0.80 EBU per unit. 

Planned Residential Subdivision -- This land use classification is defined as a parcel or group 
of parcels that may currently be identified as vacant undeveloped property, zoned for residential 
use, and the number of residential units to be developed on the property has been determined or 
identified as part of an approved Tract Map or Tentative Tract Map. 

302



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 21 

For balloting purposes to establish each property’s maximum assessment and proportional 
special benefits, these parcels were assigned an EBU that reflected the total EBU’s planned for 
that parcel at build-out (1.00 EBU per single-family residential lot and 0.80 per multi-family 
residential unit).  

However, for calculation of the annual assessments each fiscal year, the Assessment Engineer 
shall apply to such parcels an EBU that best reflects that parcel’s proportional special benefits 
from the improvements and services provided as compared to other properties in the Zone based 
on the type and location of the improvements to be maintained, the proximity of the property to 
those improvements, and the development status of the property. Because these factors can vary 
from year to year and from parcel to parcel, the calculated EBU for each parcel originally balloted 
as Planned Residential Subdivision parcel may be different utilizing either the acreage of the 
parcel or number of planned units. The Assessment Engineer may identify the parcel and treat 
the parcel as a Vacant Undeveloped Property (assigned 1.00 EBU per acre); or may temporarily 
identify the parcel as a Special Case Parcel (refer to this land use classification below) assigning 
the parcel any proportional EBU up to the maximum EBU for which the property was ballot (1.0 
EBU per single-family residential lot and 0.80 per multi-family residential unit). 

Developed Non-Residential -- This land use is defined as a parcel and/or development (group 
of parcels) that has been developed primarily with a non-residential use including, but not limited 
to (both publicly owned and privately owned) commercial retail or service, office or professional 
service, hotel or motel, manufacturing, warehousing, parking lot, and/or institutional facilities 
including hospitals or other medical facilities, schools or education centers, churches or other 
non-profit organizations. Based on the single-family residential developments within Zones 01 
through 06 of this District, it has been determined that on average there are approximately five 
dwelling units (residential lots) per acre within these residential developments. The calculated 
residential development density is approximately 5.24 lots per acre. Therefore, since the single-
family residential parcel (the base value for calculation of assessments) is assigned 1.0 
Equivalent Benefit Unit, it is reasonable and appropriate to assign a developed non-residential 
property a weighted special benefit that reflects a similar and proportional development density. 
Therefore, the EBU assigned to each developed non-residential property is established by 
multiplying the parcel’s applied acreage by 5.0 EBU per acre (e.g., a developed non-residential 
parcel of 4.25-acres would be assigned 21.25 EBU, 4.25 acres x 5.0 EBU/acre = 21.25 EBU).  

Vacant Undeveloped Property -- This land use classification includes undeveloped properties 
that were originally identified as Planned Residential Subdivision parcels but have not yet been 
developed or subdivided. While many of the improvements within a Zone are considered shared 
improvements that collectively support the overall development of properties within a Zone to their 
full and best use and benefit each of the properties in the Zone, including the vacant undeveloped 
properties, some improvements are constructed and accepted for maintenance only when the 
properties are subdivided and/or developed. It is also recognized that some of the shared 
improvements within a Zone have a more direct and particular benefit to those developed 
properties directly adjacent to the improvements or in close proximity to those improvements than 
do the vacant undeveloped properties that are not actively being developed or are further from 
those shared improvements. Therefore, it has been determined that parcels identified as Vacant 
Undeveloped Property shall be assigned a proportional EBU that is 20% of that assigned to 
developed properties, which is 1.0 EBU per acre (20% of the 5.0 EBU per acre assigned to 
Developed Non-Residential property). (e.g., a Vacant Undeveloped Property which is 7.00-acres 
would be assigned 7.00 EBU [7.0 acres x 1.0 EBU/acre]). 

Exempt -- Within his District, there are lots or parcels of land that do not receive a special benefit 
from the improvements provided (exempt from assessment), which may include, but is not limited 

303



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 22 

to public streets and other roadways (typically not assigned an APN by the County); dedicated 
public easements, public rights-of-way, or utility rights-of-way; common areas, bifurcated lots; 
sliver parcels or any other parcel that has little or no assessed value and cannot be developed 
independently; parcels that are part of the improvements being maintained by the District or 
parcels that the City has determined cannot be developed. These types of parcels are considered 
to receive no direct benefit from the improvements and receive no special benefits or general 
benefits from the operation and maintenance of the District improvements and are assigned 0.00 
EBU. 

Special Case -- In many assessment districts (particularly districts that have a wide range of land 
uses, phased developments, and/or diversity in the location and type of improvements) there may 
be one or more parcels that the standard land use classifications and proportionality identified 
above do not accurately identify the use and special benefits received from the improvements. 
Properties that are typically classified as Special Case parcels usually involve partial or mixed-
use development of the property, or development restrictions whether those restrictions are 
temporary or permanent and affect the property’s proportional special benefit. Examples of such 
restrictions may include situations where only a portion of the parcel’s total acreage is or can be 
developed. In such a case, the net acreage of the parcel is utilized rather than the gross acreage 
of the parcel to calculate the parcel’s proportional special. Likewise, in a case where a parcel 
which was identified as a Planned Residential Subdivision as part of an annexation proceeding 
and balloting is not anticipated to be subdivided for the upcoming fiscal year, the parcel may be 
assessed as Vacant Undeveloped Property or as a Special Case depending on the improvements 
that directly benefit the property. Each such parcel shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis 
by the Assessment Engineer and the EBU assigned to such parcels shall be based on the specific 
issues related to that parcel and its proportional special benefit compared to other properties that 
receive special benefits from the improvements. 

 

A summary of the Equivalent Benefit Units (EBUs) that may be applied to land use classifications 
within the District is shown in the following table:  

 

Land Use Classification

Residential Single-Family 1.00 EBU per Parcel/Lot

Residential Vacant Lot 1.00 EBU per Parcel/Lot

Residential Multi-Family 1.00 EBU per Unit

Planned Residential Subdivision 1.00 EBU per Planned Lot/Unit

Non-Residential Developed 5.00 EBU per Acre

Vacant Undeveloped Property 1.00 EBU per Acre

Exempt 0.00 EBU per Parcel

Special Case Varied EBU per Adjusted Acre or Planned Units

Equivalent Benefit Unit Formula

304



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 23 

Equivalent Benefit Unit Summary 

The following is a summary of the land use classifications and Equivalent Benefit Units applicable 
to each of the District Zones for Fiscal Year 2023/2024: 

Zone 01 

 
 

Zone 02 

 
 

Zone 03 

 
 

Zone 04 

 
 

Zone 05 

 
 

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 112           112            112.000          112.0000      

Exempt 3               -                 0.472              -            

Totals 115           112            112.472          112.0000      

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 242           242            242.000          242.0000      

Exempt 11             -                 2.895              -            

Totals 253           242            244.895          242.0000      

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 74             74              74.000            74.0000        

Exempt 3               -                 0.433              -            

Totals 77             74              74.433            74.0000        

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 90             90              90.000            90.0000        

Totals 90             90              90.000            90.0000        

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 120           120            120.000          120.0000      

Exempt 4               -                 1.217              -            

Totals 124           120            121.217          120.0000      

305



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 24 

Zone 06 

 
 

Zone 07 

 
 

Zone 08 

 
 

Zone 09 

 
 

Zone 10 

 

 
 
 
 

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 97             97              97.000            97.0000        

Totals 97             97              97.000            97.0000        

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 20             20              20.000            20.0000        

Totals 20             20              20.000            20.0000        

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 64             64              64.000            64.0000        

Exempt 2               -                 2.527              -            

Totals 66             64              66.527            64.0000        

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 87             87              87.000            87.0000        

Exempt 3               -                 0.943              -            

Totals 90             87              87.943            87.0000        

Land Use Classification
 Total 

Parcels 

 Assessed 

Parcels 

 Applied 

Acres/Units 

 Equivalent 

Benefit Units 

(EBU) 

Residential Single-Family 36             36              36.000            36.0000        

Totals 36             36              36.000            36.0000        

306



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 25 

Calculation of Assessments 

An assessment amount per EBU in each Zone is calculated by: 

Taking the “Total Annual Expenses” (Total budgeted costs) and subtracting the “General Benefit 
Expenses (City Funded)”, to establish the “Total Eligible Special Benefit Expenses”;  

Total Annual Expenses – General Benefit Expenses = Total Eligible Special Benefit Expenses 

To the resulting “Eligible Special Benefit Expenses”, various “Funding Adjustments/Contributions” 
may be applied that may include, but are not limited to: 

➢ “Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction”, represents an amount of available existing funds 
from the “Operational Reserve Fund Balances” being applied to pay a portion of the 
Special Benefit Expenses for the fiscal year. 

➢ “Additional City Contribution and/or Service Reductions”, represents a further 
adjustment that addresses the funding gap between the amount budgeted to provide 
the improvements and services (“Special Benefit Expenses”); and the amount that will 
be collected through the assessments. This funding gap may be addressed by an 
additional City contribution, reductions in service and service expenses, or a 
combination of the two. If the City provides an additional City Contribution to support 
the operation and maintenance for a given fiscal year, that contribution may be carried 
forward as a deficit applied to the Beginning Fund Balance in the next fiscal year. 

These adjustments to the Special Benefit Expenses result in the net special benefit amount to be 
assessed “Balance to Levy”;  

Eligible Special Benefit Expenses +/- Funding Adjustments/Contributions =Balance to Levy  

The amount identified as the “Balance to Levy” is divided by the total number of EBUs of parcels that 
benefit to establish the “Assessment Rate” or “Assessment per EBU” for the fiscal year. This Rate is 
then applied back to each parcel’s individual EBU to calculate the parcel’s proportionate special 
benefits and assessment for the improvements.  

Balance to Levy / Total EBU = Assessment per EBU (Assessment Rate) 

Assessment per EBU x Parcel EBU = Parcel Assessment Amount 

 

Annual Inflationary Adjustment (Assessment Range Formula) 
To assure continued adequacy of the financing of the improvement costs, when the District Zones 
were established, the assessments presented to the property owners included an annual 
inflationary adjustment (assessment range formula). This inflationary adjustment formula 
established that the Maximum Annual Assessment (maximum assessment rates) shall be 
comparably and automatically increased each fiscal year to cover the maintenance and 
replacement cost increases that naturally occur over time. The annual increase in the Maximum 
Annual Assessments shall be in accordance with the annual percentage increase (March to 
March) in the Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and Local Government 
Workers (all Workers), published quarterly by the U.S. Bureau of Labor and Statistics (the 
“Index”). Increases in the Index will track comparably to increases in the costs of annual 
maintenance and periodic replacement of the described facilities and improvements, since the 
majority of the maintenance and replacement work is and will be done by City employees. 

307



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 26 

Each year, the percentage difference between the Index for March of the current year and the 
Index for the previous March shall be identified. This percentage difference shall then establish 
the range of increased assessments allowed based on the Index. If the percentage change from 
March to March is not available at the time the Engineer’s Report is prepared a similar time period 
may be utilized. For Fiscal Year 2023/2024 the annual percentage change in the Index (March 
2022 to March 2023) was 4.9 percent. 

The Maximum Assessment Rates shall be calculated independent of the District’s annual budget 
and proposed assessments. Any proposed annual assessment (rate per EBU) less than or equal 
to the calculated (adjusted) Maximum Assessment Rates is not considered an increased 
assessment, even if the proposed assessment is significantly greater than the assessment 
applied in the prior fiscal year.  

The District is not required to adjust the assessments levied each year, nor does it restrict the 
assessments to the adjustment amount. If the budget and assessments for a given Zone does 
not require an increase or the increase is less than the allowed adjusted maximum assessment 
rate, then the budget and assessments shall be applied. If the budget and assessments for a 
given Zone require an increase greater than the allowed maximum assessment rate, then the 
proposed assessment is considered an increased assessment. In such cases, mailed notices and 
balloting to the property owners would be required pursuant to the provisions of Article XIIID prior 
to the imposition of that assessment. 

 

308



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 27 

Part III -- Estimate of Costs 

The following budgets outline the estimated costs to maintain and service the various 
improvements described in this Report for Fiscal Year 2023/2024.  

The budgeted expenses outlined in the following pages for each Zone reflect the estimated annual 
expenses needed to support and maintain the improvements provided in those Zone at an 
appropriate full-service level. These full-service expenses, minus the City’s general benefit costs 
(the City’s financial obligation to support the improvements) result in the amount of funding the 
property owners should reasonably be assessed to fully fund their proportional special benefits 
from those improvements (“Special Benefit Expenses”). However, if the maximum allowed 
assessment revenue (assessments being applied at the maximum assessment rate) that can be 
collected annually is less than the Special Benefit Expenses, various “Funding 
Adjustments/Contributions” may be applied to reduce the amount to be assessed for the fiscal 
year (“Balance to Levy”) to a dollar amount that can be supported at the allowed maximum 
assessment rate.  

These Funding Adjustments/Contributions may include an amount identified as “Additional City 
Contribution and/or Service Reductions” which represents the amount of funding that needs to be 
eliminated from the budgeted expenses through service reductions and/or additional funding that 
the City would need to contribute to supplement the Zone’s Special Benefit Expenses (excluding 
funding for operational reserves and rehabilitation) to sustain full service maintenance. Whether 
the City chooses to contribute additional funds or implement service reductions is entirely at the 
discretion of the City Council. 

 

 

309



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 28 

Zones 01, 02, & 03 Budgets 
 

 
 

PFMD PFMD PFMD

Zone 01 Zone 02 Zone 03

The Landing Liberty Silva Estates Phase 10

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 7,188$                       21,252$                     6,300$                       

Backflow Testing 45                              225                            45                              

Contract Repair Work 5,000                         30,000                       20,000                       

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 12,233$                   51,477$                   26,345$                   

PGE 450$                          950$                          150$                          

Water 3,000$                       17,000$                     6,000$                       

Utility Expenses 3,450$                     17,950$                   6,150$                     

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 15,683$            69,427$            32,495$            

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection 45,770$                   53,850$                   6,350$                     

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) -$                              -$                              -$                              

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 45,770$            53,850$            6,350$              

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                              -$                              -$                              

Annual Administration Expenses 1,336                       2,518                       819                          

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 1,336$              2,518$              819$                 

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 62,789$            125,795$          39,664$            

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 513                    1,402                392                    

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded (513)$                       (1,402)$                    (392)$                       

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (485)                         (1,814)                      (531)                         

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (998)$                (3,217)$             (923)$                

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 61,791$            122,578$          38,741$            

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                                -                                -                                

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                -                                -                                

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                              -$                              -$                              

BALANCE TO LEVY 61,791$         122,578$       38,741$         

DISTRICT STATISTICS    

Total Parcels 115                          253                          77                             

Assessed Parcels 112                          242                          74                             

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 112.00              242.00              74.00                

Assessment Per EBU $551.70 $506.52 $523.52

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $961.0695 $1,361.9504 $1,278.5889

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 646,909$                1,897,925$             549,750$                

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected 45,770                     53,850                     6,350                       

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 692,679$                1,951,775$             556,100$                

BUDGET ITEMS

310



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 29 

Zones 04, 05, & 06 Budgets 
 

 
 

PFMD PFMD PFMD

Zone 04 Zone 05 Zone 06

Parkview Estates  &               

Heritage Park - Laredo

East Village 

Park/Aniston Place

Heritage Acres

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 5,268$                           8,544$                          3,184$                         

Backflow Testing -                                     90                                 -                                   

Contract Repair Work 14,000                           5,000                            2,000                           

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 19,268$                       13,634$                      5,184$                        

PGE 450$                              1,200$                          3,500$                         

Water 4,000$                           10,000$                        600$                            

Utility Expenses 4,450$                          11,200$                      4,100$                        

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 23,718$                24,834$               9,284$                

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection 40,140$                       41,240$                      56,980$                     

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) -$                                  -$                                 -$                                

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 40,140$                41,240$               56,980$              

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                                  -$                                 -$                                

Annual Administration Expenses 1,064                            1,066                           1,041                          

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 1,064$                  1,066$                 1,041$                

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 64,922$                67,140$               67,305$              

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 302                       452                      407                      

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded (302)$                            (452)$                          (407)$                          

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (468)                              (842)                             (52)                              

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (769)$                    (1,294)$                (459)$                  

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 64,153$                65,846$               66,846$              

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                                     -                                   -                                   

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                     -                                   -                                   

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                                  -$                                 -$                                

BALANCE TO LEVY 64,153$            65,846$           66,846$          

DISTRICT STATISTICS    

Total Parcels 90                                 124                              97                               

Assessed Parcels 90                                 120                              97                               

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 90.00                    120.00                 97.00                   

Assessment Per EBU $712.82 $548.72 $689.14

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $765.4563 $1,628.6125 $843.7422

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 201,423$                     500,745$                    305,782$                   

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected 40,140                          41,240                        56,980                        

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 241,563$                     541,985$                    362,762$                   

BUDGET ITEMS

311



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 30 

Zones 07, 08, & 09 Budgets 
 

 
 

PFMD PFMD PFMD

Zone 07 Zone 08 Zone 09

Capistrano Woodside Lennar

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 972$                          6,684$                       6,948$                       

Backflow Testing -                                45                              90                              

Contract Repair Work 500                            1,000                         750                            

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 1,472$                     7,729$                     7,788$                     

PGE 70$                            1,000$                       180$                          

Water 550$                          800$                          800$                          

Utility Expenses 620$                        1,800$                     980$                        

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 2,092$              9,529$              8,768$              

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection 5,430$                     40,130$                   48,930$                   

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) -$                              -$                              -$                              

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 5,430$              40,130$            48,930$            

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                              -$                              -$                              

Annual Administration Expenses 161                          759                          866                          

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 161$                 759$                 866$                 

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 7,683$              50,418$            58,564$            

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 98                      286.5200          361.9200          

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded (98)$                         (287)$                       (362)$                       

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (25)                           (209)                         (907)                         

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (123)$                (496)$                (1,269)$             

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 7,560$              49,923$            57,296$            

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                                -                                -                                

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                -                                -                                

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                              -$                              -$                              

BALANCE TO LEVY 7,560$           49,923$         57,296$         

DISTRICT STATISTICS    

Total Parcels 20                             66                             90                             

Assessed Parcels 20                             64                             87                             

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 20.00                64.00                87.00                

Assessment Per EBU $378.00 $780.04 $658.58

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $396.1675 $818.0449 $839.8469

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 25,886$                   128,362$                137,028$                

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected 5,430                       40,130                     48,930                     

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 31,316$                   168,492$                185,958$                

BUDGET ITEMS

312



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 31 

Zone 10 Budget and Total PFMD Budget, FY 2023/2024 
 

 
 

PFMD TOTAL

Zone 10 BUDGET

FISCAL YEAR

Energy Homes 2023/2024

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Landscape Contract 1,074$                       67,414$                                 

Backflow Testing 23                              563                                        

Contract Repair Work 125                            78,375                                   

 Annual Contract Maintenance Expenses 1,222$                     146,352$                             

PGE 2,020$                       9,970                                     

Water 600$                          43,350$                                 

Utility Expenses 2,620$                     53,320$                               

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 3,842$              199,672$                    

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Rehabilitation/Renovation Fund Collection 14,900$                   353,720$                             

Capital Improvement Project Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) -$                              -$                                          

ANNUAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 14,900$            353,720$                    

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserve Fund Collection -$                              -$                                          

Annual Administration Expenses 340                          9,971                                   

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 340$                 9,971$                        
-                                             

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 19,082$            563,363$                    

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 150.8000          4,365.6600                

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded (151)$                       (4,366)$                                

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded (100)                         (5,433)                                  

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (252)$                (9,799)$                       

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 18,830$            553,564$                    

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -                                -                                            

Additional City Funding and/or Service Reductions* -                                -                                            

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$                              -$                                          

BALANCE TO LEVY 18,830$         553,564$               

DISTRICT STATISTICS   

Total Parcels 36                             1,173                                   

Assessed Parcels 36                             1,139                                   

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 36.00                1,331.00                     

Assessment Per EBU $523.06

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $548.6425

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 36,042$                   4,429,853$                         

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected 14,900                     353,720                               

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 50,942$                   4,783,573$                         

BUDGET ITEMS

313



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 32 

Part IV -- District Diagrams 

The following section contains a series of diagrams showing the boundaries of the Zones within 
the Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 District for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 which 
incorporate the parcels determined to receive special benefits from the District improvements. In 
addition to depicting the boundaries of the Zones, the diagrams also show the location of the 
improvements within the Zones. The parcels within each Zone consist of all lots, parcels, and 
subdivisions of land within the boundaries as depicted by these diagrams and shall consist of and 
be dictated by the lines and dimensions as those lots, parcels and subdivisions of land shown on 
the Kings County Assessor’s parcel maps for the current year and by reference the Kings County 
Assessor’s parcel maps are incorporated herein and made part of this Report. These diagrams 
along with the Assessment Roll incorporated in this Report constitute the District Assessment 
Diagram for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. 

 

314



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 33 

District Zone Overview 

 

 

315



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 34 

Zone 01 Diagram 

 

316



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 35 

Zone 02 Diagram 

 

317



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 36 

Zone 03 Diagram 

 

318



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 37 

Zone 04 Diagram 

 

319



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 38 

Zone 05 Diagram 

 

320



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 39 

Zone 06 Diagram 

 

321



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 40 

Zone 07 Diagram 

 

322



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 41 

Zone No. 08 Diagram 

 

323



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 42 

Zone No. 09 Diagram 

 

324



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 
  

 Page 43 

Zone No. 10 Diagram 

 

325



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 44 

Part V -- Assessment Rolls 

The following Assessment Rolls incorporate all parcels identified as being within the District and the 
assessment amount for each parcel for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. Each parcel listed on the Assessment 
Roll for each Zone is currently shown and illustrated on the County Assessor's Roll and the County 
Assessor’s Parcel Number Maps (APN maps). These records are by reference, made part of this 
Report and shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or parcels. All 
assessments presented on the assessment rolls are subject to change as a result of parcel changes 
made by the County including parcel splits, parcel merges or development changes that occur prior 
to the County Assessor's Office securing the final roll and generating tax bills for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024. The total Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Assessment revenue for each Zone may be slightly 
different than the “Balance to Levy” indicated for the Zone in Part III - Estimate of Costs due to 
rounding. 

 

Zone 01 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

023-600-001 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-002 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-003 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-004 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-005 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-006 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-007 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-008 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-009 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-012 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-013 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-014 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-015 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-016 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-017 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-018 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-019 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-020 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-021 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-022 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-023 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-024 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-025 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

326



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 45 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

023-600-026 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-027 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-028 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-029 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-030 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-031 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-032 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-033 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-034 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-035 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-036 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-037 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-038 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-039 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-040 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-041 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-043 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-044 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-045 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-046 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-047 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-048 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-049 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-050 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-051 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-052 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-053 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-054 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-055 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-056 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-057 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-058 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-059 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-060 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-061 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-062 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-063 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

327



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 46 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

023-600-064 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-065 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-066 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-067 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-068 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-069 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-070 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-071 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-072 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-600-073 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-600-074 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-001 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-002 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-003 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-004 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-005 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-006 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-007 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-008 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-009 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-010 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-011 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-012 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-013 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-014 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-015 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-016 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-017 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-018 01  Exempt            -     $0.00   

023-620-019 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-020 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-021 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-022 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-023 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-024 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-025 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-026 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

328



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 47 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use  EBU    Assessment 

023-620-027 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-028 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-029 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-030 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-031 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-032 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-033 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-034 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-035 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-036 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-037 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-038 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-039 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-040 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

023-620-041 01   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $551.70   

023-620-042 01  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $551.70   

Total           112.00    
$61,790.4

0 
  

 

Zone 02 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-780-001 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-002 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-003 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-004 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-005 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-006 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-007 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-008 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-009 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-010 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-011 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-012 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-013 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-014 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

329



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 48 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-780-015 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-016 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-017 02  Exempt         -     $0.00   

021-780-018 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-019 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-020 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-021 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-022 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-023 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-024 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-025 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-026 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-027 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-028 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-029 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-030 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-031 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-032 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-033 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-034 02   Exempt         -      $0.00   

021-780-035 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-036 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-037 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-038 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-039 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-040 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-041 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-042 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-043 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-044 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-045 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-046 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-047 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-048 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-049 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-050 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-051 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-052 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-053 02  Exempt         -     $0.00   

021-780-054 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

330



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 49 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-780-055 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-056 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-057 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-058 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-059 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-060 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-061 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-062 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-063 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-064 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-065 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-066 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-067 02  Exempt         -     $0.00   

021-780-068 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-069 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-070 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-071 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-072 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-073 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-074 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-075 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-076 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-077 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-078 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-780-079 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-780-080 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-001 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-002 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-003 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-004 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-005 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-006 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-007 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-008 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-009 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-010 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-011 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-012 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-013 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-014 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

331



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 50 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-790-015 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-016 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-017 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-018 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-019 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-020 02   Exempt         -      $0.00   

021-790-021 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-022 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-023 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-024 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-025 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-026 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-027 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-028 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-029 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-030 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-031 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-032 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-033 02  Exempt         -     $0.00   

021-790-034 02   Exempt         -      $0.00   

021-790-035 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-036 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-037 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-038 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-039 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-040 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-041 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-042 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-043 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-044 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-045 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-046 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-047 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-048 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-049 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-050 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-051 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-052 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-053 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-054 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

332



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 51 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-790-055 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-056 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-057 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-058 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-059 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-060 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-061 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-062 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-063 02  Exempt         -     $0.00   

021-790-064 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-065 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-066 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-067 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-068 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-069 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-070 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-071 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-072 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-073 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-790-074 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-790-075 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-001 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-002 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-003 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-004 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-005 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-006 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-007 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-008 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-009 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-010 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-011 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-012 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-013 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-014 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-015 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-016 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-017 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-018 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-019 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

333



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 52 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-800-020 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-021 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-022 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-023 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-024 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-025 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-026 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-027 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-028 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-029 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-030 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-031 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-032 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-033 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-034 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-035 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-036 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-037 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-038 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-039 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-040 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-041 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-042 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-043 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-044 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-045 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-046 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-047 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-048 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-049 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-050 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-051 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-052 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-053 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-054 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-055 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-056 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-057 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-058 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-059 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

334



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 53 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-800-060 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-061 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-062 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-063 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-064 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-065 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-066 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-067 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-068 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-069 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-800-070 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-800-071 02   Exempt         -      $0.00   

021-810-001 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-002 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-003 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-004 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-005 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-006 02   Exempt         -      $0.00   

021-810-007 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-008 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-009 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-010 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-011 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-012 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-013 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-014 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-015 02  Exempt         -     $0.00   

021-810-016 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-017 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-018 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-019 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-020 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-021 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-022 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-023 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-024 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-025 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

021-810-026 02   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $506.52   

021-810-027 02  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $506.52   

Total        242.00    $122,577.84   

335



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 54 

 

Zone 03 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-360-008 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-009 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-010 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-011 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-012 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-013 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-014 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-015 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-016 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-017 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-018 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-019 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-020 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-021 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-022 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-023 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-024 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-025 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-026 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-027 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-028 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-029 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-030 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-031 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-032 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-033 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-034 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-035 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-036 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-037 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-043 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-044 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-045 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

336



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 55 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-360-046 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-047 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-048 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-049 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-050 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-051 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-052 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-053 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-054 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-055 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-056 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-057 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-058 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-059 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-060 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-061 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-062 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-063 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-064 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-065 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-066 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-067 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-068 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-069 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-070 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-071 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-072 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-073 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-074 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-075 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-076 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-077 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-078 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-079 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-080 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-081 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-082 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

337



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 56 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-360-083 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-084 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-085 03  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.52   

023-360-086 03   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.52   

023-360-087 03  Exempt            -     $0.00   

023-360-088 03   Exempt            -      $0.00   

023-360-089 03  Exempt            -     $0.00   

Total             74.00    $38,740.48   

 
 

Zone 04 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-260-004 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-005 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-006 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-007 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-008 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-009 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-010 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-011 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-012 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-013 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-014 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-015 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-016 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-017 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-018 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-019 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-020 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-021 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-022 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-023 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-024 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

338



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 57 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-260-025 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-026 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-027 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-028 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-029 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-030 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-031 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-032 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-033 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-034 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-035 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-036 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-037 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-038 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-039 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-040 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-041 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-042 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-044 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-045 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-046 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-047 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-048 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-049 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-050 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-051 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-052 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-053 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-054 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-055 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-056 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-057 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-058 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-059 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-060 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-061 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-062 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

339



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 58 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-260-063 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-064 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-065 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-066 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-067 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-068 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-069 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-070 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-071 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-072 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-073 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-074 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-075 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-076 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-077 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-078 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-079 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-080 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-081 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-082 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-083 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-084 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-085 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-086 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-087 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-088 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-089 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-090 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-091 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-092 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

021-260-093 04  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $712.82   

021-260-094 04   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $712.82   

Total             90.00    $64,153.80   

 
 

340



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 59 

 

Zone 05 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-610-001 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-002 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-003 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-004 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-005 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-006 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-007 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-008 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-009 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-010 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-011 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-012 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-013 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-014 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-015 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-016 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-017 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-018 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-019 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-020 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-021 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-022 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-023 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-024 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-025 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-026 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-027 05  Exempt            -     $0.00   

023-610-028 05   Exempt            -      $0.00   

023-610-033 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-034 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-035 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-036 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-037 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

341



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 60 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-610-038 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-039 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-040 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-041 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-042 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-044 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-045 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-046 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-047 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-048 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-049 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-050 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-051 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-052 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-053 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-054 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-055 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-056 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-057 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-058 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-059 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-060 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-061 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-062 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-063 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-065 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-066 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-067 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-068 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-069 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-070 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-071 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-072 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-073 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-074 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-075 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-076 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

342



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 61 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-610-077 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-078 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-079 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-080 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-081 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-082 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-083 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-084 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-090 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-091 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-092 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-610-093 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-610-095 05  Exempt            -     $0.00   

023-610-097 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-001 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-002 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-003 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-004 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-005 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-006 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-007 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-008 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-009 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-010 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-011 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-012 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-013 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-014 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-015 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-016 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-017 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-018 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-019 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-020 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-021 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-022 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-023 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

343



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 62 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-630-024 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-025 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-026 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-027 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-028 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-029 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-030 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-031 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-032 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-033 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-034 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-035 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-036 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-037 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-038 05   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $548.72   

023-630-039 05  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $548.72   

023-630-040 05   Exempt            -      $0.00   

Total           120.00    $65,846.40   

 
 

Zone 06 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-820-001 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-002 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-003 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-004 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-005 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-006 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-007 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-008 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-009 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-010 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-011 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-012 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

344



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 63 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-820-013 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-014 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-015 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-016 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-017 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-018 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-019 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-020 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-021 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-022 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-023 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-024 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-025 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-026 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-027 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-028 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-029 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-030 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-031 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-820-032 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-820-033 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-002 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-003 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-004 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-005 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-006 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-007 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-008 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-009 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-010 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-011 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-012 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-013 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-014 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-015 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-016 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-017 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-018 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-019 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-020 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

345



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 64 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-830-021 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-022 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-023 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-024 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-025 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-026 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-027 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-028 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-029 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-030 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-031 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-032 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-033 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-034 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-036 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-037 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-038 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-039 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-040 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-041 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-042 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-043 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-044 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-045 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-046 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-047 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-048 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-049 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-050 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-051 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-052 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-053 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-054 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-055 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-056 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-057 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-058 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-059 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-060 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-061 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

346



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 65 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-830-062 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-063 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-064 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

021-830-065 06   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $689.14   

021-830-066 06  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $689.14   

Total          97.00    $66,846.58   

 

Zone 07 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-640-001 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-002 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-003 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-004 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-005 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-006 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-007 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-008 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-009 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-010 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-011 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-012 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-013 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-014 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-015 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-016 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-017 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-018 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

023-640-019 07  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $378.00   

023-640-020 07   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $378.00   

Total             20.00    $7,560.00   

 

347



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 66 

Zone 08 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-650-001 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-002 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-003 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-004 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-005 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-006 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-007 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-008 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-009 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-010 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-011 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-012 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-013 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-014 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-015 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-016 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-017 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-018 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-019 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-020 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-021 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-022 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-023 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-024 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-025 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-026 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-027 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-028 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-029 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-030 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-031 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-032 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-033 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-034 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-035 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-036 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-037 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-038 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-039 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

348



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 67 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-650-040 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-041 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-042 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-043 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-044 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-045 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-046 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-047 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-048 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-049 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-050 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-051 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-052 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-053 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-054 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-055 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-056 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-057 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-058 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-059 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-060 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-061 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-062 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-063 08  Residential Single-Family      1.00   $780.04   

023-650-064 08   Residential Single-Family      1.00    $780.04   

023-650-065 08  Exempt         -     $0.00   

023-650-066 08   Exempt         -      $0.00   

Total          64.00    $49,922.56   

 

349



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 68 

Zone 09 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-570-002 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-003 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-004 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-005 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-006 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-007 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-008 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-009 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-010 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-011 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-012 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-013 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-014 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-015 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-016 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-017 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-018 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-019 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-020 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-021 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-022 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-023 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-024 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-025 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-026 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-027 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-028 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-029 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-030 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-031 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-032 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-033 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-034 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-035 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

350



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 69 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-570-036 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-037 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-038 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-039 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-040 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-041 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-042 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-043 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-044 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-045 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-046 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-047 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-048 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-049 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-050 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-051 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-052 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-053 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-054 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-055 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-056 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-057 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-058 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-059 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-060 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-061 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-062 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-063 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-064 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-065 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-066 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-067 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-068 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-069 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-070 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-071 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-072 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

351



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 70 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

021-570-073 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-074 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-075 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-076 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-077 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-078 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-079 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-080 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-081 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-082 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-083 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-084 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-085 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-086 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-087 09   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $658.58   

021-570-088 09  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $658.58   

021-570-089 09   Exempt            -      $0.00   

021-570-090 09  Exempt            -     $0.00   

021-570-091 09   Exempt            -      $0.00   

Total             87.00    $57,296.46   

 

Zone 10 Assessment Roll 
 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-160-039 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-040 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-041 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-042 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-043 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-044 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-045 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-046 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-047 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-048 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

352



Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

 

 

  

 Page 71 

Assessor 
Parcel           

Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 

Number Zone   Land Use EBU   Assessment 

023-160-049 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-050 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-051 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-052 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-053 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-054 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-055 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-056 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-057 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-058 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-059 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-060 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-061 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-062 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-063 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-064 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-065 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-066 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-067 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-068 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-069 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-070 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-071 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-072 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

023-160-073 10   Residential Single-Family        1.00    $523.06   

023-160-074 10  Residential Single-Family        1.00   $523.06   

Total             36.00    $18,830.16   

 

353



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  Fax (559) 924-9003 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 5-2 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Randon Reeder, Management Analyst   
Date: July 8, 2023     Meeting Date:    July 18, 2023 
Subject: First Reading – Ordinance 2023-03 – Amending Chapter 6, Title 3, 

Section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Pertaining to Speed Limits 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approval of the introduction of Ordinance 2023-03, Amending Chapter 6, Title 3, Section 
2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code pertaining to Speed Limits. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The Lemoore Police Department collected field data at forty-seven (47) locations shown 
in the attachment. This data is used to obtain the speeds at which cars travel in specified 
locations. It is recommended through the California Vehicle Code that speeds be set 
around the 85th percentile speed established through the engineering and traffic study. 
California Vehicle Code 22357 allows municipalities to make changes to speed limits over 
25 miles per hour upon the basis of an engineering and traffic study.  The change in 
ordinance would allow council to update speed limits by future approvals of the speed 
study and no longer require a new ordinance per speed study.  
 
Streets with increasing speed limits: 
 
Street Section Exist 

Speed 
Recommended 
Speed 

Lemoore Avenue Hanford-Armona Rd to 
Faun Ln 

35 40 

354



Lemoore Avenue HWY 198 to Iona Ave 45 50 
West “D” St. Olive St. to 19th Ave 35 40 
West “D” St 19th Ave. to West Bush St. 35 45 
East “D” St 0.1 Mile East of Smith St to 

East City Limits 
40 45 

Cinnamon Dr. Fox St. to 19th Ave 35 40 
Cinnamon Dr. 300 Feet West of Venice 

Ave. to Lemoore Ave 
30 35 

19th Ave 19th Ave to 19 ½ Ave 35 40 
Hanford Armona Rd. Opal Ave to North Lemoore 

Ave 
35 40 

Hanford Armona Rd. Fox St to Lemoore Ave 35 40 
Hanford Armona Rd. Fox St to Liberty Dr 35 40 

Bush St Lemoore Ave to Locust St 25 30 
Iona Ave 18th Ave to Vine St 35 40 
Iona Ave 18th Ave to 19th Ave 35 45 

Bush Street College Ave to Marsh Dr 25 35 
19 ½ Ave Sonoma Ave to Bush St 35 40 

Hanford Armona Rd. Liberty Dr to 19th Ave 35 40 
Bellehaven Dr Bush St to Royal Ln 40 45 

19th Ave Iona Ave to 400 yards north 
of Idaho Ave 

35 45 

 
Financial Consideration(s): 
N/A 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Alternatives: Council could decline the speed study which would prevent Lemoore Police 
Department from writing speeding tickets at locations described herein.  
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the introduction of Ordinance 2023-03, amending section 
6-3-2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code pertaining to speed zone changes. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☐ Asst. City Manager    
☒ Ordinance: 2023-xx  ☒ City Attorney 7/14/2023 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 7/14/2023 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 7/12/2023 
☐ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  

355



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING TITLE 6, CHAPTER 3, SECTION 2 OF THE LEMOORE MUNICIPAL 

CODE PERTAINING TO SPEED LIMITS 
 
The City Council of the City of Lemoore does ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 6-3-2A of the Lemoore Municipal Code is hereby amended in its entirety 
to read as follows: 
 
Speed limits in the zones should be established by the most recent speed study that has been 
approved and accepted by both Chief of Police as well as City Council.  
 
A.   SPEED LIMIT ZONES 
  
Lemoore Avenue from Bush Street to D Street. 
Bush Street from College Avenue to Marsh Street. 
Bush Street from Lemoore Avenue to Locust Street. 
Vine Street from Highway 198 to Bush Street. 
Lemoore Avenue from Highway 198 to Bush Street. 
West D Street from Hill Street to Olive Street. 
West Bush Street from Byron Street to Fox Street. 
Bush Street from Fox Street to Lemoore Avenue. 
West Bush Street from 19th Avenue to 19 1/2 Avenue. 
West Bush Street from 19th Avenue to Byron Street. 
East D Street, 200 block east to 1/10 mile east of Smith Street. 
West D Street from Olive Street to 19th Avenue. 
West Hanford-Armona Road from Lemoore Avenue to Fox Street. 
Lemoore Avenue from G Street to Hanford-Armona Road. 
19th Avenue from Highway 198 to Cedar Lane. 
Cinnamon Drive from Lemoore Avenue to Fox Street. 
Iona Avenue from 18th Avenue to Vine Street. 
Iona Avenue from Vine Street to 19th Avenue. 
Cinnamon Drive from Carla Drive to Hanford-Armona Road. 
Cinnamon Drive from 300 feet west of Venice Avenue to Lemoore Avenue. 
191/2 Avenue from Bush Street to Cinnamon Drive. 
191/2 Avenue from Sonoma Avenue to Bush Street. 
Silverado Drive from 19th Avenue to Sonoma Avenue. 

356



East Hanford-Armona Road from 100 yards east of Opal Avenue extended to Lemoore Avenue. 
Lemoore Avenue from Hanford-Armona Road to Faun Lane. 
Lemoore Avenue from Faun Lane to Glendale Avenue. 
West D Street from 19th Avenue to West Bush Street. 
Cinnamon Drive from Fox Street to 19th Avenue. 
19th Avenue from Cedar Lane to Bush Street. 
19th Avenue from West Bush Street to Cinnamon Drive. 
Fox Street from Cinnamon Drive to Hanford-Armona Road. 
Liberty Drive from Cinnamon Drive to Hanford-Armona Road. 
Hanford-Armona Road from Fox Street to Liberty Drive. 
Hanford-Armona Road from Liberty Drive to 19th Avenue. 
West Cinnamon Drive from 19th Avenue to 191/2 Avenue. 
19th Avenue from Cinnamon Drive to Hanford-Armona Road. 
Bush Street from Locust Street to East D Street. 
Bellehaven Drive from Bush Street to Royal Lane. 
East D Street 1/10 mile east of Smith Street to east city limits. 
East Hanford-Armona Road 100 yards east of Opal Avenue extended to the east city limits. 
Bush Street from Bellehaven Drive to College Drive. 
Bellehaven Drive from Bush Street to north city limits. 
Lemoore Avenue from Iona Avenue to Highway 198. 
Hanford-Armona Road from 19th Avenue to Highway 41. 
18th Avenue from Iona Avenue to south city limits. 

 
SECTION 2. The City Council declares that each provision of this ordinance is severable and 
independent of every other provision.  If any portion of this ordinance is held invalid, the City 
Council declares that it would have adopted the remaining provisions of this ordinance irrespective 
of the portion held invalid, and further declares its express intent that the remaining provisions of 
this ordinance should remain in effect after the invalid portion has been eliminated. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption and will not be 
codified in the City’s Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 4.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a summary of this Ordinance to be 
published by one insertion in a newspaper of general circulation in the community at least five (5) 
days prior to adoption and again fifteen (15) days after its adoption. If a summary of the ordinance 
is published, then the City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of the full text of the proposed 
ordinance to be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least five (5) days prior to the Council 
meeting at which the ordinance is adopted, and again after the meeting at which the ordinance is 
adopted. The summary shall be approved by the City Attorney.  
 

357



The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 18th day of July 2023 and was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council held on the 1st day of August 2023 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  

 NOES:   

 ABSENT:   

 ABSTAIN:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Marisa Avalos      Patricia Matthews  
City Clerk      Mayor  

358



 
 

MEMO 

901 E. Main Street ⬥ Visalia, California 93292  ⬥  Tel (559) 733-0440  ⬥  Fax (559) 733-7821 
www.qkinc.com 

 
Date: April 27, 2023 Project No.: 230095    

 

To: Mr. Frank Rivera, Public Works Director 

From: Jeff Cowart, City Engineer 

Subject: 2023 City of Lemoore Speed Zone Study 

cc: Kevin Gross, PE, John Doyel, PE 

This memorandum outlines the engineering and traffic survey conducted at various 
locations throughout the City of Lemoore, California, in order to recommend appropriate 
speed zones for the studied roadways. Each location was divided into both directions of 
travel to ensure the street segments having unique characteristics were individually 
surveyed. This analysis and recommendations for speed zones followed the California 
Vehicle Code (CVC) requirements and the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (CA MUTCD). 

Background  

Chapter 7 of Division 11 of the CVC deals with speed laws. Per CVC Section 22357, whenever 
a local authority determines “… upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey, that a 
speed greater than 25 miles per hour would facilitate the orderly movement of vehicular 
traffic and would be reasonable and safe… (it) … may by ordinance determine and declare a 
prima facie speed limit of 30, 35, 40, 45, 50, 55, 60 miles per hour, or a maximum speed limit 
of 65 miles per hour, whichever is found most appropriate to facilitate the orderly movement 
of traffic and is reasonable and safe.” 
 

Data Collection and Analysis 

Lemoore PD collected field data for the (47) locations shown on Attachment 2 on various 
dates between Tuesday, September 20, 2022 and Wednesday, October 12, 2022. Data for 
each zone was collected using a radar traffic speed meter. Data collected was recorded on 
the Vehicle Speed Survey Sheets that are attached. Each radar speed check was made by 
consultant personnel from an inconspicuously parked, unmarked vehicle. An effort was 
made to ensure that the vehicle’s presence in no way affected the speed of the surveyed 
traffic. 

List of Locations 

1. Lemoore Avenue between HWY 198 and Bush Street 
2. Lemoore Avenue between “G” Street and Hanford-Armona Road 
3. Lemoore Avenue between Hanford-Armona Road and Faun Lane 
4. Lemoore Avenue between Faun Lane and Glendale Avenue 
5. Lemoore Avenue between HWY 198 and Iona Avenue 
6. Lemoore Avenue between Bush Street to “D” Street 
7. West “D” Street between Hill Street and Olive Street 
8. West “D” Street between Olive Street and 19th Avenue 
9. West “D” Street between 19th Avenue and West Bush Street 

359



 
 MEMO PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

 

901 E. Main Street ⬥ Visalia, California 93292  ⬥  Tel (559) 733-0440  ⬥  Fax (559) 733-7821 
www.qkinc.com 

 

10. East “D” Street between the 200 Block of “D” Street to 0.1 Miles East of Smith Street 
11. East “D” Street between 0.1 Miles East of Smith Street to East City Limits 
12. Cinnamon Drive between North Lemoore Avenue and Fox Street 
13. Cinnamon Drive between Fox Street and 19th Avenue 
14. Cinnamon Drive between 300 Feet West of Venice Avenue and Lemoore Avenue 
15. Cinnamon Drive between 19th Avenue and 19-1/2 Avenue 
16. 19th Avenue between Cedar Lane and Bush Street 
17. 19th Avenue between Cedar Lane and HWY 198 
18. 19th Avenue between Cinnamon Drive and West Bush Street 
19. 19th Avenue between Cinnamon Drive and Hanford-Armona Road 
20. Hanford-Armona Road between East City Limits and Opal Avenue 
21. Hanford-Armona Road between Opal Avenue and North Lemoore Avenue 
22. Hanford-Armona Road between Fox Street and Lemoore Avenue 
23. Hanford-Armona Road between Fox Street and Liberty Drive 
24. Hanford-Armona Road between Liberty Drive and HWY 41 
25. Bush Street between Lemoore Avenue and Locust Street 
26. Bush Street between Byron Street and Fox Street 
27. Bush Street between Byron Street and 19th Avenue 
28. Bush Street between 19th Avenue and 19-1/2 Avenue 
29. Bush Street between Locust Street and “D” Street 
30. Bush Street between Fox Street and Lemoore Avenue 
31. Vine Street between Bush Street and HWY 198 
32. Iona Avenue between 18th Avenue and Vine Street 
33. Fox Street between Cinnamon Drive and Hanford-Armona Road 
34. Liberty Drive between Cinnamon Drive and Hanford-Armona Road 
35. Iona Avenue between 18th Avenue and 19th Avenue 
36. Cinnamon Drive between Carla Drive and Hanford-Armona Road 
37. Bush Street between Bellehaven Drive and College Avenue 
38. 19-1/2 Avenue between Bush Street and Cinnamon Drive 
39. Bellehaven Drive between Bush Street and North City Limits 
40. Bush Street between College Avenue and Marsh Drive 
41. 19-1/2 Avenue between Sonoma Avenue and Bush Street 
42. Silverado Drive between 19th Avenue and Sonoma Avenue 
43. 18th Avenue between Iona Avenue and South City Limits 
44. Hanford-Armona Road between Liberty Drive and 19th Avenue 
45. Bellehaven Drive between Bush Street and Royal Lane 
46. 19th Avenue between Iona Avenue and 400 Yards North of Idaho Avenue 
47. Cedar Lane between 19th Avenue and 19-1/2 Avenue 

 

The data includes the location of the speed survey, date and time, direction of traffic 
observed, number of lanes, paved roadway width, posted speed limit, weather, and whether 
the segment is in a business district, residential district, or school zone. 
 
 

360



 
 MEMO PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

 

901 E. Main Street ⬥ Visalia, California 93292  ⬥  Tel (559) 733-0440  ⬥  Fax (559) 733-7821 
www.qkinc.com 

 

The lower body of the form consists of a summary table of various calculated parameters. An 
explanation of the data and terms follows: 
 
• The assumed speed limit without an approved speed zone is given based on the segment 

lying within a business district, residential district, or school zone. 
 

• The average speed is the total of all the vehicle speeds divided by the number of vehicles 
in the sample. 
 

• The 10 MPH pace speed is the 10 miles per hour increment of observed speeds, which 
contains the greatest number of vehicles. In nearly all cases, the 85th-percentile speed 
and the recommended speed limit lie somewhere within the pace, frequently in the 
middle to upper ranges. This is an important indicator used to determine appropriate 
speed limits. 

 
The number of vehicles within the pace is an indication of the bunching of vehicular 
speeds. Ideally, if all vehicles were traveling at or about the same speed, there would be 
a reduced likelihood of traffic collisions. In speed limit analysis, the higher the number 
(percentage) of vehicles within the pace, the better the speed distribution. 

 
• The critical (85%) speed (or 85th-percentile speed) is that speed at or below which 85 

percent of the observed vehicles are traveling. The 85th-percentile speed is the primary 
indicator of a speed limit that might be imposed subject to the secondary factors of 
collision experience and highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily apparent 
to the driver. 

 
Per the CA MUTCD, a posted speed limit “shall be established at the nearest 5 mph increment 
of the 85th-percentile speed of free-flowing traffic, except as shown in the two options 
below.” 
 
Option 
 
1. The posted speed may be reduced by 5 mph from the nearest 5 mph increment of the 

85th-percentile speed, in compliance with CVC Sections 627 and 22358.5.   
2. For cases in which the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th-percentile speed would 

require rounding up, then the speed limit may be rounded down to the nearest 5 mph 
increment below the 85th-percentile speed, if no further reduction is used. Refer to CVC 
Section 21400(b). 

 
Also, per the CA MUTCD, if the posted speed limit “has had the 5 mph reduction applied, then 
an engineering and traffic survey shall document in writing the conditions and justification 
for the lower speed limit and be approved by a registered Civil or Traffic Engineer.” 
 
Results 

361



 
 MEMO PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

 

901 E. Main Street ⬥ Visalia, California 93292  ⬥  Tel (559) 733-0440  ⬥  Fax (559) 733-7821 
www.qkinc.com 

 

Results of the speed study are attached in Attachment 1. 

Collision Review 

Per the CA MUTCD, the most recent two-year collision records should be reviewed when 
determining appropriate speed limits. Collision data was obtained from the California 
Highway Patrol’s State-Wide Integrated Traffic Records System (SWITRS) for the years 2021 
and 2022. During this two-year period, there were no collisions on the road segments 
surveyed resulting in fatalities. Therefore, a speed reduction based on collision history is not 
recommended for the roadway segments studied.  See Attachment 3 for SWITRS Collision 
information.  
 

Conclusion 

Based on the speed data collected and a review of the collision history and conditions not 
readily apparent to the driver, the recommended speed limit for all 47 segments are shown 
in the attached spreadsheet (Attachment 1).   
 

Attachment 1- Speed Survey Data 

Attachment 2- Speed Survey Counts 

Attachment 3 – SWITRS Collision Report (2021, 2022) 

 

 
 

362



85% PACE-10MPH  % IN PACE STAFF COUNCIL

7

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

6

Residential Density 3535 42

35

0.1 MILE EAST OF SMITH ST. 
TO EAST CITY LIMITS 40 45 35-45 78% 45

35 42 32-42 59% Residential Density; Road Geometry200 BLK. OF "D" ST. TO 0.1 
MILE EAST OF SMITH ST.

HILL ST. TO OLIVE ST. 30 37 28-38 77% Residential Density 30

35 43 31-41 70% 40

19TH AVE. TO WEST BUSH ST. 35 48 34-44 61% 45

Residential DensityOLIVE ST. TO 19TH AVE.

BUSH ST. TO G ST. 25 34 24-34 86% Residential Density

Residential Density 35

HWY 198 TO IONA AVE. 45 50

Adjacent private school, high pedestrian area. 35

4035 Residential Density

41 31-41 85%

53 45-55 79%

30

44 31-41 74%

NORTH LEMOORE AVE. TO 
FOX ST. 30-40 76%

G ST. TO HANFORD-ARMONA 
RD.

FINDINGS
  RECOMMENDED SPEED

STAFF NOTES

HWY 198 TO BUSH ST. 30 Residential Density, Adjacent High School, High 
pedestrian area. 30

41 31-41 84%

36 25-35 74%

35

CITY   OF   LEMOORE

2023 ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

COUNT
ER STREET SECTION EXIST

SPEED

ENGINEERING & TRAFFIC SURVEY - 2023

CINNAMON DR.

EAST "D" ST.

WEST "D" ST.

LEMOORE AVE.

HANFORD-ARMONA RD. TO 
FAUN LN.

FAUN LN. TO GLENDALE AVE. 35

MAY, 2005 PAGE 1 PUBLIC WORKS - ENGINEERING 
363



85% PACE-10MPH  % IN PACE STAFF COUNCIL
FINDINGS

  RECOMMENDED SPEED
STAFF NOTES

CITY   OF   LEMOORE

2023 ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

COUNT
ER STREET SECTION EXIST

SPEED

ENGINEERING & TRAFFIC SURVEY - 2023

25

19

20

21

22

23

24

13

14

15

16

17

18

Residential Density 45

BUSH ST. LEMOORE AVE. TO LOCUST 
ST. 25 36 24-34

Residential Density 40

74% High Pedestrian Traffic; Crosswalk; Adjacent 
School; On-Street Parking 30

Residential Density 35

LIBERTY DR. TO HWY 41 45 49 39-49 77%

40

FOX ST. TO LIBERTY DR. 35 47 35-45 67%

40

FOX ST. TO LEMOORE AVE. 35

HANFORD-
ARMONA RD.

OPAL AVE. TO NORTH 
LEMOORE AVE. 35 44 34-44 76%

EAST CITY LIMITS TO OPAL 
AVE. 40 49 36-46 60%

Residential Density, on-street parking; mid-block 
crosswalk connecting residential areas to the 

park
40

CEDAR LN. TO BUSH ST. 35 42 33-43 76% Residential Density 35

19TH AVE. TO 19-1/2 AVE. 35 43 33-43 83% 40

43 33-43 80%

300 FEET WEST OF VENICE 
AVE. TO LEMOORE AVE. 30 39 25-35 70%

40

35

FOX ST. TO 19TH AVE. 35

CINNAMON DR. TO WEST 
BUSH ST. 35 40 32-42 84%

CINNAMON DR. TO HANFORD-
ARMONA RD.

30-40 80%41

CEDAR LN. HWY 198 35 42 33-43 81% Residential Density, Adjacent Elementary 
School, High pedestrian area. 35

35 43 33-43 82% Residential Density 35

19TH AVE.

CINNAMON DR.

MAY, 2005 PAGE 2 PUBLIC WORKS - ENGINEERING 
364



85% PACE-10MPH  % IN PACE STAFF COUNCIL
FINDINGS

  RECOMMENDED SPEED
STAFF NOTES

CITY   OF   LEMOORE

2023 ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

COUNT
ER STREET SECTION EXIST

SPEED

ENGINEERING & TRAFFIC SURVEY - 2023

VINE ST.

IONA AVE.

31

32

33

34

35

36

26

27

28

29

30

CINNAMON DR. CARLA DR. TO HANFORD-
ARMONA RD. 35

FOX ST.

LIBERTY DR.

IONA AVE. 18TH AVE. TO 19TH AVE. 35

CINNAMON DR. TO HANFORD-
ARMONA RD. 35

BUSH ST. TO HWY 198 30 40 30-40 69% Residential Density; Adjacent School; On-Street 
Parking 30

35 45 35-45 71%

Residential Density; On-Street Parking; 
Roadway Geometry

Residential Density

Residential Density; Road Geometry

35

FOX ST. TO LEMOORE AVE. 30 40 29-39 72%

LOCUST ST. TO "D" ST. 35 42 30-40 73% On-Street Parking; Adjacent School; Residential 
Density

Residential Density 35

35

Residential Density; On-Street Parking; Adjacent 
Park 30

19TH AVE. TO 19-1/2 AVE. 35 44 32-42 71%

BYRON DR. TO 19TH AVE. 35 42 33-43 78% Residential Density

Residential Density; On-Street Parking 35BYRON DR. TO FOX ST. 35 42 32-42 79%

44 34-44 89%

39 27-37 74%

Non-Lit pedestrian crosswalk

BUSH ST.

41 29-39 74%

42 34-44 82%

40

CINNAMON DR. TO HANFORD-
ARMONA RD. 35

18TH AVE TO VINE ST.

35

35

45

35

MAY, 2005 PAGE 3 PUBLIC WORKS - ENGINEERING 
365



85% PACE-10MPH  % IN PACE STAFF COUNCIL
FINDINGS

  RECOMMENDED SPEED
STAFF NOTES

CITY   OF   LEMOORE

2023 ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

COUNT
ER STREET SECTION EXIST

SPEED

ENGINEERING & TRAFFIC SURVEY - 2023

Residential Density

19TH AVE. IONA AVE. TO 400 YARDS 
NORTH OF IDAHO AVE. 35 49

53 45-55 73%

Residential Density

SILVERADO DR. 19TH AVE. TO SONOMA AVE. 35

43

44

45

46

47

37

38

39

40

41

42

35CEDAR LN. 19TH AVE. TO 19-1/2 AVE. 35 39 30-40 81%

30-40 72%

BUSH ST. COLLEGE AVE. TO MARSH DR. 25

Residential Density; Lane GeometryHANFORD-
ARMONA RD. LIBERTY DR. TO 19TH AVE. 35

18TH AVE. IONA AVE. TO SOUTH CITY 
LIMITS 50 54

76%

45

BELLEHAVEN 
DR.

BUSH ST. TO NORTH CITY 
LIMITS 40

65%

44 31-41 71%

34-44

19-1/2 AVE. 75%

48 36-46 66%

BUSH ST. TO CINNAMON DR. 35

19-1/2 AVE. SONOMA AVE. TO BUSH ST. 35

BUSH ST. BELLEHAVEN DR. TO 
COLLEGE AVE. 40 Roadway Geometry

35

44 36-46 76%

43 33-43

44

Commercial Area; Roadway Geometry

Residential Density

68%

Residential Density

Adjacent College; Pedestrian Traffic & College 
Traffic

43

40

40

35

40

35

50

40

45

36-46

BELLEHAVEN 
DR. BUSH ST. TO ROYAL LN. 40

45-55 81%

46 35-45

MAY, 2005 PAGE 4 PUBLIC WORKS - ENGINEERING 
366



367



California Manual for Setting Speed Limits 

(_:7-'.\ 
A.1.3 - Vehicle Speed Survey Template

I 

VEHICLE SPEED SURVEY SHEET 

City: L£°tlC¥>/!..l: 
· 

Date: f-Q/-� zcz:z_ Post Mile:-------=-
Location: UfHcoA£- Jlw 1'18 ro ·i..,s Z Weather: _S:..o(_,,.,;.c....:J_· J.../ _____ Posted Speed: Z <
Recorder Name: _jci.J ?ro.·� Begin Tirrie: C..9oc End Time: /cot 

Number of Vehicles 

Total Cwnulativc 

mph 5 JO 15 20 25 Total 
55 
54 
53 

52 
51 

50 ·-x I Z..bO 

49 
48 
47 
46 

45 Ix' X Z- i9?
44 
43 
42 l'V ·y X 3 I? 7 
41 IX IV )(. -� 1 -ii<t 
40 ,X "' V '),( Lj l'i'r 
39 )c \i ")< � iX :; !87
38 .'}c: I I P,-z_ 
37 IY ')( '){ 'X '),( )( "' i/:j/ 
36 I.,( )( x' )< )( :)< )(' >< :x )( )( ){ I� )c' V )c l'x' IV I 9.. ( 7� 
35 IX � ·v )/_ r\t' " V 'v ·v v )<' V "\t /3 1)7
34 x )(' '\I l">l ')('. V V ·v \t )c: V If I if.cf.. 
33 ·v )( \, x \I V V ')< y '-I , �3 
32 )( ')( ')( ); V ''v y "'}.( )( \t k V V !.:5 / VI 
31 :y X 'L )c _Y \t V V I� I)( V II /II � 
30 ')( .')j )( x' "' ')c y ',( V IX r?< � V /'3 /C)C) 

29 \t x' X )< X X )( X � x' /cJ �7 E 

'x V V IY 'y X' iY V' iY x V (7 28 .... "' '>( "V V iY ·77 0 

27 ''><'. '), ...... '-.,<_ :x l'X "x" ·v .... ··'>t_ I\< \, > \(I l'X' /5 (.o 
26 1X \, . '), X tv Ix l°x' � "' " )< \( /2. .:/� 

25 )< ) )C .x. l'x" ) )( )c ')( [ ')< )<'. -� )< ')( I>< :ll )< X IX .')( )< l'v X Z.3 35 
IX >< X ')(f)( "')( )< \, ')( 9 24 /0 >-. 

23 .')( I I 
E--

0) 

22" ·-
21 

Number of Free Flow Vehicles Counted: zco # to count up: jJ_ 0 
85th percentile calculation: Total @times 0.85 = (70

This vehicle's speed was: _ mph 
Numbec

�

peedc __ 

Signed: � C L "1 L i/z.c,r Date: �§2'1 z-1
1 

zcz.-z_Title: _____ ..,.. __ _

Note: You may find the original excel spreadsheet on the HQ Traffic Engineering Website: 

© 2013 by the California Department of Transportation_ All rights reserved Page 55 

Average Speed  ___

368



Average Speed  __

369



Average Speed ___

370



Average Speed  ___

371



Average Speed  ___

372



Average Speed  ___

373



Average Speed  ___

374



Average Speed  ___

375



Average Speed  ___

376



Average Speed  ___

377



Average Speed  ___

378



Average Speed  ___

379



Average Speed  ___

380



Average Speed  ___

381



Average Speed  ___

382



Average Speed  ___

383



Average Speed  ___

384



Average Speed  ___

385



Average Speed  ___

386



Average Speed  ___

387



Average Speed  ___

388



Average Speed  ___

389



Average Speed  ___

390



Average Speed  ___

391



Average Speed  ___

392



Average Speed  ___

393



Average Speed  ___

394



Average Speed  ___

395



Average Speed  ___

396



Average Speed  ___

397



Average Speed  ___

398



Average Speed  ___

399



Average Speed  ___

400



Average Speed  ___

401



Average Speed  ___

402



Average Speed  ___

403



Average Speed  ___

404



Average Speed  ___

405



Average Speed  ___

406



Average Speed  ____

407



Average Speed  ___

408



Average Speed  ___

409



Average Speed  ____

410



Average Speed  ___

411



Average Speed  ___

412



Average Speed  ___

413



Average Speed  ___

414



REPORT 8 - TOTAL COLLISIONS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd 19 1/2 AV Distance (ft) 38.0 Direction N Secondary Rd CASTLE WY NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LB4 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1828 Collision Date 20210605 Time 1439 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor UNSAFE SPEED Violation 22350 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210726
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 24 M W HNBD RGT TURN N A 0100 - 2016 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd ANTELOPE DR Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction W Secondary Rd HAZELWOOD DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LE1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1159 Collision Date 20210208 Time 2030 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor UNSAFE SPEED Violation 22350 Collision Type HEAD-ON Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210412
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 38 F W HNBD SLOWING S A 0100 - 2008 - 3 A 22107 N M G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED N D 2200 - 2007 - - N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd ANTELOPE DR Distance (ft) 18.0 Direction N Secondary Rd W HANFORD NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LE2 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 899 Collision Date 20210903 Time 1435 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220520
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 28 M H HNBD BACKING S D 2200 - 2008 - - N - M G
2 DRVR 27 M H HNBD STOPPED S D 2200 - 2019 - - N - M G PASS 26 M 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd B ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd HILL ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210428 Time 1451 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21804A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210601
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 69 F H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2015 - 3 N - L B DRVR MINOR 69 F 1 0 L B
2 DRVR 28 M B HNBD PROC ST - F 2600 FORD 2005 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd BELINDA DR Distance (ft) 531. Direction E Secondary Rd HAZEL WOOD DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LK3 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1159 Collision Date 20210412 Time 2046 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210527
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST N A 0100 - - 3 N - - B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 1 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
415



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

2 PRKD 998 - PARKED N A 0100 - 2020 - - - - - -

Primary Rd CABRILLO ST Distance (ft) 260. Direction W Secondary Rd FLORES ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1827 Collision Date 20210517 Time 1443 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type AUTO/PED Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210701
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run FELONY Motor Vehicle Involved WithPED Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action IN RD, Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 21 M H HNBD ENT TRAF E A 0100 - 2016 - 3 N - M B
2 PED 50 F H N N 6000 - - 3 N - - - PED MINOR 50 F - 0 - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd CEDAR LN Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd SOUTH 19TH AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LN2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1833 Collision Date 20210511 Time 1545 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W PED Violation 21950A Collision Type AUTO/PED Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210629
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPED Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action X-WLK AT Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 69 F W HNBD SLOWING W A 0100 FORD 2015 - 3 N - M G
2 BICY 13 M H HNBD S L 0400 - - 3 N - - -
3 PED 12 F W HNBD S N 6000 - - 3 N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd CHAMPION ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd CHAMPION ST 843 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210127 Time 1041 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210407
Weather1 RAINING Weather2 Rdwy Surface SLIPPERY Rdwy Cond1 FLOODED Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 33 M A HNBD BACKING E F 2700 - 2012 - 3 N - M G PASS 53 M 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd CHAMPION ST Distance (ft) 2500 Direction N Secondary Rd IONA AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LB2 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210730 Time 1043 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220429
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 37 M W HNBD ENT TRAF S J 4800 - 2021 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd CHERRY LN Distance (ft) 96.0 Direction E Secondary Rd SOUTH 19TH AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LN4 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20210327 Time 1104 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21804A Collision Type OTHER Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210601
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithBICYCLE Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F BICY 10 M H ENT TRAF S L 0400 - - 3 N - - - BICY SERIOUS 10 M - 1 P W
2 DRVR 54 F H HNBD PROC ST E A 0700 - 2012 - 3 N - M G PASS 58 F 3 0 M G

PASS 11 M 4 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 2 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
416



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd CONSTITUTION AV Distance (ft) 13.0 Direction N Secondary Rd W HANFORD NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LZ4 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1841 Collision Date 20210601 Time 1815 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor IMPED TRAFFIC Violation 22400A Collision Type REAR END Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 4 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210810
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 39 F H U-TURN E A 0100 - 2011 - 3 N - M G DRVR OTH VIS 39 F 1 0 M G
PASS OTH VIS 71 M 3 0 M G

2 DRVR 61 M H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 AUDI 2001 - 3 N - L G DRVR OTH VIS 61 M 1 0 L G
PASS SEVERE 59 F 3 0 L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd DEVON DR Distance (ft) 137. Direction W Secondary Rd CHELSEA AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LC1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1827 Collision Date 20210419 Time 0902 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210527
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST W - 9900 - - 3 M - - B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 - 2017 - 3 N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E BUSH ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd E D ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1838 Collision Date 20211013 Time 1914 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21802A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220617
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 60 M H HNBD W A 0100 - 2019 - 3 N - L -
2 DRVR 61 M W HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2020 - 3 N - L - DRVR MINOR 61 M 1 0 L -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E HANFORD
ARMONA RD

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd EAST CINNAMON NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ3 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1159 Collision Date 20210721 Time 1810 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21802A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220502
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 26 F A HNBD LFT TURN E A 0100 - 2019 - 3 N - L G
2 DRVR 23 M H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2016 - 3 N - L G PASS 23 F 3 0 L G

PASS 998 F 5 0 L Q
PASS OTH VIS 23 M 1 0 L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E HANFORD
ARMONA RD

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd NORTH LEMOORE NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210122 Time 1552 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 21453A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210325
Weather1 RAINING Weather2 Rdwy Surface WET Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DUSK/DAWNPed Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 24 M W HNBD SLOWING N F 2600 - 2006 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 3 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
417



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

2 DRVR 37 F W HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2016 - 3 N - M G DRVR MINOR 37 F 1 0 M G

Primary Rd E HAZELWOOD DR Distance (ft) 120. Direction E Secondary Rd BEVERLY DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LK1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1820 Collision Date 20211010 Time 0148 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220520
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 25 M HBD-UI PROC ST W A 0100 - 2012 - 1 F - M B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED W A 0100 - 2008 - - - - - -
3 PRKD 998 - PARKED W A 0700 - 2014 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E SPRUCE AV Distance (ft) 100. Direction E Secondary Rd NORTH LEMOORE NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LK1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 899 Collision Date 20210114 Time 2050 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210319
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 28 F B HNBD RGT TURN E A 0100 FORD 2003 - 3 N - M H DRVR OTH VIS 28 F 1 0 M H

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd EAST CINNAMON
DR

Distance (ft) 150. Direction W Secondary Rd BELLA MADRE NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LI1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1806 Collision Date 20210112 Time 1731 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21804A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210407
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DUSK/DAWNPed Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 55 M O HBD-NUI PROC ST S D 7300 FORD 1998 - 3 M - M G
2 DRVR 31 M H HNBD LFT TURN E D 2200 - 2014 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd B ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210608 Time 2000 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21803A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210810
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 31 M B IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST W C 0200 - 2020 - 3 N - P W DRVR SEVERE 31 M 1 1 P W
2 DRVR 20 F B HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2020 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 3.00 Direction N Secondary Rd CINNAMON DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LC4 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1844 Collision Date 20211121 Time 0150 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220520
Weather1 FOG Weather2 Rdwy Surface WET Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 55 M W HBD-UI LFT TURN N D 2200 - 2020 - 3 A 22107 N M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 4 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
418



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd E ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210610 Time 1456 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 22451A Collision Type OTHER Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210816
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithTRAIN Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 20 M H HNBD OTHER S F 2600 - 2016 - 3 N - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 340. Direction S Secondary Rd W HANFORD NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LD1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1827 Collision Date 20210726 Time 1603 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W PED Violation 21952 Collision Type AUTO/PED Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220502
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPED Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action IN RD, Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 37 F W HNBD SLOWING W A 0700 - 2020 - 3 A 21952 - M G
2 PED 12 M W - N 6000 - - 3 N - - - PED OTH VIS 12 M - - P -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd HELENE ST Distance (ft) 23.0 Direction E Secondary Rd SOUTH LEMOORE NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LB1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1834 Collision Date 20210626 Time 0045 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220502
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 22 M B IMP UNK IMP UNK LFT TURN E A 0100 - 2011 - 3 N - L B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd IONA AV Distance (ft) 530. Direction W Secondary Rd SOUTH 19TH AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LP5 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210415 Time 1640 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210528
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 35 M H HNBD RGT TURN W J 4800 - 2014 - 3 N - M H

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd IONA AV Distance (ft) 670. Direction W Secondary Rd VINE ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1828 Collision Date 20210628 Time 0640 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220524
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1 DRVR 53 M H HNBD BACKING S - 0000 - 2011 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 5 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
419



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd JUNIPER LN Distance (ft) 110. Direction W Secondary Rd W SPRING LN NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LE2 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1821 Collision Date 20210322 Time 1957 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152B Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210603
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT FNCT Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 40 M H HBD-UI U-TURN E E 8232 - 2004 - 3 A 22107 N M G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED E D 7200 - 2020 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd LINDA LN Distance (ft) 45.0 Direction E Secondary Rd LINDA LN  10 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LM3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1834 Collision Date 20210419 Time 2228 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type OTHER Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210527
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 27 M B HBD-UI UNS TURN S A 0100 - 2005 - 3 A 22106 I M B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 - 1987 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd MONARCH DR Distance (ft) 327. Direction E Secondary Rd SANDCASTLE AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LB4 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1821 Collision Date 20210130 Time 1836 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210406
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 20 F H IMP UNK IMP UNK BACKING W A 0100 FORD 2013 - 3 N - M B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED W A 0100 - 2015 - - N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd NEWBRIDGE DR Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd PARK LN NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO6 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20210405 Time 1505 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21800A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 2 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210608
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run FELONY Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 17 M H HNBD PROC ST N A 0100 - 2017 - 3 F - M G PASS 21 M 3 0 M G
2 DRVR 18 M H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2016 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 18 M 1 0 L G

PASS MINOR 15 M 3 0 L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd NORTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd C ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1828 Collision Date 20210403 Time 0944 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21801A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210527
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 57 M H HNBD LFT TURN N A 0700 CHEVR 2003 - 3 N - M G
2 DRVR 23 F HNBD PROC ST - A 0100 - 2006 - 3 N - M -
3 PRKD 998 - PARKED W A 0700 JEEP 2015 - 3 N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 6 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
420



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd NORTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd DEVON DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LI1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1841 Collision Date 20210501 Time 2113 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21804A Collision Type REAR END Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210602
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 27 F W HNBD RGT TURN S A 0100 - 2011 - 3 N - M B PASS 1 M 6 0 M Q
2 DRVR 17 F W HNBD SLOWING S D 2200 - 2001 - 3 N - M G DRVR SERIOUS 17 F 1 0 M G

PASS 18 M 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd NORTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 584. Direction N Secondary Rd DEVON DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LI1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1821 Collision Date 20210723 Time 2205 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220429
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 28 M H HBD-UI RAN OFF RD S A 0100 FORD 2011 - 3 A 22107 - M B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd NORTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd E GLENDALE AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LB2 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1827 Collision Date 20210614 Time 1340 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210722
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 35 M HNBD BACKING N F 7600 CHEVR 2018 - 3 M - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd OLYMPIC AV Distance (ft) 332. Direction N Secondary Rd EAST CINNAMON NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LI2 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1822 Collision Date 20210718 Time 1800 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor NOT DRIVER Violation Collision Type OTHER Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220429
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithANIMAL Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1 DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST N A 0800 - - - M - B -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd RT 41 Distance (ft) 147. Direction S Secondary Rd BUSH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? Y Route 41 Postmile Prefix R Postmile 40.769 Side of Hwy S
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO6 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans 6 Badge 1833 Collision Date 20210720 Time 0535 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152B Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220525
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DUSK/DAWNPed Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type R Ramp/Int 2

1F DRVR 26 M H HBD-UI MERGING S F 2600 - 1998 - 3 H - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 7 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
421



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd RT 41 Distance (ft) 12.0 Direction W Secondary Rd RT 198 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? Y Route 41 Postmile Prefix R Postmile 40.130 Side of Hwy N
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO5 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans 6 Badge 1800 Collision Date 20210211 Time 1340 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 22450A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 2 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210329
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type H Ramp/Int -

1F DRVR 77 M W HNBD PROC ST W A 0700 - 2019 - 3 N - L G DRVR SERIOUS 77 M 1 0 L G
PASS SERIOUS 69 F 3 0 L G

2 DRVR 31 M W HNBD PROC ST N A 0800 FORD 1998 - 3 N - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd SOUTH 19TH AV Distance (ft) 90.0 Direction N Secondary Rd CEDAR LN NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LN5 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1828 Collision Date 20210430 Time 0751 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210630
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 19 M HNBD LFT TURN N A 0100 FORD 1998 - 3 N - M G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 FORD 2000 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd SOUTH 19TH AV Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd RT 198 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? Y Route 198 Postmile Prefix R Postmile 9.521 Side of Hwy W
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LP5 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans 6 Badge 1162 Collision Date 20210626 Time 1210 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 21453A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210730
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type R Ramp/Int 4

1F DRVR 25 M H PROC ST N D 7200 FORD 2017 - 3 K - M G DRVR MINOR 54 F 1 0 M G
2 DRVR 54 F LFT TURN S A 0700 - 2019 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd SOUTH 19TH AV Distance (ft) 41.0 Direction E Secondary Rd S 19TH AV 1200 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LPS Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20210528 Time 0730 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type OTHER Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210716
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithNON-CLSN Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT FNCT Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 24 M W HNBD PROC ST S J 4800 - 2019 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd SOUTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 32.0 Direction N Secondary Rd LARISH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LE1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1809 Collision Date 20211225 Time 1841 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220502
Weather1 RAINING Weather2 Rdwy Surface WET Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 33 F HBD-UI UNS TURN S A 0100 - 2016 - - A 22107 - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 8 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
422



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd SYDNEY WY Distance (ft) 68.0 Direction W Secondary Rd DAPHNE LN NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LH3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1838 Collision Date 20211014 Time 1955 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220520
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 20 F IMP UNK IMP UNK LFT TURN W A 0100 - 2021 - - N - M B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED W D 2200 FORD 2003 - - N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd VINE ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd CEDAR LN NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LN3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1842 Collision Date 20210413 Time 2053 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor UNKNOWN Violation Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210707
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1 DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST - A 0100 FORD 2010 - 3 N - B -
2 DRVR 31 F H HNBD PROC ST N A 0100 - 2017 - 3 N - M G DRVR OTH VIS 31 F 1 0 M G

PASS 38 F 3 0 M G
PASS 8 M 6 0 M G
PASS 6 F 4 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd VINE ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd IONA AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LP3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1833 Collision Date 20210719 Time 1522 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20220429
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - RGT TURN S A 0700 FORD 2004 - 3 A 22107 - M B PASS 2 M 5 0 M Q
PASS 1 F 6 0 M Q
PASS 4 F 4 0 M Q
PASS 27 F 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd VISCONTI Distance (ft) 144. Direction W Secondary Rd CANTERA NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LH2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1833 Collision Date 20210708 Time 1012 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor NOT STATED Violation Collision Type OTHER Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210921
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 44 M H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 MACK 2014 - 3 N - M G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - F 2600 - 2019 - - - - - -
3 PRKD 998 - PARKED - F 2600 - 2020 - - - - - -
4 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 - 1996 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 9 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
423



01/01/2021 thru 12/31/2021

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  49

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd W HANFORD
ARMONA RD

Distance (ft) 195. Direction E Secondary Rd NORTH 19TH AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LZ4 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1821 Collision Date 20210704 Time 0254 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220502
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 29 M H HBD-UI UNS TURN W A 0100 - 2010 - 3 A 22107 - L H DRVR SEVERE 29 M 1 1 L H

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST BUSH ST Distance (ft) 221. Direction W Secondary Rd ACACIA DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA4 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1834 Collision Date 20210425 Time 2034 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220429
Weather1 RAINING Weather2 Rdwy Surface WET Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 21 M O HBD-UI DRUG OTHER W A 0100 - 2005 - 3 A 23152 M L B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 - 2014 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST BUSH ST Distance (ft) 48.0 Direction E Secondary Rd LINDA LN NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 707 Collision Date 20210707 Time 0200 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220429
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 25 M W HBD-UI PROC ST E A 0800 - 2016 - 3 A 22107 - L G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 - 2019 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST BUSH ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd VINE ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1828 Collision Date 20210620 Time 0900 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23153B Collision Type HEAD-ON Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 2 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20210810
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 42 M H HBD-UI LFT TURN W A 0100 - 2014 - 3 A 22107 N L G
2 DRVR 21 F H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2013 - 3 N - M G DRVR OTH VIS 21 F 1 0 M G

PASS OTH VIS 22 F 2 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST CINNAMON
DR

Distance (ft) 14.0 Direction W Secondary Rd BOARDWALK AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LC5 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1821 Collision Date 20210618 Time 1757 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 22450 Collision Type HEAD-ON Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 2 Tow Away? N Process Date 20210721
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 74 M H HNBD ENT TRAF N A 0100 - 1996 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 74 M 1 0 L G
2 DRVR 30 F W HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2015 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 30 F 1 0 L G

PASS 2 M 6 0 M Q
PASS 9 F 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 10 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
424



REPORT 8 - TOTAL COLLISIONS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd AMERICAN AV Distance (ft) 92.0 Direction S Secondary Rd REVERE WY NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LC4 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20220702 Time 1526 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21804A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 4 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221108
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 20 M H HNBD BACKING E D 7200 - 2017 - 3 N - M G DRVR POSSIBL 20 M 1 0 M G
PASS POSSIBL 20 F 3 0 M G
PASS POSSIBL 2 F 4 0 M Q
PASS POSSIBL 998 F 6 0 M Q

2 DRVR 35 M W HNBD PROC ST S D 7200 FORD 2018 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd BRENTWOOD DR Distance (ft) 348. Direction W Secondary Rd CITADEL AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LD3 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20220726 Time 0758 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor OTHER EQPMNT Violation 24002 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221114
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 48 M H HNBD STOPPED W F 8700 - 2021 - 3 N - M B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 - 2011 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd C ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd C ST 241 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20221229 Time 2000 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20230223
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 31 M O IMP UNK IMP UNK UNS TURN E F 2600 - 2006 - - N - M B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED S F 2600 - 2017 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd CINNAMON DR Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd FOX ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LC1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1816 Collision Date 20220529 Time 2125 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21800 Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221116
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 32 M HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2018 - 3 N - L G
2 DRVR 74 F H HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2012 - 3 N - M G PASS POSSIBL 79 M 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 1 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
425



01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd E D ST Distance (ft) 480. Direction W Secondary Rd E BUSH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LH3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20221116 Time 1209 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor NOT DRIVER Violation Collision Type HEAD-ON Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230120
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1 DRVR 54 M IMP UNK IMP UNK OTHER W D 2200 - 2022 - - N - L G DRVR SERIOUS 54 M 1 0 L G
2 DRVR 57 M W HNBD PROC ST E F 2600 - 2006 - 3 N - M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E D ST Distance (ft) 907. Direction W Secondary Rd E BUSH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20221123 Time 1327 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type OVERTURNED Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230103
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithNON-CLSN Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 28 M H HBD-UI RAN OFF RD E A 0100 - 2003 - - N - M B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E D ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd NORTH LEMOORE NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1805 Collision Date 20221029 Time 0243 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221221
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 37 M H HBD-UI RGT TURN E A 0100 - 2015 - - N - M B DRVR MINOR 37 M 1 0 M B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E D ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd SMITH AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1841 Collision Date 20220416 Time 1843 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21802A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20220505
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithMV ON OTHER RD Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 18 M H HNBD PROC ST N A 0100 FORD 2017 - - N - L G
2 DRVR 23 F W HNBD PROC ST W A 0100 - 2016 - - N - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E D ST Distance (ft) 801. Direction W Secondary Rd SMITH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20220929 Time 1451 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type REAR END Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221114
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 19 M W HNBD UNS TURN W A 0100 - 1992 - 3 - - M G DRVR SERIOUS 19 M 1 0 M G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - D 2200 - 2002 - - - - - -
3 PRKD 998 - PARKED - B 0736 - 1998 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 2 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
426



01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd E HANFORD
ARMONA RD

Distance (ft) 764. Direction E Secondary Rd BEVERLY DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ2 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1839 Collision Date 20220630 Time 1900 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 21453 Collision Type AUTO/PED Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221116
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPED Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action X-WLK AT Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 27 M B HNBD PROC ST W A 0100 - 2014 - 3 N - M G
2 PED 15 M B HNBD N N 6000 - - 3 N - - - PED MINOR 15 M 0 0 P V

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd E HANFORD
ARMONA RD

Distance (ft) 106. Direction W Secondary Rd OPAL DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ2 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20220915 Time 1254 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor UNSAFE SPEED Violation 22350 Collision Type REAR END Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221122
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 28 M W HNBD PROC ST W C 0200 - 2020 - 3 N - P W DRVR OTH VIS 28 M 1 0 P W
2 DRVR 50 F W HNBD STOPPED W A 0100 - 2008 - 3 N - M G PASS 31 M 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd EAST CINNAMON
DR

Distance (ft) 75.0 Direction W Secondary Rd CARLA DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist L13 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20221009 Time 0149 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type REAR END Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20230417
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK LFT TURN W A 0700 - - - I - B -
2 DRVR 32 F W STOPPED W A 0700 - 2015 - 3 N - M H

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd EAST CINNAMON
DR

Distance (ft) 178. Direction E Secondary Rd CLAUDIA DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist L13 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20221009 Time 0150 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor UNSAFE SPEED Violation 22350 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221219
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK RAN OFF RD W A 0700 - - - N - B -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd B ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1841 Collision Date 20220701 Time 1851 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21803 Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 3 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221108
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithMV ON OTHER RD Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 44 F H HNBD PROC ST W A 0100 FORD 2016 - - N - L G DRVR MINOR 44 F 1 0 L G
2 DRVR 56 F W HNBD PROC ST S D 7200 - 2008 - 3 N - M G DRVR MINOR 56 F 1 0 M G

PASS MINOR 14 F 2 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 3 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
427



01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 21.0 Direction S Secondary Rd COVENTRY DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LC1 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1843 Collision Date 20221021 Time 2241 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221221
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 17 F H HNBD PROC ST S - 0000 - 2017 - B - - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd FOX ST Distance (ft) 6.00 Direction E Secondary Rd FOX ST 200 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1834 Collision Date 20221015 Time 2213 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor LANE CHANGE Violation 21658 Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230324
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - UNS TURN - A 0100 - 2005 - - - - - -
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED W A 0100 - 2018 - 3 N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd HAMLET ST Distance (ft) 210. Direction S Secondary Rd WEST BUSH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LM1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1829 Collision Date 20221028 Time 1912 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor LANE CHANGE Violation 21658 Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221221
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - NO Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 998 - IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST N A 0100 - - - - - B -
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED N D 7300 - 2001 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd HANFORD ARMONA
RD

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd LEMOORE AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20221018 Time 0747 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W PED Violation 21950A Collision Type AUTO/PED Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221118
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPED Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action X-WLK AT Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 37 F B HNBD RGT TURN E A 0100 - 2014 - 3 E N M G
2 PED 12 M W HNBD E N 6000 - - 3 N - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd HANFORD ARMONA
RD

Distance (ft) 399. Direction E Secondary Rd LIBERTY DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LD3 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1843 Collision Date 20220513 Time 1543 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221114
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 71 M W PROC ST W A 0100 MINI 2015 - 3 - - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 4 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
428



01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd HANFORD ARMONA
RD

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd LIBERTY DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LD3 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1844 Collision Date 20221212 Time 1654 Day MON
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21800A Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230406
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DUSK/DAWNPed Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 30 F H HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2016 - 3 M - L G
2 DRVR 56 M W HNBD PROC ST W D 2200 - 2016 - 3 N - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd NORTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 87.0 Direction S Secondary Rd B ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LG1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1068 Collision Date 20221112 Time 1838 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230103
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 17 M H HNBD PROC ST N D 2200 - 2004 - 3 N - L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd NORTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 36.0 Direction N Secondary Rd F ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LI1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1805 Collision Date 20220909 Time 2126 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type OTHER Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221122
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 26 M W HBD-UI PROC ST N C 0200 - 2017 - - A 22350 - P - DRVR OTH VIS 26 M 1 2 P -
2 DRVR 61 M H HNBD PROC ST N A 0700 - 2017 - - N - M G PASS 55 F 3 0 M G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd OPAL DR Distance (ft) 81.0 Direction N Secondary Rd PEARL DR NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ2 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20220920 Time 2113 Day TUE
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type AUTO/PED Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221122
Weather1 CLOUDY Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run FELONY Motor Vehicle Involved WithPED Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action IN RD, Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 20 M B IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST S A 0100 - - - N - B -
2 PED 18 F H HNBD W N 6000 - - 3 M - - - PED SEVERE 18 F - 0 - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd RT 41 Distance (ft) 80.0 Direction S Secondary Rd RT 198 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? Y Route 41 Postmile Prefix R Postmile 40.125 Side of Hwy S
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO6 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans 6 Badge 1829 Collision Date 20221104 Time 2133 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21804A Collision Type REAR END Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 3 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230120
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type I Ramp/Int 5

1F DRVR 28 F HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2020 - - H - M B DRVR MINOR 28 F 1 0 M B
PASS POSSIBL 26 M 3 0 M B

2 DRVR 29 F H HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2017 - 3 N - L B DRVR POSSIBL 29 F 1 0 L B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 5 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
429



01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd RT 41 Distance (ft) 940. Direction S Secondary Rd RT 198 NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LO6 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1829 Collision Date 20221209 Time 1929 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230124
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 34 F H HBD-UI PROC ST N A 0700 - 2021 - - H - M B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd S 19 1/2 AV Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd SONOMA AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LN5 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1848 Collision Date 20221102 Time 0101 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor IMPROP TURN Violation 22107 Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230103
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 21 M H HNBD FATG PROC ST N A 0100 - 2009 - 3 F - M G
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 JEEP 2018 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd SOUTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 20.0 Direction S Secondary Rd IONA AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LZ2 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20221116 Time 0829 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21802A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221230
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 85 M W HNBD PROC ST E F 2600 - 2007 - - N - M B
2 DRVR 35 F H HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2018 - - N - L B DRVR MINOR 35 F 1 0 L B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd SOUTH LEMOORE
AV

Distance (ft) 96.0 Direction S Secondary Rd WEST BUSH ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1829 Collision Date 20220519 Time 0137 Day THU
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221114
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DARK - ST Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 28 M H HBD-UI N - 0000 - - - N - M B PASS 25 F 2 0 M B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd W HANFORD
ARMONA RD

Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd NORTH LEMOORE NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LJ1 Beat 0L2 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1162 Collision Date 20220703 Time 1040 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor STOP SGN|SIG Violation 21453A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 3 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221104
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 32 F H HNBD PROC ST E A 0100 - 2012 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 32 F 1 0 L G
2 DRVR 27 F W HNBD PROC ST S A 0100 - 2012 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 27 F 1 0 L G

PASS MINOR 33 M 3 0 L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 6 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
430



01/01/2022 thru 12/31/2022

Report Run On:  04/27/2023

Total Count:  33

Include State Highways cases

Jurisdiction(s): Lemoore

Primary Rd WEST BUSH ST Distance (ft) 0.00 Direction Secondary Rd FOLLETT ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA1 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1821 Collision Date 20221028 Time 1616 Day FRI
Primary Collision Factor R-O-W AUTO Violation 21802A Collision Type BROADSIDE Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 4 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221219
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 42 F W HNBD ENT TRAF S A 0100 - 2014 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 42 F 1 0 L G
PASS SERIOUS 65 M 6 0 L G
PASS MINOR 64 F 4 0 L G

2 DRVR 20 F W HNBD PROC ST W A 0100 - 2016 - 3 N - L G DRVR MINOR 20 F 1 0 L G

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST BUSH ST Distance (ft) 133. Direction W Secondary Rd S 19 1/2 AV NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA4 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1834 Collision Date 20220423 Time 0856 Day SAT
Primary Collision Factor STRTNG|BCKNG Violation 22106 Collision Type OTHER Severity INJURY #Killed 0 #Injured 1 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20221110
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithOTHER MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev FNCTNG Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 53 M H BACKING E A 0100 - 2004 - - N - M G DRVR POSSIBL 53 M 1 0 M G
2 DRVR 28 F H STOPPED E A 0100 - 2012 - 3 N - M C
3 PRKD 998 - PARKED - A 0100 FORD 2018 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST CINNAMON
DR

Distance (ft) 620. Direction W Secondary Rd HILL ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LB3 Beat 0L1 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1827 Collision Date 20220710 Time 1020 Day SUN
Primary Collision Factor OTHER IMPROP DRV Violation Collision Type HIT OBJECT Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? N Process Date 20221205
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run MSDMNR Motor Vehicle Involved WithFIXED OBJ Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 25 M B IMP UNK IMP UNK PROC ST S A 0100 - 2014 - - F - M B

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Primary Rd WEST D ST Distance (ft) 251. Direction W Secondary Rd MARTIN ST NCIC 1603 State Hwy? N Route Postmile Prefix Postmile Side of Hwy
City Lemoore County Kings Population 3 Rpt Dist LA3 Beat 0L3 Type 0 CalTrans Badge 1800 Collision Date 20221123 Time 1544 Day WED
Primary Collision Factor DRVR ALC|DRG Violation 23152A Collision Type SIDESWIPE Severity PDO #Killed 0 #Injured 0 Tow Away? Y Process Date 20230103
Weather1 CLEAR Weather2 Rdwy Surface DRY Rdwy Cond1 NO UNUSL CND Rdwy Cond2 Spec Cond 0
Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Involved WithPKD MV Lighting DAYLIGHT Ped Action Cntrl Dev NT PRS/FCTR Loc Type Ramp/Int

1F DRVR 35 M W HBD-UI PROC ST W F 2600 - 2017 - - N - L B
2 PRKD 998 - PARKED W A 0100 - 2017 - - - - - -

Party Info
Party Type Age Sex Race Sobriety1 Sobriety2 Move Pre Dir SW Veh CHP Veh Make Year SP Info OAF1 Viol OAF2 Safety Equip ROLE Ext Of Inj AGE Sex Seat Pos Safety EQUIP Ejected

Victim Info

Page 7 This report is accepted subject to the Terms of Use.  Due to collision records processing backlogs, SWITRS data is typically seven months behind.  Data requested for dates seven months prior to the current date will be incomplete.
431



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  Fax (559) 924-9003 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 5-3 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Randon Reeder, Management Analyst   
Date: July 8, 2023     Meeting Date:    July 18, 2023 
Subject: Introduction – Ordinance 2023-04 – Amending Chapter 7, Title 10, 

Section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Pertaining to City Maintenance 
District. 

 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approval of the introduction of Ordinance 2023-04, Amending Chapter 7, Title 10, Section 
2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code pertaining to the City Maintenance District. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
Currently, the City of Lemoore utilizes Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts 
(LLMD) and Public Facilities Maintenance Districts (PFMD) throughout various parts of 
the City. LLMDs maintain lighting and landscaping throughout the district. This includes 
parkways, bike paths, and trails. PFMDs cover the same, but also include street 
maintenance. An annual tax assessment is taken for all residents in the zones to cover 
maintenance costs as approved annually by Council.  
 
The City of Lemoore is looking to change the services definition in Chapter 7, Title 10, 
section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code pertaining to the City Maintenance District. This 
update will allow the City of Lemoore to enter into a Community Facility District. This new 
district will allow the City to apply a special tax assessment to cover proportionate shares 
of public services such as the police department and fire department. These additional 
services and assessments will be in addition to the already established costs for Public 
Facilities Maintenance Districts.   

432



 
Financial Consideration(s): 
N/A 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Alternatives: Council could decline the change and prevent the city from entering into 
Community Facilities Districts for future developments.  
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the introduction of Ordinance 2023-04 amending section 
7-10-2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code pertaining to city maintenance district and set the 
second reading at the August 1, 2023 meeting. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☐ Asst. City Manager    
☒ Ordinance: 2023-04  ☒ City Attorney 7/14/2023 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 7/14/2023 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manger 7/13/2023 
☐ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  

433



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
AMENDING SECTION TITLE 7, CHAPTER 10, SECTION 2 OF THE LEMOORE 

MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO CITY MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 
 
The City Council of the City of Lemoore does ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 7-10-2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code regarding services is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
For all purposes of interpreting and applying this chapter, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
DISTRICT: Any assessment district formed pursuant to this chapter. 
 
IMPROVEMENT: Any one or combination of the following: 
 

A. Any improvement described in section 22525 of the California Streets And Highways 
Code. 

B. Any city street, highway, road, alley, lane, boulevard, pedestrian mall, parkway, bike 
path, trail or easement. 

C. Any other governmental property or facilities which the city is authorized by law to 
finance, purchase, construct, expand, improve, rehabilitate, own, operate or contribute money to. 
 
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ACT: The landscaping and lighting act of 1972 (the "act"), 
California Streets And Highways Code section 22500 et seq., as amended from time to time. 
 
PROPOSITION 218: Article XIIID of the California constitution. 

SERVICES: Any or all of the following: 
 

A. Maintaining, servicing, repairing, replacing, operating, caring for or preserving any 
“improvement” defined in this chapter, including but not limited to any of the following: 
 
1. Maintaining, servicing, repairing, replacing, operating or caring for any street, 

highway, road, alley, lane, boulevard, pedestrian mall, parkway, bike path, trail, 
easement or other way dedicated to public use or used by the public, and all 
appurtenances and improvements therein, including, but not limited to, paving, 
surfaces, curbs, gutters, medians, street and traffic signs, other signage, streetlights, 
traffic signals, hydrants, sound walls, drains, tunnels, sewers, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 
conduits, culverts, landscaping and hardscaping 

 
2. Maintaining, servicing, repairing, replacing, operating, or caring for any landscaping, 

hardscaping, lighting, or signage next to any right of way or other way dedicated to 

434



public use or used by the public and described in subsection A1 of this definition, or 
next to any canal, basin or ditch.  

 
B. Establishing and maintaining a reasonable reserve for repair and replacement under 

subsection A of this definition 
 

C. Districts may enter into a Community Facilities District allowing for a special tax 
assessment to assist in their proportionate share of public facilities and public safety costs. 
Public Safety can consist of but not limited to: fire, police, and ambulance.  

SECTION 2. The City Council declares that each provision of this ordinance is severable and 
independent of every other provision.  If any portion of this ordinance is held invalid, the City 
Council declares that it would have adopted the remaining provisions of this ordinance irrespective 
of the portion held invalid, and further declares its express intent that the remaining provisions of 
this ordinance should remain in effect after the invalid portion has been eliminated. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption and will not be 
codified in the City’s Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 4.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause a summary of this Ordinance to be 
published by one insertion in a newspaper of general circulation in the community at least five (5) 
days prior to adoption and again fifteen (15) days after its adoption. If a summary of the ordinance 
is published, then the City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of the full text of the proposed 
ordinance to be posted in the office of the City Clerk at least five (5) days prior to the Council 
meeting at which the ordinance is adopted, and again after the meeting at which the ordinance is 
adopted. The summary shall be approved by the City Attorney.  

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 18th day of July 2023 and was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council held on the 1st day of August 2023 by the following vote: 

 AYES:  

 NOES:   

 ABSENT:   

 ABSTAIN:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Marisa Avalos      Patricia Matthews  
City Clerk      Mayor  

435



 
 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 

 
 
a.  CALL TO ORDER 
b. INVOCATION 
c. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
d. ROLL CALL 
e. AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS 
 

1 – CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION  
 
1-1 Donations from People’s Farming (Olson) 

 
2 – STUDY SESSION 

 
2-1 Potential Zoning Ordinance Changes to Encourage Housing Development (Brandt)  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Public comment will be in accordance with the attached policy. This time is reserved for members of the audience to address 
the City Council on items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  It is 
recommended that speakers limit their comments to three (3) minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during 
this period on items on the Agenda. The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the 
Agenda.  Prior to addressing the Council, any handouts for Council will be provided to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council 
and appropriate staff. The public will have an opportunity to comment on items on the agenda once the item has been called and the 
Mayor opens the item to the public. 
 

3 – DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS  
 
3-1 Department & City Manager Reports 
 

4 – CONSENT CALENDAR  
Items considered routine in nature are placed on the Consent Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as 

one item unless a Council member or member of the public requests individual consideration. 
 
4-1 Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – June 19, 2023 
4-2 Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – June 27, 2023 
4-3 Approval – Fire Purchases of Ford F150, 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper, 2024 Ferrara 

Type 6 Quick Attack, Dewalt 18” Ventilation Fans, Forcible Entry Training Door, Hurst 
Tools (Cutter-Spreader-Ram Tools) with SB 179 

 
 
 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 C STREET 
July 18, 2023 

5:30 P.M. 

436



5 – PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 

 
5-1 Public Hearing – Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal 

Year 2023-2024 for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District Number 1 (LLMD) 
Zones 1 through 13 - Resolution 2023-22 - and Public Facilities Maintenance District 
Number 1 (PFMD) Zones 1 through 10 - Resolution 2023-23 (Reeder) This item is 
being continued to the August 1, 2023 meeting.  

5-2 Public Hearing – Introduction – Ordinance 2023-03 – Amending Chapter 6, Title 3, 
Section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Pertaining to Speed Limits (Reeder) 

5-3 Public Hearing – Introduction – Ordinance 2023-04 – Amending Chapter 7, Title 10, 
Section 2 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Pertaining to City Maintenance Districts 
(Reeder) 

 
6 – NEW BUSINESS 

Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 
 
No New Business. 
 

7 – BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS  
 
7-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 

8 – CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. Government Code Section 54957 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation – City Manager 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upcoming Council Meetings 
 

• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 1, 2023 
• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 15, 2023 
• City Council Special Meeting, Tuesday, August 29, 2023 

 
 

Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Council Chamber, 429 C Street 
and the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive. Written communications from the public for the agenda must be 
received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore complies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically disabled. Should you need 
special assistance, please call (559) 924-6744, at least 4 business days prior to the meeting. 
 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
 

I, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above Regular City Council Agenda for the meeting of July 18, 2023 at Council Chamber, 429 C Street 
and Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, CA on July 14, 2023. 
 
 
 

          //s//     
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 

437



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 
 

Staff Report 
 

                  
To: Lemoore City Council   

From: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk  

Date: July 14, 2023 Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 
Subject: Activity Update 
Strategic 
Initiative: 

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community 
☒ Fiscally Sound Government  
☐ Community & Neighborhood                                     
L   Livability 

☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy 
☐ Operational Excellence 
☐ Not Applicable  

 
Reports 

 
 Warrant Register – FY 23/24 July 7, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

438


	Agenda 07-18-2023
	Council Meeting Policy -  Via ZOOM
	Item 2-1-1 - STAFF REPORT - Discussion Ordinance Changes - City Council 7-18-2023
	Item 2-1-2 - Text Amendment changes - redline version 7-18-2023
	Item 2-1-3 - Text Amendment changes - clean version 7-18-2023
	Item 4-1 Minutes - 06-19-2023 SP
	Item 4-2 Minutes - 06-27-2023 SP
	Item 4-3-1 2023  Staff Report_SB108 Grant Funding
	Item 4-3-2 2024 Ferrara Type 1 Pumper PO Backup
	Item 4-3-3 2024 Ferrara Type 6 Quick Attack Truck PO
	Item 4-3-4 Curtis Forcible entry training tool
	Item 4-3-5 Curtis JAWS of LIfe PO Backup
	Item 4-3-6 DeWalt Ventilation Fans PO Backup
	Item 5-1-1 Staff Report LLMD-PFMD FY22-23 Annual Assessment
	Item 5-1-2 LLMD Resolution 2023-22
	Item 5-1-3 PFMD Resolution 2023
	Item 5-1-4 Lemoore-FY23-24 LLMD Engineer's Annual Report w Roll (Updated Signed Final Ver 07.07.23,IM 06.27.23, PH 08.01.23)
	Item 5-1-5 Lemoore FY23-24 PFMD Engineer's Annual Report w Roll (Updated Signed Final Ver 07.07.23,IM 06.27.23, PH 08.01.23)
	Item 5-2-1 Staff Report - Speed Study
	Item 5-2-2 Ordinance 2023-03 6.3.2 Speed Limits
	Item 5-2-3  Lemoore Speed Study Technical Memo_04-27-2023
	230095 Lemoore Speed Study Technical Memo_04-27-2023
	Attachment 1 - Speed Survey Data
	Attachment 2 - Speed Survey Counts
	Attachment 3 - SWITRS Collision Report 2021-2022
	2021 SWITRS
	2022 SWITRS


	Item 5-3-1 Staff Report - Maintenance District
	Item 5-3-2 Ordinance 2023-04 CFMD Maintenance Districts
	Agenda 07-18-2023
	AU0 - Activity Update
	Lemoore City Council
	To:
	Marisa Avalos, City Clerk
	From:
	July 14, 2023
	Date:
	Subject:
	Strategic Initiative:


	Text1: 31.11
	Text2: 36.53
	Text3: 38.255
	Text4: 36.945
	Text5: 48.19
	Text6: 29.255
	Text7: 32.28
	Text8: 36.955
	Text9: 41.05
	Text10: 35.305
	Text11: 40.11
	Text12: 36.75
	Text13: 37.895
	Text14: 32.365
	Text15: 38.22
	Text16: 37.34
	Text17: 37.78
	Text18: 35.96
	Text19: 37.55
	Text20: 41.82
	Text21: 38.54
	Text22: 36.475
	Text23: 40.425
	Text24: 44.345
	Text25: 30.51
	Text26: 37.02
	Text27: 37.175
	Text28: 38.085
	Text29: 36.18
	Text30: 34.165
	Text31: 33.91
	Text32: 39.39
	Text33: 35.375
	Text34: 37.41
	Text35: 39.11
	Text36: 34.16
	Text37: 39.025
	Text38: 38.4
	Text39: 41.45
	Text40: 38.015
	Text41: 38.045
	Text42: 36.92
	Text43: 48.905
	Text44: 41.17
	Text45: 47.07
	Text46: 42.415
	Text47: 35.13


